
March 27th, 2018

British Columbia Utilities Commission
Sixth Floor, 900 Howe Street
Box 250, Vancouver, B.C.
V6Z 2N3 

Attention: Patrick Wruck, Commission Secretary

Re: Interverner Request #1: Andy Shadrack – Kaslo Senior Citizens Association, Branch #81

FortisBC Inc 2017 Cost of Service Analysis and Rate Design

1. Cost Of Service Analysis (COSA)

COSA should not only ensure that the company covers its cost of serving the ratepayers, but it should 
equally ensure that costs are appropriately allocated to the right class of customer, and, where appropriate,
that costs are allocated to the company only and not the ratepayers at all.

Section 59 of the Utilities Commission Act states:

59 (1) A public utility must not make, demand or receive

(a) an unjust, unreasonable, unduly discriminatory or unduly preferential rate for a service provided by it in
British Columbia, or

(b) a rate that otherwise contravenes this Act, the regulations, orders of the commission or any other law.

(2) A public utility must not

(a) as to rate or service, subject any person or locality, or a particular description of traffic, to an undue
prejudice or disadvantage, or

(b) extend to any person a form of agreement, a rule or a facility or privilege, unless the agreement, rule,
facility or privilege is regularly and uniformly extended to all persons under substantially similar
circumstances and conditions for service of the same description.

(3) The commission may, by regulation, declare the circumstances and conditions that are substantially
similar for the purpose of subsection (2) (b).

(4) It is a question of fact, of which the commission is the sole judge,

(a) whether a rate is unjust or unreasonable,

(b) whether, in any case, there is undue discrimination, preference, prejudice or disadvantage in respect of
a rate or service, or

(c) whether a service is offered or provided under substantially similar circumstances and conditions.

(5) In this section, a rate is "unjust" or "unreasonable" if the rate is

(a) more than a fair and reasonable charge for service of the nature and quality provided by the utility,

(b) insufficient to yield a fair and reasonable compensation for the service provided by the utility, or a fair
and reasonable return on the appraised value of its property, or
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(c) unjust and unreasonable for any other reason.

As seniors we note that EES Consulting, in their December 22, 2017 Electric Cost of Service Study, 
determine that: [r]”esidential customers make up 86 percent of the number of customers and over 41 per 
cent of energy sales”(p2). Yet at page 4, of its report, it is given in evidence that the residential class is 
allocated 52.1% of FortisBC’s proposed “revenue requirement”, while only paying 51.3% of projected 
revenues in 2017. 

1.1. Can FortisBC please explain why, under the proposed COSA, if residential customers paid 51.3% of 
revenues in 2017, FortisBC and EES are allocating a further .8% more to the residential class “revenue 
requirement” than they paid in 2017? 

1.2. Rejection Of Minimum System Methodology For COSA

At page 25 EES states:

“Because the residential class tends to have a higher share of the number of customers as compared to 
the share of non-coincidant peak, the minimum system methodology tends to allocate more costs to the 
residential class and customer charges tend to be higher than with the 100% demand methodology”. 

Given that EES collected real time data from FortisBC for compilation of the proposed residential TOU 
rates, can FortisBC and their consultant please explain why they continue to use a theoretical methodology,
such as Minimum System, for assigning cost of service to each class when real time data is now available 
for all classes through the Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) data collection system?

1.2.1. Further it is noted that as early as 1982 the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission, 
with support from Bonbright, rejected use of the Minimum System methodology when it stated:

“The Commission rejects the company's use of the zero-intercept method. The minimum system method, 
of which the zero-intercept method is a variant, is also rejected.  Both methods are likely to lead to the 
double allocation of costs to residential customers and over allocation of costs to low use customers” 
(Cause U-82-10, Second. Supp. Order, 1982, p 37).

This rejection was repeated again by the Commission in 1989 when it stated:

“In this case, the only directive the Commission will give regarding future cost of service studies is to repeat
its rejection of the inclusion of the costs of a minimum-sized distribution system among customer-related 
costs.  As the Commission stated in previous orders, the minimum system method is likely to lead to the 
double allocation of costs to residential customers and over-allocation of costs to low-use customers.  
Costs such as meter reading, billing, the cost of meters and service drops, are properly attributable to the 
marginal cost of serving a single customer.  The cost of a minimum sized system is not.  The parties should
not use the minimum system approach in future studies” (Cause U-89-2688-T, Third Supp. Order, 1989, p 
71). 

This rejection was reiterated even more strongly by the Commission in 1992:

“We agree with Commission Staff that proponents of the Minimum System approach have once again 
failed to answer criticisms that have led us to reject this approach in the past.  We direct the parties not to 
propose the Minimum System approach in the future unless technological changes in the utility industry 
emerge, justifying revised proposals” (Docket No. UE-920499, Ninth Supp. Order on Rate Design, 1992, p 
11).
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Given this decade long rejection by the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission, has this  
Commission ever changed their mind on the efficacy of using the Minimum System methodology, and if so 
why?

Use Of Real Time Data Instead

1.2.2. At page 18, under “Major Assumptions of the Cost of Service Analysis”, for example, EES states:

“Monthly power supply costs were classified as demand and energy on the basis of wholesale Rate 3808 
from BC Hydro and allocated on a monthly basis to various customer classes”.

Please explain how power supply allocation of costs would differ for each class if actual real time cost of 
production and purchase of power and consumption are used instead. 

1.2.3. Please create a table that provides plus or minus dollar ($) differences between the Minimum System
and real time data for each class.

1.2.4. EES continues on page 18 by stating:

“Distribution plant was classified based on a “minimum system” approach. A peak load carrying capability 
(PLCC) credit was applied to correct the inherent double-counting of demand with standard minimum 
system study”. 

Please reformulate this statement in lay terms that can be easily understood by the average residential 
customer.

1.2.4.1. Is this an attempt to address the critique of Minimum System methodology by Utility Commissions?

1.2.5. Please explain what happens to allocation of distribution plant costs if each class is allocated these 
costs in terms of both time and portion of the distribution system used in real time consumption of power.

1.2.5.1. Please create a table that provides plus or minus dollar ($) differences between the Minimum 
System methodology and that described above, for each class. 

1.3. Using Minimum System and real time consumption of power supply data, in accordance with the list of 
customer classes found on page 3 (that were presumably used for the EES COSA analysis), please create 
a table that shows, in the first column, the percentage of (produced and purchased) consumed energy 
utilized by each class. Then state, in subsequent columns, the percentage of various costs that are 
allocated to each class, so that it is clear how the residential class, with slightly more than 41% of energy 
sales, ends up being allocated 52.1% of the revenue requirement under the Minimum System 
methodology.

Consumption Changes And Cost Of Producing Power

1.4. Based on the statement made at page 9, that average energy consumption increased by .7% per year 
since 2009, and the number of customers by 2.3% per year, create a table that shows the average 
percentage change in customers in each class by year, and the average change in energy consumption by 
customer class – including Princeton and Kelowna as a part of the “theoretical” residential customer class 
since 2009.
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1.5. At page 29 EES states that in 2017 the cost for purchase of energy under BC Hydro’s RS 3808 rate 
was 4.699 cents per kWh from January through March 2017, and 4.863 cents per kWh for the remaining 
months of 2017. In Table 7, on the same page, BCH RS 3808 purchases are classified as having 176 MW 
capacity, an 86 MWa Average Energy, costing $49 million – roughly 32.2% of all energy purchase and 
production costs.

FortisBC’s own production from four Kootenay River Plants had a 208 MW capacity, 182 MWa Average 
Energy, and a cost of $16 million – roughly 10.5% of all energy purchase and production costs.

1.5.1. In comparison to the prices paid for BCH RS 3808 per kWh, what was the price per kWh for 
FortisBC’s Kootenay River Plants production, purchase of power per kWh from the Brilliant Hydro 
Agreement, and the average price per kWh for Net Market Purchases?

Waneta Expansion Limited Partnership

1.5.2. Why was paying $38.3 million, roughly 25.2% of all energy purchase and production costs, to the 
Waneta Expansion Limited Partnership (WELP) for 87 MW of capacity, with no Average Energy MWa 
purchase, in the financial interests of the customers in the various classes?

1.5.2.1. Please state if this purchase agreement benefited some customer classes more than others, and if 
so explain why.   

1.5.2.2. Please demonstrate how this purchase agreement keeps customer rates down, especially the 
rates of residential customers, rather than simply earning FortisBC, its parent company Fortis Inc, and 
shareholders an annual rate of return on capital investment (“Regulated Canadian & Caribbean [Electric &
Gas](2) 47%”, in “2018-2022 Capital Forecast by Segment”, 2017 Fourth Quarter, Earnings Conference 
Call, February 15, 2018, note 2, p 25).

1.5.2.3. Attached please find Exhibits 1 and 2, FortisBC Inc Consolidated Financial Statements for the 
years ended 2015, 2016 and 2017. With specific reference to Power Purchase Costs on page 4, and note 
21 on page 32, please explain why, when WELP charged the company $46 million under the Waneta 
Expansion Capacity Agreement (WECA), EES only shows a cost of $38.3 million in Table 7 (p 29) of their 
study.

1.5.2.4. Between December 31st, 2015 and 2017 FortisBC Inc Consolidated Financial Statements show 
WELP costs under WECA grew from $30.2 million to $46 million – a 52.3% increase over two years (note 
21, 2015 p 34/2017 p 32). What was this increase in cost for WECA for, and how did this increased cost 
benefit all rate classes, especially the residential class?

1.5.2.5. Is the bullet statement in “Waneta Expansion Capacity Agreement” that:

“...the Waneta Expansion is owned by a limited partnership. The limited partners of which are FBC’s 
ultimate parent, Fortis which owns a 51% interest...” (2017, note 22, p 33) still an accurate statement?

1.5.2.6. If not an accurate statement, what is now the correct configuration of that limited partnership, and 
how much has the intended purchase into that partnership cost the ratepayers of FortisBC so far?
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EES Study Versus FortisBC Consolidated Financial Statements

1.5.3. Between December 31st, 2015 and 2017 FortisBC Inc Consolidated Financial Statements show that 
power purchase costs grew from $116 million to $141 million (p 4). Why does EES only show power 
purchase cost in Table 7 (p 29) as $130 million for 2017?

1.5.3.1. How was this $11 million variance allocated among the rate classes and why?

1.5.3.2. This is an 8.46% variance in power purchase costs, which begs the question as to whether there 
are other such variances between FortisBC Consolidated Revenue Statements and the EES Consulting 
study.

Power Consumption Versus Power Purchase Increases

1.5.4. Between December 31st, 2015 and 2017 FortisBC Inc Consolidated Financial Statements show that 
electricity sales declined from 3,213 GWh in 2014 to 3,121 GWh in 2016, and then rose to 3,305 GWh in 
2017. That is a 2.86% increase in electricity sales between 2014 and 2017, whereas the increase in the 
cost of purchased electricity between 2015 and 2017 is 21.6%. Please explain why the cost of power 
purchases are 755% higher than the rate of increase in electricity sales, and how these Power Purchase 
Agreements (PPA) expenditures benefit all ratepayers, rather than the company choosing to encourage 
further use of conservation options by ratepayers.

1.5.4.1. Given the cost increase of power purchases, as shown in the 2015 and 2017 Consolidated 
Financial Statements, please explain why FortisBC is proposing to maintain energy rates for all classes, 
except Residential and Lighting, at or below current rates (Appendix L – 2017 Proposed Rate Change 
Summary).

1.5.4.2. With reference to Exhibit 2, please explain why FortisBC states in the 2017 Consolidated Financial 
Statements:

“The Corporation’s regulated business includes four hydroelectric generating plants with an aggregate 
capacity of 225 megawatts (“MW”), approximately 7,260 kilometers of transmission and distribution power 
lines, and a peak demand of 746 MW”

...when EES instead states:

“The Peak is forecast in the winter at 761 MW and peak of 634 is expected during the summer months” (p 
2) 

 ...and aggregate capacity for the four Kootenay River Plants is 208 MW (Table 7, p 9).

1.5.4.3. Consequently, I am starting to get very confused by the differences between FortisBC 
Consolidated Financial Statements and EES Consulting statements and evidence, so please explain why 
there are these substantial differences in reporting to the Commission, shareholders and the general 
public.  

1.5.5. What would the energy cost have been for FortisBC if the company’s own production facilities had 
been able to provide 100 percent of the 734 MW of capacity and 100 percent of the 406 MWa Average 
Energy, and how would this have impacted the cost of service to all customers, and residential customers 
in particular, at price per kWh?
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1.5.6. Using Minimum System and real time consumption data, how would the average cost per kWh 
(including Basic Charge, all fees and charges, but excluding taxes) have varied between all six sources of 
energy for a residential customer? 

1.5.7. The energy rate for Nelson Wholesale Transmission is stated as 4.501 cents per kWh in Appendix L 
– “2017 Rate Change Summary”. What is the cost of delivery per kWh for this customer and how much per 
kWh are they charged for all of their cost of service requirements?

Long Term Debt As A Factor Of Customer Cost

1.6. Attached please find Exhibit 3. Please complete and confirm the accuracy of the company’s assets, 
long term debts and debt to equity ratio for 1987, 1999 and 2017.

1.7. With reference to Exhibit 2, using Minimum System and real time consumption data, please state the 
cost per kWh to the residential customer for paying down and servicing of the company’s current long term 
debt of $729 million (p 3 and note 11 p 21). 

1.8. Attached please find Exhibit 4, and with reference to Exhibit 2 (note 11, p 21), what is the cost to 
FortisBC customers for Series G and Series I Secured Debentures, from inception to term?

1.9. Does the fact that some $50 million in secured debentures are coming to term on December 1st, 2021 
and August 28th, 2023 have anything to do with the decision of FortisBC to increase the residential 
customer Basic Charge from $32.09 now to $37.39 in 2023?  

1.9.1. With reference to Exhibit 2, between December 31st, 2016 and 2017 total assets grew by $45 million:
from 2.144 billion to $2.189 billion (p 3), and between the same period long term debt grew by $75 million: 
from $654 million to $729 million (p 3). Why was $35 million in operational debt converted to long term debt
on December 4th, 2017 and what will the additional cost of $75 million in long term debt at 4% for 32 years 
be to the ratepayers?

1.9.2. With reference to Exhibit 2, capital expenditure in 2017 ($98 million) increased markedly as 
compared to 2016 ($69 Million), and is forecast to increase to $104 (note1) million in 2018 - far ahead of 
annual depreciation ($62 million 2017/$57 million 2016/pp 4-5, notes 6-8, pp 15-19 and note 17, pp 28-29 
& note1 “2018-2022 Capital Forecast by Segment” & “Capital Expenditures Exceeding Expectations”, 2017 
Fourth Quarter, Earnings Conference Call, February 15, 2018 – pp 25-26). Is this affordable and 
appropriate given that electricity sales have only grown by 2.86% since 2014?

1.9.2.1. In note 19 of the 2017 Consolidated Revenue Statement (p 31), long term debt is stated as having 
a “Carrying Value” of $735 million and an “Estimated Fair Value” of $902 million. While the 2017 “Carrying 
Value” reflects the $75 million issue of debentures in December 2017, as compared to December 31st, 
2016, the “Estimated Fair Value” is $111 million higher than 2016. Why the difference and what impact will 
such a difference have on cost of service to ratepayers?   

1.9.3. Was the decision to roll over $35 million in operational debt in 2017 related to only raising the 
residential rate by .17% in 2018?

1.9.4. What have been the key drivers behind ongoing capitalization, and would some of these 
expenditures have been better recorded as operational and maintenance ones rather than capital 
investment projects per se?
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1.9.4.1. Please, for example, explain why $85 million in software expenditures (note 7, p 16) are being 
treated as capital costs rather than operational ones, and why Occupational Health and Safety 
expenditures with regard Worksafe BC requirements are not also treated as operational expenditures?

Exceedance Of 2014-2019 PBR Regulated Plan And Contradiction With Fortis Inc Stated Investment 
Goals

1.10. With reference to 3.1, “Treatment of capital expenditures in excess of the dead band”, FortisBC Inc 
Annual Review for 2018 Rates, Order G-38-18, it is noted that:   

“The Panel is concerned that the capital spending in excess of the dead band is expected to be an ongoing
issue for the remainder of the PBR term. As a result, and with consideration to the concerns expressed by 
the interveners in this proceeding regarding capital, the Panel considers that additional capital reporting is 
required in the next annual review application”.  

1.10.1. How has the current 2014 to 2019 Performance Based Ratemaking (PBR) plan ensured that the 
right regulatory control has been provided to ensure efficient use of capital investment to the benefit of all 
rate classes and the residential class in particular?

1.10.1.1. Are not the stated capital investment objectives of Fortis Inc for “FortisBC Electric” in direct 
contradiction with the stated goals of the Commission-directed 2014 to 2019 PBR, which Fortis Inc projects
as a $104 million injection of capital into “FortisBC Inc” in 2018 (“2018-2022 Capital Forecast by Segment” 
& “Capital Expenditures Exceeding Expectations”, 2017 Fourth Quarter, Earnings Conference Call, 
February 15, 2018 – pp 25-26)?

1.10.2 Please list all of the capital projects to which the current long term debt of $729 million are 
associated, listing the amount for each capital project and the cost to the ratepayers for that capital 
borrowing, explaining exactly how these investments have benefited ratepayers rather than simply 
providing dividends to Fortis Inc and their shareholders. 

 1.10.3. Please state how much of the current long term debt of $729 million is actually rolled over 
operational debt, what is commonly understood to be a structural operational deficit, and please state what 
the decision to convert structural operating debt into long term debt has and is costing the ratepayers.

1.10.4. Using both the Minimum System and real time consumption data, please restate the paying down 
and servicing of this $729 million long term debt – first as a cost per kWh to all the customer classes and 
then as a cost per kWh to the residential customer class.

1.10.5. How much of the current long term debt of $729 million is actually owned by a Fortis company or a 
wholly owned subsidiary of a Fortis company?

1.10.6. Please list each company and how much dollars ($) of the long term debt they hold?

1.10.7. Fortis Inc, parent company to FortisBC Inc, has consistently stated to its shareholders that it has a 
commitment to increase the value of the annual dividends by 6% (“Adjusted Earnings Per Share”, “Average
annual dividend growth through 2022 targeted at - 6%”, “Post Tax Reform Rate Base”, 2017 Fourth 
Quarter, Earnings Conference Call, February 15, 2018 – pp 8, 9 &16). What is the customer cost impact of 
increasing long term debt as a means to maintain the high dividend payout ratio (>95%) on the formula by 
which residential customer rates, all rates, are set?
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Rate Increases Versus Consumer Price Index

1.11. Attached as Exhibit 5 please find a bar graph of West Kootenay Power annual rate increases as 
compared to the increase in Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the years 1973 to 1993.

1.11.1. Please complete this bar graph out to 2017.

1.11.2. Please construct a table that shows the all in cost (including Basic Charge and all fees and charges,
excluding taxes) per kWh for the residential class for the years 1973 to 2017, and then add two columns 
showing both the annual % rate increase and the annual CPI % increase for each year.

Residential Heat Accounts

1.12. Attached please find Exhibit 6, a graph of residential heat accounts for the years 1984 to 2004, taken 
from a BCUC IR#1 response by West Kootenay Power of October 18th, 1999. Please complete the graph to
2017.

1.12.1. Using this data, please show in a table what the average cost of service, both in terms of total 
annual cost and in cost per kWh (excluding taxes) was for electric heat customers for each year, as 
compared to all non-electric heat customers within the residential class. It is noted that EES Consulting Inc 
has extrapolated Residential w/o Net Metering (NM) and with Net Metering data in Schedules 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 
1.4, 1.5, 2.1, 2.2, 3.3, 3.4, 4.3, 6.2, 6.3, 6.4, 7.1, 8.1, 8.2, 8.3, 8.4 and 8.5. It is therefore assumed that the 
same kind of extrapolation can be done for residential w/o electric heat and electric heat residential 
customers, especially as it is noted that EES was the consultant who helped create the original graph in 
1999.

Basic Charge As A Customer Cost

1.13. Please create a table that shows the change in the costs that are used to create the Basic Charge for 
the years 1987 to 2017, then show in a separate column what that cost would be for all customers per year,
followed by a column showing what the percentage increase is for each year, followed by the actual cost 
per year for each residential customer, along with another column showing the percentage increase and a 
final column showing the CPI index for that year.

Cost Of Service By Amount Of kWh Consumed

1.14. Using the Minimum System and real time consumption data, please state the all in (Basic Charge, all 
fees and charges, excluding taxes) per kWh cost of selling/delivering power to residential customers in 
2017 who used on average:

a) 2 kWh per day

b) 33 kWh per day

c) 100 kWh per day.

Time Of Use Proposal

1.15. Attached please find Exhibit 7 – a compilation of the proposed Time-of-Use (TOU) rates by time of 
day and time of year. In increments of one hour, please show the residential class rate of consumption as a
percentage of total consumption for those rate slots as they are laid out in Exhibit 6.
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1.15.1. Noting that 59(2)(a) of the Utilities Commission Act (UCA) states that:

“(2) A public utility must not

(a) as to rate or service, subject any person or locality, or a particular description of traffic, to an undue 
prejudice or disadvantage”

Please then show, in the same increments as presented in Exhibit 6 and answered in one hour increments 
in 1.15, a breakdown of consumption within the residential class as a percentage of the overall residential 
consumption, the percentage of consumption by postal code areas for the Similkameen, Boundary, 
Okanagan, West Kootenay and V0G 1M0.

1.15.2. In 1990 the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission stated:

“The Commission rejects the company's proposal to allocate demand-related costs on the basis of a 

single peak day.  A figure averaging several days for several years is more likely to avoid wide swings from 
year to year due to unusual weather conditions that are unlikely to occur frequently” (Docket No. UG-
901459, Third Supp. Order, 1990, p 8).

Over how many years of data did EES Consulting determine the proposed TOU residential class rate?  

2. Net Metering And Other Cost of Service Class Analysis In The Schedules

At Schedule 1.1, EES states that the “Customer Cost $/Per Customer/Month” is 21% more expensive for 
NM customers than Non-NM residential customers and that the “Demand Charge $/KW” was 16.1% 
cheaper, the “Average Energy Cost$/kWh” 1.4% more expensive, and the combined “Average 
Energy+Demand Cost$/kWh” was 11% more expensive, resulting in a “Combined Average Cost$/kWh” that
is 4.7% more expensive.

2.1. Please explain why, if the “Demand Charge $/KW” is 16.1% cheaper and the “Average Energy 
Cost$/kWh” is only 1.4% more expensive, how the “Average Energy+Demand Cost $/kWh” was 11% more 
expensive for NM customers than Non-NM residential customers.

2.1.1. Please explain why Customer Direct Charges, the “Customer Cost $/Per Customer/Month”, is 21% 
more expensive for NM customers than Non-NM residential customers.

2.1.2. Please explain why the “Average Energy Cost$/kWh” varies between class in schedule 1.1, and why 
the Lighting class costs are 330% higher than for overall average cost for all classes.

2.1.3. Please explain how Irrigation, Wholesale Primary and Wholesale Transmission can have “Average 
Energy Cost$/kWh” that are lower than the cost of purchasing energy from BC Hydro under the RS 3808 
rate in 2017, especially if EES is using RS 3808 as the surrogate cost for both purchase and production of 
the overall power supply under the Minimum System methodology.

2.2. At Schedule 2.1, EES states that the Functional Cost for NM customers compared to non-NM 
residential customers is 31.6% cheaper for production/demand, 16.4% cheaper for transmission, 3.1% 
cheaper for distribution and the same for production/energy.

2.2.1. Please explain why the energy only cost is 11.1% more expensive for NM customers compared to 
Non-NM residential customers, especially when individual demand charges are cheaper and energy 
charges are the same.
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2.2.2. Please explain why the Lighting class transmission revenue requirement is 35.3% of the total 
revenue requirement for all classes.

2.2.3. Please explain why Wholesale Transmission ends up with a negative Distribution revenue 
requirement.

2.2.4. Please explain why, when NM and Non-NM residential customers have a $KW revenue requirement 
that is 34.3% and 21.7% respectively cheaper than $KW for all classes, the Average Cost per kWh is 
32.5% and 15.2% respectively more expensive than the kWh revenue requirements for all classes.

2.2.5. Please explain why the Lighting class has a revenue requirement that is nearly double the kWh 
revenue requirement for all classes.

2.3. Please explain why the Energy (PE) $/kWh and $Customer/Month Rate Base Unit Cost in Schedule 
2.2 are more expensive for NM than for Non-NM residential customers.

2.3.1. Please explain why the Energy (PE) $/kWh Rate Base Unit Cost for all other classes is anywhere 
from 9% to 20% cheaper than for the Non-NM residential class, and anywhere from 12.7% to 24% cheaper
than the NM customer cost.

2.4. Please explain what the terms mean, and why in Schedule 6.2 the Customer class is allocated more 
than 65% in NCPS, CUST, CUSTW, CUSTR, MINSYSP, MINSYSC, MINSYST and RBD.

2.4.1. Please explain what the terms mean, and why in Schedule 6.2 the Customer class is allocated more 
than 50% in CP1, CP2, CP4, TCP1, TCP2, NCPP, REV RB, RBT, RBT-D, RBGP, OMAG, GPLT and 
NETPLT.

Time Of Use In The Schedules

2.5. At page 36 EES states that between 2009 and 2017 ”...the total [load] growth was 47 MW in the winter,
or about 0.8% per year. For the summer peak, the growth was 73 MW, or about 1.5% per year. This 
indicates that the summer peak is moving closer to the level of the winter peak, and that FortisBC system 
planning will continue to need to recognize the growth in the summer peak”.

The inference based on creation of a three tier residential TOU proposal is that the main driving force 
behind that load growth is the Residential class. Schedule 6.3 however may reveal a different statistical 
picture. Fig 1 on page 36 reveals a second or summer peak of June through August, whereas the proposed
residential TOU only has a peak demand rate for July and August.

2.5.1. For the purposes of Fig 1 (EES Study, p 36), then Schedule 6.3, and the proposed residential TOU 
rate, please define the duration of Summer and why, if it is, it is different.

2.5.2. Please explain why the residential class in Schedule 6.3 is assigned 52.57% “Total Annual ICP” and 
50.39% of the “2 Winter + 2 Summer” “Coincident Peak Demand Allocation - Production”.

2.5.3. With reference to Schedule 6.3 please explain why, if the residential class is only allocated 44.5% of 
the Power Supply in Summer, compared to 47.26% annually and 51.67% in Winter, there is a need to 
charge a peak TOU rate in July and August between Noon and 9.00 PM.

2.5.4. With reference to Schedule 6.3, given that FortisBC is ostensibly trying to lower winter peak demand,
why, when Wholesale Transmission allocation is double in winter than in summer, is the company not 
charging a higher winter rate to Wholesale Transmission?
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2.5.5. With reference to Schedule 6.3, if FortisBC is concerned about load growth in summer, why is the 
company not focusing its attention on the fact that Large Primary allocation is 53.7% higher in summer than
winter, Commercial 29.1% and Small Commercial 12.4%, but FortisBC is instead focusing on residential 
power consumption which is actually 13.9% lower in summer?

Schedule Questions Again

2.6. Please create a table from Schedule 6.5 data comparing Non-Coincident Peak Demand Allocation with
real time consumption.

2.7. With reference to Schedule 7.1, please explain why, when the residential class is forecast to use only 
44.2% of the “Forecast kWh”, it will pay approximately 74% for “Customer Charge Revenues”.

2.7.1. Given the introduction of AMI, please state the decreased annual and accumulated cost of meter 
reading, and then explain why Basic Charge costs for residential customers, in particular, have not 
decreased also.

2.8. With reference to Schedule 8.1, why are there suddenly 10,052 more residential, 812 more small 
commercial and 333 more commercial customers between January 16 and February 16, 2017?   

2.9. With reference to Schedule 8.2, between November 1st, 2017 and January 31st, 2018 our household 
solar PV system offset 11.15% of the approximately 9 kWh daily average we used from the FortisBC grid, 
by transferring 1 kWh per day of production onto the company’s grid.

In contrast EES states at Schedule 8.2 that NM customers historically have an overall lower “Individual 
Load Factor” on an annual basis than Non-NM residential customers, but a higher “Individual Load Factor” 
for the November, December and January billing periods.  

2.10. What is the significance to cost allocations and revenue requirements by class to the fact that the 
residential class has the lowest “Individual Load Factor” at 21.4% annually, as compared to Wholesale 
Primary at 68.8%, Large Commercial Transmission 65.1%, Irrigation 59.5%, Large Commercial Primary at 
56.7%, Wholesale Transmission 50.4%, Commercial 50.3%, Lighting 50.1% and Small Commercial at 
37.5%?

2.10.1. What is the significance to cost allocations and revenue requirements that NM customers have a 
lower “Individual Load Factor” at 20.9% than Non-NM residential customers at 21.4% annually, and a 
significantly lower “Individual Load Factor” for the billing periods between February and October?

3. Meter Reading, Radio-Off Manual Read Fee, Estimates, Arrears And Disconnecting Customers

The Kaslo Seniors Community Association – Branch #81 believes that all customers have a right to know 
and understand how Fortis BC’s policy is formulated for delivery of service and the cost of that service. 
Further, under definitions, the UCA states that:

"rate" includes

(a) a general, individual or joint rate, fare, toll, charge, rental or other compensation of a public utility,

(b) a rule, practice, measurement, classification or contract of a public utility or corporation relating to a 
rate, and

(c) a schedule or tariff respecting a rate;
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"service" includes

(a) the use and accommodation provided by a public utility,

(b) a product or commodity provided by a public utility, and

(c) the plant, equipment, apparatus, appliances, property and facilities employed by or in connection with a 
public utility in providing service or a product or commodity for the purposes in which the public utility is 
engaged and for the use and accommodation of the public”.

Further, with respect to sections 39 and 41 of the UCA:

“No discrimination or delay in service

39 On reasonable notice, a public utility must provide suitable service without undue discrimination or 
undue delay to all persons who

(a) apply for service,

(b) are reasonably entitled to it, and

(c) pay or agree to pay the rates established for that service under this Act

No discontinuance without permission

41 A public utility that has been granted a certificate of public convenience and necessity or a franchise, or 
that has been deemed to have been granted a certificate of public convenience and necessity, and has 
begun any operation for which the certificate or franchise is necessary, or in respect of which the certificate
is deemed to have been granted, must not cease the operation or a part of it without first obtaining the 
permission of the commission”.

3.1.1. With regard my “In-Camera Affidavit and Exhibits A, B and C”, does FortisBC have a person or 
persons specifically trained and assigned to deal with accounts that the company deems are in arrears?

3.1.2. Does FortisBC have a BCUC-approved policy on how to handle customer accounts that are in 
arrears during the winter months, from the beginning of October through the end of March?

3.1.3. With regard “In Camera Exhibit A and B”, does FortisBC have a policy of contacting customers 
before the decision is made to cut a customer off from their electrical service delivery, and does that 
assessment include a review of a customer’s payment history?

3.1.4. Does FortisBC have a policy for reimbursing customers for property damage when electrical service 
is cut off without due process and/or due cause?

3.2.1. With regard “In Camera affidavit and Exhibit C”, how many residential customers in the V0G IM0 
postal code area have opted to pay a “Radio-Off Manual Read Fee”?

3.2.2. How many times during 2017 did FortisBC opt to not read the meters of these customers but still 
charge the fee?

3.2.3. How many times during 2017 did FortisBC opt to estimate the billing for these meters rather than 
manually read the meter?
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3.2.4. Of the customers in the VOG 1M0 portion of the service area, for what percentage of them did the 
company try to raise their Equal Payment Plan amount based on estimates of consumption rather than 
actual readings of the meters? 

3.2.5. How many times did FortisBC end up charging late payments and/or attempting to cut a customer off
from electrical service because of billing disputes as a result of not reading meters of “Radio-Off” and/or 
“Equal Payment Plan” customers?

3.2.6. Is FortisBC prepared to direct staff to stop the practice of raising Equal Plan Payment charges before
reading the meter, thus ending the practice of raising Equal Payment Plan charges based on estimated 
consumption rather than actual customer consumption?

3.2.7. With reference to “In-Camera” Exhibit C, can FortisBC please explain how, when the now BC 
Ministry of Social Development and Poverty Reduction takes over utility payments for a family receiving BC
Social assistance and/or BC Disability Assistance, the company still ends up charging late payment fees.

3.2.8. With further reference to my “In-Camera Affidavit and Exhibit C”, is FortisBC aware that customers 
who end up in arrears who are on BC Social Assistance and/or BC Disability Assistance are eligible for a 
hardship allowance, as an alternative to FortisBC garnisheeing the monthly Assistance cheque to deal with 
any arrears? 

3.2.9. Under AMI, is FortisBC now able to move the billing date for customers on fixed incomes, such as 
those on pensions, income assistance and disability assistance, so that the billing date is after the arrival of
monthly cheques?

3.2.10. If yes, does FortisBC regularly notify customers of the possibility of moving the billing date through 
its website and/or in circulars that are mailed out to customers with their bills?

3.2.11. With reference to my “In-Camera Affidavit” where a customer household contains a person who is 
on BC Disability Assistance or a CPP Disability Pension, who has a medical condition that is exacerbated 
by installation of an AMI meter, would FortisBC be willing to waive “Radio-Off” fees where a doctor supplies
a prescription that describes that medical condition as requiring that an AMI meter be turned off?

3.2.12. In the alternative, if the answer is no to 3.2.11 above, would FortisBC instead be willing to waive the
charges and fees to move the AMI meter away from the residence?

4. Municipal Basic Charges, Net Metering, Micro Standing Offer Program And Lighting Service

Between July of 2016 and July of 2017, while factoring in the value of a Homeowners Property Grant, our 
household’s property taxes rose by 35.5%. As property owners trying to live on fixed incomes, whose 
private pensions (where they exist) are often not tied to the rate of inflation, seniors are very interested in 
any savings that local governments can make in the cost of delivery of services to us, as that means either 
lower property taxes and/or a lower rate of increase in property taxes. In short we are very interested in 
municipal and regional district governments being able to maximize cost savings for electricity purchase, 
and even producing some to further offset cost of electricity.  

Further, we would like FortisBC to answer the following questions within the context of meeting the stated 
goals and objectives of section 2 (a), (d), (k), (i) and (m) of the 2010 British Columbia Clean Energy Act 
(CEA), which states, in part:
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“The following comprise British Columbia's energy objectives: 

(a) to achieve electricity self-sufficiency;...

(d) to use and foster the development in British Columbia of innovative technologies that support energy 
conservation and efficiency and the use of clean or renewable resources;

(k) to encourage economic development and the creation and retention of jobs;

(l) to foster the development of first nation and rural communities through the use and development of 
clean or renewable resources;

(m) to maximize the value, including the incremental value of the resources being clean or renewable 
resources, of British Columbia's generation and transmission assets for the benefit of British Columbia;...” 

4.1. In his oral submission to the procedural conference, the CAO for the Corporation of the Village of 
Kaslo raised the fact that the corporation had 22 separate electrical service accounts with FortisBC, each 
paying a separate Basic Charge. With the advent of AMI, can these multiple accounts be consolidated into 
fewer multiple metered accounts or even one overall account?

4.1.1. If yes, to what number of accounts, and if no, why cannot the number of accounts be reduced from 
22?

4.1.2. If yes, what would be the total amount of dollar ($) savings in Basic Charges and other fees during a 
calendar year, that could of course then be passed on to taxpayers in improved services or property tax 
reductions? 

4.1.3. Would there also be a reduction in FortisBC’s administrative costs if there were fewer than 22 
separate accounts for the Village of Kaslo?

4.2. Is FortisBC aware that in 1994/95 West Kootenay Power offered the Village of Kaslo a two tiered rate 
for firm production of power from a micro-hydro system owned and operated to run off the Village’s water 
system?

4.2.1. Would FortisBC consider offering the Village of Kaslo a firm contract for purchase of power from a 
micro-hydro system operated and run off the Village’s water system similar to the contract offered by BC 
Hydro to the Village of Nakusp?

4.2.2. Has FortisBC, like BC Hydro, had an ongoing Micro-Standing Offer program since 2009 that 
purchases power produced with a nameplate capacity of between 100 KW and 1 MW?

4.3. Can FortisBC confirm that, unlike BC Hydro who has a firm contract to purchase electricity from a 1 
MW capacity system at 22 different rates averaging 11 cents per kWh with the City of Kimberley, the 
company has turned down an offer by the Village of Slocan to produce and sell power from a micro-hydro 
system built, and owned and operated, by the Village?

4.3.1. If the answer to 4.3 above is affirmed, does FortisBC believe that the goals and objectives as stated 
in section 2 of CEA, namely sections (a), (d), (k), (I) and (m), do not apply to the Company?
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4.3.2. Since 2007 and the introduction of the BC Energy Plan, how many local governments and 
community organizations has FortisBC partnered with in creating Net Metering and Micro-Standing Offer 
contracts, as BC Hydro has done with, for example, Hudson’s Hope, who will save approximately $70,000 
per year off their electricity bill through Net Metering?

4.3.3 How many local government, municipal, regional district and school board direct sale electricity 
accounts does FortisBC currently have?

4.4. Could the Village of Kaslo set up a solar PV farm at the Village-owned airport and use the power so 
produced to offset the cost of their Street Lighting and other FortisBC accounts, Net Metering the Net 
Excess Generation (NEG) to the FortisBC grid when production exceeds consumption, and then offsetting 
consumption at other times to attempt achievement of Net-Zero in accordance with 2 (a) of the CEA?

Wheeling Power

4.5. Under “Wholesale Transmission Rates”, EES states at pages 45 and 46 that:

“At the time, the wholesale transmission tariffs were first developed, they were set as retail wheeling rates 
for customers that could potentially acquire their power supply from an alternative source and use FortisBC
for transmission and distribution delivery service”.

Further, under Schedule 103 at page 47, EES states:

“The current rate is $.000126 for kWh for transmission voltage and $0.00132 per kWh for primary 
voltage...Based on NCP demand this would result in a rate of $0.01699 per KW month, $.0385 per KW 
week, $0.0077 per KW per day and $0.00031 per KW hour. If you wanted to be consistent with BC Hydro’s
format as well as what is proposed for other services, the rate would be $0.32 per MW of reserved capacity
per hour.”

Am I correct in understanding that the Village of Kaslo could use this rate to set up a Net Metering and/or 
Micro-Standing Offer Program contract with BC Hydro as an alternative to using the electrical services of 
FortisBC?

4.5.1. Or, alternatively, could the Village of Kaslo use this transmission rate to contract purchase of power 
produced within the V0G 1M0 portion of the FortisBC service area that the company does not wish to 
purchase for itself?

4.5.2. If the answer to either 4.5. or 4.5.1. above is no, please state the legal basis on which FortisBC can 
refuse to transmit power from or to another electrical supplier within or outside of its service area.

5. Wholesale Discount

5.1 At page 44, under “Wholesale Discount”, EES states:

“To determine the appropriate discount for transmission, the COSA was changed to reflect all rate 40 
customers as taking service at transmission rather than primary voltage. This change would reduce the 
allocated revenue requirement for the class from 44.2 million to $36.1 million. This is 18.4% reduction in 
the revenue requirement and a 15.9% reduction compared to current rates.”

Please explain, using the real time data consumption, why these rates do not amount to a subsidy for Rate 
40 and Rate 41 customer classes?  
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6. Schedule 105

At page 47 EES states that: “If you were to take the average cost of FortisBC’s own generation (capacity 
portion only) per KW it would result in a comparable charge of $9.31 per MW per hour”.

Earlier EES states on the same page: “BC Hydro’s rate is $6.37 per MW per hour with the same 2% 
minimum”.

And originally on the same page EES states: “The current rate is $13.62 per MWh of generating capacity 
requested, which must be a minimum of 2% of load’.

6.1. Am I correct in understanding that FortisBC’s per hour KW cost is 9.31 cents, and that for BC Hydro is 
6.37 cents – making the FortisBC rate 46.2% higher than BC Hydro?

6.2. And am I correct in understanding that the current rate of 13.62 cents KW per hour, more than double 
that of BC Hydro, is a direct result of the company having to purchase half of its power on long and short 
term contracts and on the open market?

6.2.1. If the above hypothesis in 6.2. is not accurate, please explain why the FortisBC rate is more than 
double that of BC Hydro.

7. Rate Schedule 103 – Scheduling, System Control And Dispatch Service

At 7.4.1 on page 98 of its application the company states:

“Scheduling, System Control and Dispatch Service is required to schedule the movement of power 
through, out of, within, or into FBC’s service territory. The Transmission Customer must purchase this 
service if taking supply under RS100, RS101 or RS102. FBC has reviewed the costs associated with this 
service and has determined that a single rate for all classes of customers is most appropriate as the cost of
providing the service is not dependent on the customer class. The existing rate for RS 103 is $0.00126 per 
kWh. The proposed rate is $0.00031 per kW of Reserved Capacity per hour. The units are changed from 
energy to capacity per hour to more closely follow industry practise including the BC Hydro tariff RS 03”. 

7.1. Am I correct in understanding that any customer in any class, or a group of customers within a class, 
could contract to wheel power within or from without or to without for the proposed rate of $0.00031 per KW
of “Reserved Capacity” per hour?

7.2. Am I correct in understanding that “Reserved Capacity” refers to the number of KW that can be 
reserved to be transmitted on FortisBC’s transmission and distribution system?

7.3. Could, for example, two FortisBC customers of different classes purchase the right to transfer power 
one to another using the FortisBC transmission system with this rate?

7.4. Could, for example, a FortisBC customer, or group of FortisBC customers from any class, arrange to 
sell power to BC Hydro and use the FortisBC transmission and distribution system to do so?
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8. Alternatives To FortisBC’s Rate Design Proposal For The Residential Class

In the recent FortisBC Inc. Application for Reconsideration and Variance of Order G-199-16 FBC Net 
Metering Program Tariff Update hearing, the company vociferously argued that it had the right to remove a 
customer who no longer fitted within the correct profile for a customer in that class, and the Commission, in 
Order G-63-18, confirms the company’s position.

8.1. Has FortisBC ever considered removing residential customers from the RS 01 rate tariff who consume 
above 20,000 kWh per year and placing them in the RS 20 Small Commercial tariff class instead, possibly 
removing those RS 20 Small Commercial customers who consume less than 20,000 kWh annually and 
placing them in the RS 01 rate tariff instead?

8.1.2. Why has FortisBC never placed a cap on the size of annual consumption allowed in the RS 01 tariff?

8.2. Does a residential customer who buys 1 kWh, buy half the capacity and time to consume a kWh of a 
customer who buys 2 kWh, such that a residential customer who consumes 100 kWh is consuming 
capacity and time that is 100 times more than a customer who consumes 1 kWh?

8.2.1. If 8.2. above is an accurate reflection of how residential consumption works, why not create a single 
postage stamp rate, without a Basic Charge, that simply charges a flat rate for each kWh?

8.3. In the context of 8.2.1. above, and noting that the Commission has confirmed that it does not have the 
jurisdiction to create a low income residential energy tariff rate, does FortisBC acknowledge that a 
residential customer household with an income of less than $20,000 per annum is going to have fewer 
discretionary dollars ($) to pay a proposed Basic Charge of $224.34 per annum than a residential customer
household with an income of $40,000 per annum?

8.3.1. Does FortisBC acknowledge that residential customer households, be they seniors, single persons 
on social assistance or disability assistance, and/or low income families in general (1 in 5 children in Kaslo 
live below the poverty line) with incomes of less than $20,000 per annum, who have to pay $224.34 per 
annum just to access the company’s electrical service, are financially challenged by any proposed rate 
design that increases the Basic Charge and the current tier 1 rate above the rate of inflation?

8.3.1.1. Does FortisBC acknowledge that any customer on a fixed income that is tied to the CPI rate of 
inflation, or to a lesser rate of increase, simply has to budget for purchase of fewer kWh of electricity if the 
Basic Charge and cost per kWh increase faster than their household income?

8.3.2. Attached is Exhibit 8. In 2017 BC Hydro charged a daily minimum of 18.99 cents per day, Nelson 
Hydro the equivalent of 25.69 cents per day and FortisBC 52.75 cents per day. By 2023 FortisBC’s Basic 
Charge will be at least 61.46 cents per day, which is a huge differential in the daily Basic Charge between 
West Kootenay utilities for residential customers on fixed pension incomes, social assistance and disability 
assistance in BC as their income does not vary depending on cost of living by location and cost of utilities.

Would FortisBC consider, instead, a minimum charge equivalent to 5 kWh per day, such that if a customer 
uses no kWh in a day they still pay for 5 kWh, if they use 4 kWh per day they still pay for 5 kWh, if they use 
5 kWh they pay for 5 kWh and if they use 6 kWh they pay for 6 kWh, and so on?
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8.3.3. Does FortisBC acknowledge that such a rate design would give low income residential customers 
cheaper access to electricity, without compromising a “postage stamp” rate design for all residential 
customers, while at the same time sending a clear price signal that the more electricity a customer uses the
more they will have to pay for that electricity as a whole?

8.4. Attached is Exhibit 9. How does the proposed FortisBC rate design help this Kaslo apartment 
residential electric heat customer deal with the overall cost of electricity?

8.4.1. Does FortisBC acknowledge that it is highly problematic for apartment dwelling electric heat 
customers within the company’s service area to learn that they would have paid 40.9% less in 2017 if they 
were adjacent BC Hydro customers?

8.5. Attached is Exhibit 10. How does the proposed FortisBC rate design help this Kaslo passive solar 
residential electric heat customer deal with the overall cost of electricity?

8.5.1. Does FortisBC acknowledge that it is highly problematic for a residential customer who builds a 
passive solar designed house and uses electric heat to learn that they would have paid 21.1% less in 2017 
if they were adjacent BC Hydro customers?

8.6. Attached is Exhibit 11. How does the proposed FortisBC rate design help this Kaslo tier 1/wood heat 
residential customer deal with an overall cost of electricity that sees their annual bill rise by 17% by 2023?

8.6.1. Does FortisBC acknowledge that it is highly problematic for a tier 1 residential customer to learn that 
their conservation efforts have come to nought, and that they would have paid 24.7% less in 2017 if they 
were adjacent BC Hydro customers?

8.7. Does FortisBC acknowledge that consistent variances between electric utility pricing, in the West 
Kootenay, places home based businesses and micro-businesses at a considerable competitive 
disadvantage if the company’s electrical service rates are continually going higher and higher above the 
adjacent BC Hydro and Nelson Hydro rates for the same level of service? 

All of which is respectfully submitted,
Andy Shadrack
For Kaslo Senior Citizens Association – Branch #81 
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT  
 

The accompanying annual consolidated financial statements of FortisBC Inc. (the “Corporation”) have been 
prepared by management, who are responsible for the integrity of the information presented including the 
amounts that must, of necessity, be based on estimates and informed judgments. These annual 
consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States.  
 
In meeting its responsibility for the reliability and integrity of the annual consolidated financial statements, 
management has developed and maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides for the 
necessary internal controls to ensure transactions are properly authorized and recorded, assets are 
safeguarded and liabilities are recognized. The systems of the Corporation focus on the need for training of 

qualified and professional employees and the effective communication of management guidelines and 
policies. The effectiveness of the internal controls of FortisBC Inc. is evaluated on an ongoing basis.   
 
The Board of Directors oversees management’s responsibilities for financial reporting through an Audit and 
Risk Committee (the “Audit Committee”) which is composed of three independent directors and two 
directors who are officers of related companies. The Audit Committee oversees the external audit of the 

Corporation’s annual consolidated financial statements and the accounting and financial reporting and 

disclosure processes and policies of the Corporation. The Audit Committee meets with management, the 
shareholder’s auditors and the internal auditor to discuss the results of the external audit, the adequacy of 
the internal accounting controls and the quality and integrity of financial reporting. The Corporation’s annual 
consolidated financial statements are reviewed by the Audit Committee with each of management and the 
shareholder’s auditors before the statements are recommended to the Board of Directors for approval. The 
shareholder’s auditors have full and free access to the Audit Committee.   
 

The Audit Committee has the duty to review the adoption of, and changes in, accounting principles and 
practices which have a material effect on the Corporation’s annual consolidated financial statements and to 
review and report to the Board of Directors on policies relating to the accounting and financial reporting and 
disclosure processes.  
 
The Audit Committee has the duty to review financial reports requiring Board of Directors’ approval prior to 

the submission to securities commissions or other regulatory authorities, to assess and review management 
judgments material to reported financial information and to review shareholder’s auditors’ independence 

and auditors’ fees.   
 
The 2016 annual consolidated financial statements were reviewed by the Audit Committee and, on their 
recommendation, were approved by the Board of Directors of FortisBC Inc.    
 

Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors appointed by the shareholder of FortisBC Inc. upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, have performed an audit of the 2016 annual consolidated financial 
statements and their report follows. 

  

(Signed by) (Signed by) 

 Michael Mulcahy Ian Lorimer 
President and Chief Executive Officer  Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer 

 
Kelowna, Canada 
February 9, 2017 

 
  



A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 

To the Shareholder of 
FortisBC Inc. 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of FortisBC Inc., which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the consolidated statements of earnings,
changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.
 
Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, and for such internal control 
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of FortisBC Inc. as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.
 

Vancouver, Canada
February 9, 2017   Chartered Professional Accountants
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FortisBC Inc. 

Consolidated Balance Sheets (US GAAP) 

As at December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

   
ASSETS                          2016 2015 

Current assets 
  

Cash and cash equivalents $             -                         $         2.3                         
Accounts receivable (notes 4 and 21) 54.6 52.0 

Prepaid expenses 1.5 1.3 
Other assets (note 5) 0.8 0.8 
Regulatory assets (note 8) 18.1 7.0 
Assets held for sale (note 24) - 8.5 
Income taxes receivable - 5.7 

 75.0 77.6 
Property, plant and equipment (notes 6 and 24) 1,454.9 1,437.1 
Intangible assets (note 7) 54.9 54.9 

Regulatory assets (note 8) 317.1 308.9 
Other assets (notes 5 and 15) 6.4 5.8 
Goodwill (note 9) 234.8 234.8 

 $  2,143.1 $  2,119.1  

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY   

Current liabilities 
  

Credit facilities (note 20) $       93.6 $       55.9 

Accounts payable and other current liabilities (notes 10, 15 and 21) 64.3 70.8                      
Income taxes payable 5.5 - 
Current portion of long-term debt (note 11) - 25.0 
Current portion of capital lease obligations (note 12) 0.6 0.6 
Regulatory liabilities (note 8) 15.2 7.4 

 179.2 159.7 

Long-term debt (note 11) 654.1 654.0 

Capital lease obligations (note 12) 315.8 312.5 
Regulatory liabilities (note 8) 7.8 15.3 
Other liabilities (note 13) 2.2 2.2 
Pension and other post-employment benefits (note 15) 64.8 62.7 
Deferred income taxes (note 18) 151.6 140.8 

 1,375.5 1,347.2 
Shareholder’s equity   

Common shares (note 14) 219.2 219.2 
Additional paid-in capital (note 9) 321.8 321.8 

Retained earnings 226.6 230.9 

 767.6 771.9 

 $  2,143.1 $  2,119.1     

 
 
Commitments (note 22) 

Contingencies (note 23) 

Approved on behalf of the Board: 

 
 
(Signed by) Brenda Eaton (Signed by) Michael Mulcahy 
 Director   Director 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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FortisBC Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Earnings (US GAAP)  

For the years ended December 31  
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

  
 

 2016 2015 

Revenues (note 21)   
Electricity revenue $  335.3 $  325.7 
Other revenue  25.2 20.2 

 360.5 345.9 

Expenses    
Power purchase costs (note 21) 132.4 116.0 
Operating costs (note 21) 63.8 64.9 
Property and other taxes 15.5 15.2 

Depreciation and amortization (notes 6, 7 and 8) 56.9 57.4 

 268.6 253.5 

Operating income 91.9 92.4 

Other income (expenses) (notes 21 and 24) 0.8 (0.6) 

Finance charges (notes 16 and 21) 37.3 38.7 

Earnings before income taxes 55.4 53.1 

Income taxes (note 18) 6.7 7.5 

Net earnings $   48.7      $   45.6      

 
 
 

FortisBC Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity (US GAAP)  

For the years ended December 31 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

 

Common 
Shares   

Additional 

Paid-in 
Capital   

Retained 
Earnings   Total 

As at December 31, 2014 $  219.2  
 

$   321.8  
 

 $  206.8  
 

$   747.8  

Net earnings              -    

 

              -    

 

45.6 

 

45.6 

Dividends on common shares               -    
 

              -    
 

 (21.5) 
 

 (21.5) 

As at December 31, 2015 219.2   321.8       230.9    771.9 

Net earnings -    
 

-    
 

48.7  48.7 

Dividends on common shares               -    
 

              -    
 

(53.0)  (53.0) 

As at December 31, 2016 $  219.2   $  321.8       $  226.6   $  767.6 

 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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FortisBC Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (US GAAP) 

For the years ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

 
 
 2016 2015 

Cash flows provided by (used for)   

Operating activities   

Net earnings $   48.7 $   45.6      
Adjustments for non-cash items   

Depreciation and amortization (notes 6, 7 and 8) 
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (note 24) 

56.9 
(0.7) 

57.4 
- 

Amortization of debt issuance costs (note 16) 0.2 0.2 

Impairment of assets held for sale (note 24) - 1.0 
Equity component of allowance for funds used during construction (0.2) (0.3) 
Deferred income taxes (note 18) (1.3) 0.6 

Change in long-term regulatory assets and liabilities 4.0 (4.6) 

Change in other assets and other liabilities 0.6 (0.8) 
Changes in non-cash working capital (note 17) (13.7) (4.1) 

 94.5 95.0 

Investing activities   
Property, plant and equipment (note 17) (68.9) (95.9) 
Intangible assets (note 17) (5.2) (8.0) 
Contributions in aid of construction 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment (note 24) 

8.4 
9.2 

7.1 
- 

Change in other assets and other liabilities - 0.3 

 (56.5) (96.5) 

Financing activities   
Net proceeds from credit facilities 37.7 24.0 

Debt issuance costs 
Repayment of debentures (note 11) 

          - 
(25.0) 

0.1 
- 

Dividends on common shares  (53.0) (21.5) 

 (40.3) 2.6 

   
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2.3) 1.1 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2.3 1.2 

   
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $     -         $     2.3         

 

 
Supplementary Information to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (note 17) 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Ruth
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1. DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS  

FortisBC Inc. (“FBC” or the “Corporation”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of FortisBC Pacific Holdings Inc. 
(“FortisBC Pacific”) which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Fortis Inc. (“Fortis”), a Canadian public 
company. 

FBC is an integrated, regulated electric utility operating in the southern interior of British Columbia (“BC”), 

serving approximately 169,600 customers directly and indirectly. The Corporation’s regulated business 
includes four hydroelectric generating plants with an aggregate capacity of 225 megawatts (“MW”), 
approximately 7,200 kilometers of transmission and distribution power lines, and a peak demand of 746 MW.   
 
In February 2016, FBC and its subsidiaries completed the sale of the 0395518 Power Partnership (formerly 
Walden Power Partnership) (“WPP”) non-regulated 16 MW run-of-river hydroelectric power plant assets and 
subsequently dissolved the partnership. Prior to the sale, the WPP non-regulated assets were reclassified from 

property, plant and equipment to assets held for sale on the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 

2015 (note 24). 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation  

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States (“US GAAP”). The consolidated financial statements 
statements include the accounts of the Corporation and its wholly-owned partnership and subsidiaries, 

0395518 B.C. Ltd. (formerly ESI Power-Walden Corporation Ltd.) and West Kootenay Power Ltd. All 
material inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated upon consolidation. 

An evaluation of subsequent events through February 9, 2017, the date these consolidated financial 
statements were available to be issued, was completed to determine whether any circumstances warranted 
recognition and disclosure of events or transactions in the consolidated financial statements as at December 
31, 2016. Subsequent events have been appropriately disclosed in these consolidated financial statements. 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. 

Regulation 

The Corporation is regulated by the British Columbia Utilities Commission (“BCUC”). Pursuant to the Utilities 
Commission Act (British Columbia), the BCUC regulates such matters as tariffs, rates, construction, 
operations, financing and regulatory accounting.  

The Corporation’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with US GAAP, 
including certain accounting treatments that differ from that for enterprises not subject to rate regulation. The 

impacts of rate regulation on the Corporation’s operations for the years ending December 31, 2016 and 2015 
are described in these “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”, and in note 3 “Regulatory Matters”, note 
6 “Property, Plant and Equipment”, note 7 “Intangible Assets”, note 8 “Regulatory Assets and Liabilities”,  note 
12 “Capital Lease Obligations”, note 13 “Other Liabilities”, note 15 “Employee Future Benefits”, note 16 
“Finance Charges”, and note 18 “Income Taxes”. 

When the BCUC issues decisions affecting the financial statements, the effects of the decision are usually 

recorded in the period in which the decision is received. In the event that a regulatory decision is received 

after the balance sheet date but before the consolidated financial statements are issued, the facts and 
circumstances are reviewed to determine whether or not it is a recognized subsequent event. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term deposits with maturities of three months or less from 
the date of deposit.  
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects management’s best estimate of losses on the accounts 
receivable balances. The Corporation maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts that is estimated based 
on a variety of factors including accounts receivable aging, historical experience and other currently 

available information, including events such as customer bankruptcy and current economic conditions. 

Interest is charged on overdue accounts receivable balances. Accounts receivable are charged-off in the period 
in which the receivable is deemed uncollectible. 

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 

The BCUC has the general power to include or exclude costs, revenues, losses or gains in the rates of a 
specified period, resulting in a change in the timing of accounting recognition from that which would have 

been applied in an unregulated company. Such change in timing gives rise to the recognition of regulatory 

assets and liabilities. Regulatory assets represent future revenues associated with certain costs incurred that 
will be, or are probable to be, recovered from customers in future periods through the rate-setting process. 
Regulatory liabilities represent future reductions or limitations of increases in revenue associated with 
amounts that will be, or are expected to be, refunded to customers through the rate-setting process. 

All amounts deferred as regulatory assets and liabilities are subject to regulatory approval. As such, the BCUC 
could alter the amounts subject to deferral, at which time the change would be reflected in the consolidated 
financial statements. For regulatory assets and liabilities which are amortized, the amortization is approved by 

the BCUC. Certain remaining recovery and settlement periods are those expected by management and the 
actual recovery or settlement periods could differ based on regulatory approval.  

Materials and Supplies 

Materials and supplies includes inventory held for day-to-day operations and for the maintenance of property, 
plant and equipment. Inventory held for construction or used only in connection with an item of property, 
plant and equipment is classified as property, plant and equipment. Inventory is measured at the lower of 

average cost and market value. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and unamortized 
contributions in aid of construction (“CIAC”). Cost includes all direct expenditures, betterments and 
replacements and as prescribed by the BCUC, an allocation of overhead costs and both a debt and an equity 
component of allowance for funds used during construction (“AFUDC”) at approved rates. Certain additions to 
property, plant and equipment are made with the assistance of CIACs from customers when the estimated 

revenue is less than the cost of providing service or when special equipment is needed to supply the 
customers’ specific requirements.  

Depreciation is based on rates approved by the BCUC and is calculated on a straight-line basis on the 
investment in property, plant and equipment commencing at the beginning of the year following when the 
asset is available for use. 

As approved by the BCUC, gains and losses on the sale or removal of property, plant and equipment are 
charged to accumulated depreciation. It is expected that any gains or losses charged to accumulated 

depreciation will be reflected in future depreciation expense when refunded or collected in customer rates. 

As approved by the BCUC, effective January 1, 2016, removal costs are collected as a component of 
depreciation on an accrual basis, with actual removal costs incurred drawing down the accrual balance. 
Removal costs are the direct costs incurred by the Corporation in taking assets out of service. For the 2015 
comparative figures and as approved by the BCUC, actual costs of removal and site restoration, net of 
salvage proceeds, are recorded against accumulated depreciation when incurred.  
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Leases 

Leases that transfer to the Corporation substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the 
leased item are capitalized at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Included as capital leases 
are any arrangements that qualify as leases by conveying the right to use a specific asset. 

Capital leases are amortized over the lease term, except where ownership of the asset is transferred at the 
end of the lease term, in which case capital leases are amortized over the estimated service life of the 
underlying asset. Where the BCUC has approved recovery of the arrangements as operating leases for rate-
setting purposes that would otherwise qualify as capital leases for financial reporting purposes, specifically the 
Brilliant Power Purchase Agreement (“BPPA”) and the Brilliant Terminal Station (“BTS”) included in note 12 
“Capital Lease Obligations”, the timing of the expense recognition related to the lease is modified to conform 
with the rate-setting process. Therefore, the total interest and depreciation expense recognized during a 

period equals the power purchase costs or operating lease rental expense included in allowable costs for rate-

making purposes during that period with the difference recognized as a regulatory asset to be recovered from 
customers over the term of the related arrangements. 

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in earnings on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. 

Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are comprised of right of ways and software not directly attributable to the operation of 

property, plant and equipment and are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Included in the cost of 
intangible assets are all direct expenditures, betterments and replacements and as prescribed by the BCUC, 
an allocation of overhead costs and both a debt and equity component of AFUDC at approved rates.  

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite 
lives are amortized over their useful lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that 
the intangible asset may be impaired. Amortization is based on rates approved by the BCUC and is calculated 

on a straight-line basis commencing at the beginning of the year following when the asset is available for 

use.  

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not subject to amortization and are tested for impairment 
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate the asset may be impaired. The 
useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether the 
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from 
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. 

No impairment provision has been determined for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.  

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets is measured by a comparison of 
the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the 
asset and eventual disposition. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows and 
eventual disposition, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the 

asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.  

Asset-impairment testing is carried out at the enterprise level to determine if assets are impaired. The 
recovery of regulated assets’ carrying value, including a fair return on capital or assets, is provided through 
customer electricity rates approved by the BCUC. The net cash inflows for the Corporation are not asset-
specific but are pooled for the entire regulated utility. There was no impairment of regulated long-lived assets 
for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. 

As described in note 24, the Corporation’s non-regulated WPP hydroelectric power plant assets, which was 
reclassified from property, plant and equipment to assets held for sale on the consolidated balance sheet as of 
December 31, 2015, was subject to an impairment charge in 2015 as a result of the carrying amount of the 
assets exceeding the fair value of the assets.  
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Goodwill  

Goodwill represents the excess, at the dates of acquisition, of the purchase price over the fair value of the net 
amounts assigned to individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed relating to business acquisitions. 
Goodwill is carried at initial cost less any write-down for impairment.  

When the Corporation tests goodwill for impairment it has the option, on an annual basis, of performing a 
qualitative assessment before calculating fair value. If the qualitative factors indicate that fair value is 50 
per cent or more likely to be greater than the carrying value, calculation of fair value would not be required. 

The Corporation performs an annual internal quantitative assessment and fair value is estimated by an 
independent external consultant when: (i) management’s assessment of quantitative and qualitative factors 
indicates that fair value is not 50 per cent or more likely to be greater than carrying value; or (ii) the excess of 
estimated fair value compared to carrying value, as determined by an independent external consultant as of 

the date of the immediately preceding impairment test, was not significant. Irrespective of the above-noted 
criteria, the Corporation will have fair value estimated by an independent external consultant, as at the annual 
impairment date, at a minimum once every three years.  

The Corporation performs the annual impairment test as at October 1. In addition, the Corporation also 
performs an impairment test if any event occurs or if circumstances change that would indicate that the fair 
value of the Corporation was below its carrying value. No such event or changes in circumstances occurred 
during 2016 or 2015 and there were no impairment provisions required in either year. 

As at October 1, 2016 the Corporation had an external assessment performed for goodwill and concluded that 
the fair value was 50 per cent or more likely to be greater than carrying value. It was concluded that goodwill 
was not impaired.  

Asset Retirement Obligations 

The Corporation recognizes the fair value of a future Asset Retirement Obligation (“ARO”) as a liability in the 
period in which it incurs a legal obligation associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets that 

result from the acquisition, construction, development, and/or normal use of the assets. The Corporation 
concurrently recognizes a corresponding increase in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset that is 
depreciated over the remaining life of the asset. The fair value of the ARO is estimated using the expected 
cash flow approach that reflects a range of possible outcomes discounted at a credit-adjusted risk-free interest 
rate. Subsequent to the initial measurement, the ARO is adjusted at the end of each period to reflect the 
passage of time and changes in the estimated future cash flows underlying the obligation.   

Changes in the obligation due to the passage of time are recognized as a regulatory asset using the effective 

interest method. Changes in the obligation due to changes in estimated cash flows are to be recognized as an 
adjustment of the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset that is depreciated over the remaining life 
of the asset. 

The Corporation has AROs for which the obligations cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. These AROs 
are primarily associated with the Corporation’s hydroelectric generating facilities and assets associated with 
interconnection facilities and wholesale energy supply agreements. While each of the foregoing will have legal 
asset retirement obligations (i.e. land and environmental remediation and/or removal of assets), the final date 

of removal of the related assets and the costs to do so cannot be reasonably determined at this time. For 
regulated operations, there is a reasonable expectation that asset retirement costs would be recoverable 
through future rates. 

Revenue Recognition 

Electricity revenue is billed at rates approved by the BCUC and is bundled to include the cost of generating, 
transmitting and distributing electricity. In addition, the rate includes customer service as well as other 

corporate and service functions.  

Electricity is metered upon delivery to customers and is recognized as revenue when consumed using rates 
approved by the BCUC. Electricity that is consumed but not yet billed to customers is estimated and accrued
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

as revenue at each reporting date. The estimation process for unbilled electricity consumption will result in 
adjustments to estimates of electricity revenues in the periods they become known. 

The Corporation has entered into contracts to sell surplus capacity that may be available after FBC meets its 
load requirements. These sales are recognized on an accrual basis based on rates set out in the sales 

contracts and measurements at the point of interconnection. 

Employee Future Benefits 

The Corporation sponsors a number of post-employment benefit plans. These plans include defined benefit, 
unfunded supplemental, and various other post-employment benefit (“OPEB”) plans. 

The cost of pensions and OPEBs earned by employees are actuarially determined as an employee accrues 
service. The Corporation uses the projected benefit pro-rate method based on years of service, management’s 

best estimates of expected returns on plan assets, salary escalation, retirement age, mortality and expected 

future health-care costs. The discount rate used to value liabilities is based on Corporate AA bond yields with 
cash flows that match the timing and amount of the expected benefit payments under the plans. The 
Corporation uses a measurement date of December 31 for all plans.  

The expected return on plan assets is based on management’s estimate of the long-term expected rate of 
return on plan assets and the fair market value of plan assets.  

Adjustments, in excess of 10 per cent of the greater of the accrued benefit obligation and the fair value of plan 
assets that result from changes in assumptions and experience gains and losses, are amortized straight-line 

over the expected average remaining service life, or the expected average remaining life expectancy, of the 

employee group covered by the plans. Experience will often deviate from the actuarial assumptions resulting 

in actuarial gains and losses. 

The Corporation records the funded or unfunded status of its defined benefit pension plans and OPEB plans on 
the balance sheet. Unamortized balances relating to past service costs and net actuarial gains and losses have 

been recognized in regulatory assets and are expected to be recovered from customers in future rates. 
Subsequent changes to past service costs and net actuarial gains and losses are recognized as an expense, 
where required by the BCUC, or otherwise as a change in the regulatory asset or liability. 

The Corporation also provides a defined contribution pension arrangement to certain employees not covered 
by the defined benefit plans. Defined contribution plan costs are expensed by the Corporation as contributions 
are payable. 

Derivative Financial Instruments 

Derivative instruments are recognized as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and are measured at 
fair value, unless they meet the normal purchases and normal sales scope exception. The Corporation 
continually assesses its contracts, including its power purchase agreements, to determine whether they meet 

the criteria of a derivative, and if so, whether they qualify for the normal purchases and normal sales scope 
exception.  

Energy Management Loans 

Loans to residential and commercial customers for energy efficiency initiatives and related products are 
interest bearing and range in terms from one to ten years. Interest on these loans is recognized in other 
income as earned, while the related fees and costs are recognized as energy management costs in regulatory 
assets and are currently approved for recovery in future customer rates over an average of ten years.  

Debt Issuance Costs  

Costs incurred to arrange debt financing are recognized as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the 
debt liability and are accounted for using the effective interest method over the life of the related financial 
liability. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Sales Taxes 

In the course of its operations, the Corporation collects sales taxes from its customers. When customers are 
billed, a current liability is recognized for the sales taxes included on the customer’s bill. This liability is settled 
when the taxes are remitted to the appropriate government authority. The Corporation’s revenue excludes the 

sales taxes.  

Income Taxes 

The Corporation follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, 
deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the tax and 
accounting basis of assets and liabilities, as well as for the benefit of losses available to be carried forward 
to future years for tax purposes that are more likely than not (greater than a 50 per cent chance) to be 
realized. The deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted income tax rates and laws 

that will be in effect when the temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. As a result of 
rate regulation, deferred income taxes incurred related to regulated operations have been offset by a 
corresponding regulatory asset or liability resulting in no impact on net earnings. Current income tax expense 
or recovery is recognized for the estimated income taxes payable or receivable in the current year. 

As approved by the BCUC, the Corporation recovers income tax expense in customer rates based only on 
income taxes that are currently payable for regulatory purposes, except for certain regulatory asset and 
liability accounts specifically prescribed by the BCUC. Therefore, current customer rates do not include the 

recovery of deferred income taxes related to temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for regulatory purposes, as these taxes are expected to be collected in 
rates when they become payable. An offsetting regulatory asset or liability is recognized for the amount of 
income taxes that are expected to be collected in rates once they become payable. 

Any difference between the expense recognized under US GAAP and that recovered from customers in current 
rates for income tax expense that is expected to be recovered, or refunded, in future customer rates is 

subject to deferral treatment as described in note 8 “Regulatory Assets and Liabilities”. 

The Corporation recognizes a tax benefit if it is more likely than not that a tax position taken or expected to be 
taken in a tax return will be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities based on the merits of the 
position. The tax benefit recognized in the financial statements is measured based on the largest amount of 
benefit that is greater than 50 per cent likely to be realized upon settlement. The difference between a tax 
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return and the benefit recognized and measured pursuant to 
this guidance represents an unrecognized tax benefit. 

Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are recognized in income tax expense. 

Use of Accounting Estimates 

The preparation of the Corporation’s financial statements in accordance with US GAAP requires management 
to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Estimates and judgments are based on 
historical experience, regulatory decisions, current conditions and various other assumptions believed to be 

reasonable under the circumstances. The use of estimates are described in these “Summary of Significant 

Accounting Policies”, in note 8 “Regulatory Assets and Liabilities”, note 23 “Contingencies” and note 24 
“Assets Held for Sale”. Certain estimates are also necessary since the regulatory environment in which the 
Corporation operates often requires amounts to be recorded at estimated values until these amounts are 
finalized pursuant to regulatory decisions or other regulatory proceedings. Due to changes in facts and 
circumstances and the inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates, actual results may differ 

significantly from current estimates. Estimates and judgments are reviewed periodically and, as 
adjustments become necessary, are reported in earnings in the period in which they become known. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

New Accounting Policies 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Effective January 1, 2016, as applied for in FBC’s application for 2016 rates under the PBR Plan and 
approved by the BCUC, the Corporation adopted a new accounting policy on a prospective basis. Removal 

costs are now collected as a component of depreciation and recognized as a regulatory liability, referred to 
as the net salvage provision, with actual removal costs incurred drawing down the regulatory liability 
balance. Removal costs are the direct costs incurred by the Corporation in taking assets out of service. Prior 
to 2016, actual removal costs were recorded in property, plant and equipment when incurred. As a result of 
adopting this policy, a regulatory liability balance of $6.2 million was recognized as at December 31, 2016 
which was comprised of approximately $10.1 million collected from customers through depreciation 
expense, partially offset by actual removal costs incurred of approximately $3.9 million. 

Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis 

Effective January 1, 2016, FBC adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2015-02 that changed the 
analysis that a reporting entity must perform to determine whether it should consolidate certain types of legal 
entities. Specifically, the amendments note the following with regard to limited partnerships: (i) modify the 
evaluation of whether limited partnerships and similar legal entities are variable interest entities or voting 
interest entities; and (ii) eliminate the presumption that a general partner should consolidate a limited 
partnership. The adoption of this update did not impact FBC’s consolidated financial statements. 

Future Accounting Pronouncements  

FBC considers the applicability and impact of all ASU’s issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(“FASB”). The following updates have been issued by FASB, but have not yet been adopted by FBC. Any ASUs 
not included below were assessed and determined to be either not applicable to the Corporation or are not 
expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

ASU No. 2014-09 was issued in May 2014 and the amendments in this update create Accounting Standards 
Codification (“ASC”) Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and supersede the revenue 
recognition requirements in ASC Topic 605, Revenue Recognition, including most industry-specific revenue 
recognition guidance throughout the codification. This standard clarifies the principles for recognizing revenue 
and can be applied consistently across various transactions, industries and capital markets. In 2016 a number 
of additional ASUs were issued that clarify implementation guidance in ASC Topic 606. This standard, and 
all related ASUs, is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2017.  Early 

adoption is permitted for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2016.  The Corporation 
does not expect to early adopt.  

The new guidance permits two methods of adoption: (i) the full retrospective method, under which 
comparative periods would be restated, and the cumulative impact of applying the standard would be 
recognized as at January 1, 2017, the earliest period presented; and (ii) the modified retrospective method, 
under which comparative periods would not be restated and the cumulative impact of applying the standard 
would be recognized at the date of initial adoption, January 1, 2018.  The Corporation expects to use the 

modified retrospective approach, however, it continues to monitor industry developments. Any significant 
industry developments could change the Corporation’s expected method of adoption. 

The majority of FBC’s revenue is generated from electricity sales to customers based on published tariff rates, 
as approved by the BCUC, and is considered to be in the scope of ASU No. 2014-09. FBC does not expect that 
the adoption of this standard, and all related ASUs, will have a material impact on the measurement of 
revenue generated from electricity sales to customers or on its remaining material revenue streams; 

however, continues to closely monitor industry developments related to the new standard.  Certain industry 
specific interpretative issues, including contributions in aid of construction, remain outstanding and the 
conclusions reached, if different than current practice, could have a material impact on the Corporation’s 
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.   
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 

ASU No. 2016-01, Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, was issued in 
January 2016 and the amendments in this update address certain aspects of recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. Most notably, the amendments require the following: 

(i) equity investments in unconsolidated entities (other than those accounted for using the equity method of 
accounting) to be measured at fair value through earnings; however, entities will be able to elect to record 
equity investments without readily determinable fair values at cost, less impairment, and plus or minus 
subsequent adjustments for observable price changes; and (ii) financial assets and financial liabilities to be 
presented separately in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, grouped by measurement 
category and form of financial asset. This update is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after 
December 15, 2017. FBC is assessing the impact that the adoption of this update will have on its 

consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. 

Leases 

ASU No. 2016-02 was issued in February 2016 and the amendments in this update create ASC Topic 842, 
Leases, and supersede lease requirements in ASC Topic 840, Leases. The main provision of Topic 842 is the 
recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet by lessees for those leases that were 
previously classified as operating leases. For operating leases, a lessee is required to do the following: (i) 
recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, initially measured at the present value of the lease 

payments, on the balance sheet; (ii) recognize a single lease cost, calculated so that the cost of the lease is 
allocated over the lease term on a generally straight-line basis; and (iii) classify all cash payments within 
operating activities in the statement of cash flows. These amendments also require qualitative disclosures 
along with specific quantitative disclosures. This update is effective for annual and interim periods beginning 
after December 15, 2018 and is to be applied using a modified retrospective approach with practical 
expedient options. Early adoption is permitted. FBC is assessing the impact that the adoption of this update 

will have on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. 

Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments  

ASU No. 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, was issued in June 2016 and the 
amendments in this update require entities to use an expected credit loss methodology and to consider a 
broader range of reasonable and supportable information to form credit loss estimates. This update is 
effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2019 and is to be applied on a 
modified retrospective basis. Early adoption is permitted for annual and interim periods beginning after 

December 15, 2018. FBC is assessing the impact that the adoption of this update will have on its 
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. 

3. REGULATORY MATTERS  

Multi-year Performance Based Ratemaking Plan for 2014 to 2019 (“2014 PBR Application”) 

In September 2014, the BCUC issued its decision on FBC’s 2014 PBR Application. The approved PBR Plan 
incorporates an incentive mechanism for improving operating and capital expenditure efficiencies. Operation 
and maintenance expenses and base capital expenditures during the PBR period, 2014 to 2019, are subject 
to an incentive formula reflecting incremental costs for inflation and half of customer growth, less a fixed 
productivity adjustment factor of 1.03 per cent each year. The PBR Plan also includes a 50/50 sharing of 

variances (“Earnings Sharing Mechanism”) from the formula-driven operation and maintenance expenses 

and capital expenditures over the PBR period, and a number of service quality measures designed to ensure 
FBC maintains service levels. It also sets out the requirements for an annual review process which will 
provide a forum for discussion between FBC and interested parties regarding its current performance and 
future activities. 

In December 2015, the BCUC issued its decision on FBC’s 2016 rates. The decision results in a 2016 
average rate base of approximately $1,286 million and a rate increase of 2.96 per cent over 2015 rates.  

In January 2017, the BCUC issued its decision on FBC’s 2017 rates. The decision results in a 2017 average 

rate base of approximately $1,285 million and a rate increase of 2.76 per cent over 2016 rates.   
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3. REGULATORY MATTERS (continued) 

Allowed Return on Equity (“ROE”) and Capital Structure  

The 2016 ROE and common equity component of capital structure for FBC is 9.15 per cent and 40 per cent, 
respectively, which is unchanged from the 2015 ROE and common equity component of capital structure. 

In October 2015, FortisBC Energy Inc. (“FEI”) filed its application to review the 2016 benchmark utility ROE 

and common equity component of capital structure. In August 2016, the BCUC issued its decision on FEI’s 
application. In its decision, the BCUC determined that FEI’s existing common equity component of capital 
structure and ROE will remain at 38.5 per cent and 8.75 per cent, respectively. The BCUC also determined 
that the ROE approved for FEI will serve as the benchmark cost of equity for all other regulated entities in 
BC that use the benchmark utility to set rates, and that the ROE will remain in effect until otherwise 
determined by the Commission. As a result, FBC’s ROE remains unchanged at 9.15 per cent until otherwise 
determined by the Commission. FBC’s common equity component of capital structure was not part of the 

review and therefore FBC’s common equity remains at 40.0 per cent. 

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

($ millions)  2016   2015  

Trade accounts receivable 22.0 28.5 

Accrued unbilled revenue 22.7 18.3 
Other 9.2 5.9 
Amounts due from related parties (note 21) 2.5 0.9 
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1.8) (1.6) 

   54.6 52.0 

5. OTHER ASSETS 

($ millions)  2016   2015  

Energy management loans 0.6 0.6 

Materials and supplies 0.7 0.6 

Pension asset (note 15) 5.9 5.4 

   7.2 6.6 
Less: current portion 0.8 0.8 

   6.4 5.8 

The current portion of other assets relate to material and supplies and energy management loans expected to 
be collected within the next year.  
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

2016  Cost  
Accumulated 
Depreciation  Book Value  

Weighted Average 
Depreciation Rate 

($ millions)     
Generation 249.2 56.6 192.6 1.7% 
Transmission 687.7 191.8 495.9 2.1% 
Distribution 548.9 92.1 456.8 1.8% 
General 165.9 84.3 81.6 5.2% 
Assets under capital lease 290.3 70.9 219.4 2.0% 
Assets under construction 8.6 - 8.6 - 

  1,950.6 495.7 1,454.9  

    

 

2015  Cost  

Accumulated 

Depreciation  Book Value  

Weighted Average 

Depreciation Rate 

($ millions)     

Generation 247.0 51.7 195.3 2.1% 
Transmission 659.4 179.5 479.9 2.7% 
Distribution 540.6 84.6 456.0 2.6% 
General 158.8 78.0 80.8 7.4% 
Assets under capital lease 288.0 65.2 222.8 2.0% 
Assets under construction 2.3 - 2.3 - 

  1,896.1 459.0 1,437.1  

As allowed by the BCUC, during the year ended December 31, 2016, the Corporation capitalized an allowance 
for debt and equity funds used during construction at approved rates of $0.2 million (2015 - $0.2 million) and 
$0.2 million (2015 - $0.3 million) respectively, and approved capitalized overhead costs of $8.5 million (2015 
- $8.9 million). 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, including a net salvage provision, for the year ended 

December 31, 2016 totalled $45.4 million (2015 - $47.0 million). Included in property, plant and equipment 

are ARO costs totalling $2.0 million (2015 - $2.0 million).  Depreciation of $0.2 million (2015 - $0.2 million) 
on the asset retirement costs was recorded in other recoverable costs in regulatory assets (note 8). The 
corresponding liability has been recorded as an ARO in other liabilities (note 13).  

Assets under capital lease include the BPPA and BTS arrangements. Depreciation of $5.1 million (2015 - $5.0 
million) on the BPPA asset under capital lease was recorded in the BPPA lease costs regulatory asset (note 8) 
and depreciation of $0.6 million (2015 - $0.6 million) on the BTS asset under capital lease was recorded in the 
BTS lease costs regulatory asset (note 8).  

During 2016, $10.1 million was collected from customers as a provision for future net salvage costs through 
depreciation expense, with actual removal costs incurred of approximately $3.9 million, resulting in a 
regulatory liability balance of $6.2 million (note 8). During 2015, actual removal costs of $5.7 million were 
recorded in accumulated depreciation.  
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

2016       Cost    
Accumulated 
Amortization   Book Value  

($ millions)     
Software 79.7  55.3 24.4 
Land rights 34.7  4.2 30.5 

  114.4  59.5 54.9 

            

2015       Cost    
Accumulated 
Amortization   Book Value  

($ millions)     

Software 75.0 

 

50.3 24.7 

Land rights 34.2 
 

4.0 30.2 

  109.2 

 

54.3 54.9 

 
Amortization of intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2016 totalled $5.2 million (2015 - $5.8 
million). 

Amortization of software is recorded on a straight-line basis using an average amortization rate of 6.6 per cent 
(2015 – 7.8 per cent). Amortization of land rights of ways is recorded on a straight-line basis using an 

amortization rate of 1.3 per cent (2015 – 2.2 per cent).  

Included in the cost of land rights at December 31, 2016 was $14.6 million (2015 - $14.1 million) not subject 
to amortization. 

For intangibles subject to amortization at December 31, 2016, the amortization expense is estimated to 
average approximately $5.5 million annually for each of the next five years. 
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8. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Based on existing regulatory orders or the expectation of future regulatory orders, the Corporation has 
recorded the following amounts, net of income tax and amortization where applicable, which are expected to 
be recovered from or refunded to customers: 

($ millions) 2016    2015    

Remaining 
Recovery Period 

(years) 

Regulatory Assets      

Energy management costs 20.2 
 

18.4 
 

10 
Pension and OPEB unrecognized actuarial losses 

and past service costs (note 15) 
 

37.3 
 

36.2 
 

Ongoing 

Pension and OPEB transition and variance asset  3.2 

 

7.2 

 

1-8 

BPPA lease costs 90.7 

 

84.0 

 

40 

BTS lease costs 6.4 

 

6.3 

 
30 

Regulated asset for deferred income taxes 153.7   141.6   Ongoing 

Income taxes recoverable on OPEBs 5.3 

 

5.3 

 
Ongoing 

Stepped and Stand-by Rate Decision 8.5  8.5  1 

Flow-through variances 5.2  2.4  2 

Meter retirement costs 3.2  4.5  4 

Other recoverable costs 1.5   1.5   Various 

 

335.2   315.9     

Less: current portion 18.1   7.0     

  317.1   308.9     

 
          

($ millions) 2016    2015    

Remaining 
Recovery Period 

(years)  

Regulatory Liabilities      

Flow-through variances 13.2  18.0  1 

Net salvage provision 6.2  -  Ongoing 

Pension and OPEB variance liability 2.5  3.5  1-3 

Debt issuance costs under effective interest 

method 0.9   0.9   34 

Other refundable costs 0.2  0.3  Various 

 
23.0   22.7     

Less: current portion 15.2   7.4     

  7.8   15.3     

 

Amortization of regulatory assets and liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2016 totalled $6.3 million 
(2015 - $4.6 million). 

Energy Management Costs 

The Corporation provides energy management services to promote energy efficiency programs for its 
customers. As required by BCUC order, the Corporation has capitalized all expenditures (except certain 
defined costs) and the regulatory asset represents the unamortized balance of the energy management 

program. The regulatory assets balance is expected to be recovered from customers in future rates over an 
average of 10 years as approved by the BCUC.  
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8. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 

Pension and OPEB Unrecognized Actuarial Losses and Past Service Costs 

The net funded status, being the difference between the fair value of plan assets and the projected benefit 
obligation for pensions and OPEBs, is required to be recognized on the Corporation’s balance sheet under ASC 
Topic 715. The amount required to make this net funded status adjustment, which would otherwise be 

recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (“AOCI”), has instead been deferred as a regulatory 
asset. The regulatory asset balance represents the deferred portion of the expense relating to pensions and 
OPEBs that is expected to be recovered from customers in future rates as the deferred amounts are included 
as a component of future net benefit cost. The regulatory asset balance is not subject to a regulatory return. 

Pension and OPEB Transition and Variance Asset 

Up until the end of 2011, a cumulative difference existed between the pension and OPEB amounts to be 
recognized under ASC Topic 715 and the pension and OPEB amounts recovered in rates as approved by the 

BCUC. This cumulative transitional amount, which was measured as of January 1, 2000, would otherwise be 
recognized in retained earnings but instead has been approved by the BCUC for deferral as a regulatory asset 

and to be collected from customers over a term of twelve years beginning on January 1, 2012. This regulatory 
asset balance is not subject to a regulatory return. 

Also included in this balance is the variance between 2012 and 2013 actual pension and OPEB expense and 
the amounts forecast for rate-setting purposes which has been deferred as a regulatory asset as approved by 
the BCUC. The regulatory asset balance is expected to be recovered from customers in future rates and it is 
not subject to a regulatory return. 

BPPA Lease Costs 

The depreciation on the BPPA capital lease asset (note 6) and the interest expense associated with the BPPA 
lease obligation (note 12) are not being fully recovered by the Corporation in current customer rates since 
those rates include only the payments set out under the BPPA. The BPPA payments, including the related 
operating costs, are recovered as power purchase costs rather than as capital lease depreciation and interest 

expense. The regulatory asset balance represents the deferred portion of the cost of the lease that is expected 
to be recovered from customers in future rates over the term of the arrangement, which ends in 2056, and is 
not subject to a regulatory return. 

BTS Lease Costs 

The depreciation on the BTS capital lease asset (note 6), the interest expense associated with the BTS 
obligation (note 12) and the related operating costs are not being fully recovered by the Corporation in current 
customer rates since those rates include only the recovery of the BTS as an operating lease with associated 
operating costs. The regulatory asset balance represents the deferred portion of the cost of the lease that is 
expected to be recovered from customers in future rates over the term of the arrangement, and is not subject 
to a regulatory return.   

Deferred Income Taxes  

FBC recognizes deferred income taxes and liabilities and related regulatory liabilities and assets for the 
amount of deferred income taxes expected to be refunded to, or recovered from, customers in future rates. 
Included in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are the future income tax effects of the subsequent 
settlement of the related regulatory liabilities and assets through customer rates. The deferred income taxes 

on regulated assets and regulated liabilities, and the regulated asset and liability for deferred income taxes, is 
a result of ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes which requires the recognition of deferred income tax liabilities and 
assets as well as offsetting regulated assets or liabilities. The regulatory asset balance is expected to be 

recovered from customers in future rates when the deferred taxes become payable, and is not subject to a 
regulatory return. 

Income Taxes Recoverable on OPEBs 

The BCUC allows OPEB plan costs to be collected in customer rates on an accrual basis, rather than on a cash 
basis, which creates timing differences for income tax purposes. As approved by the BCUC, the tax effect of 
this timing difference is deferred as a regulatory asset and will be reduced as cash payments for OPEB plans 
exceed required accruals and amounts collected in customer rates. This regulatory asset balance is expected 
to be recovered from customers in future rates, and is not subject to a regulatory return. 
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8. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 

Stepped and Stand-by Rate Decision 

In September 2015, the BCUC issued a decision that approved both a stand-by rate and the specific service 
parameters for the one customer to which the rate applies. In October 2015, the BCUC issued a letter 
encouraging the Corporation to come to an agreement with the customer on the appropriate rate of billing 

to apply during the period in which the regulatory process that led to the stand-by rate was progressing. FBC 
and the customer filed a joint submission setting out their agreement on the refund amount to be applied to 
the interim period, and its regulatory treatment. The BCUC issued a decision in December 2015 which 
approved the joint submission agreement refund amount of approximately $7.6 million, plus applicable 
interest, to be refunded to the customer, with the offset of the payment recognized as a regulatory asset to be 
recovered in 2017 rates from other customers. This regulatory asset balance is expected to be recovered from 
customers in future rates, and is not subject to a regulatory return. The payment was made to the customer 

during 2016. 

Meter Retirement Costs 

As ordered by the BCUC, these are costs associated with the retirement of meters replaced with advanced 
meter infrastructure. This regulatory balance is expected to be recovered from customers in future rates, and 
is not subject to a regulatory return.  

Other Recoverable and Refundable Costs 

This balance includes deferral of other costs which have either been approved by the BCUC for deferral and 

amortization or are expected to be approved. Other recoverable costs include costs associated with the long-
term transmission and distribution system plan development, deferred projects, the rate application 
proceedings, depreciation and accretion on the ARO, and the income tax impacts of the Corporation’s prepaid 
pension costs and debt issuance costs. These regulatory asset and liability balances are expected to be 
recovered from, or refunded to, customers in future rates. 

Flow-through Variances 

As part of the PBR Decision and effective January 1, 2014 through to the end of the PBR term, the Corporation 

has a flow-through deferral account that captures variances from regulated forecast items, excluding formulaic 
operation and maintenance costs, that do not have separately approved deferral mechanisms, and flows 
those variances through customer rates in the following year.  

2015 and 2016 flow-through variances have been recognized as regulatory assets which are expected to be 
recovered from customers in future rates and are not subject to a regulatory return. 

The flow-through variance regulatory liability includes the over collection of 2014 revenue, established per the 

2014 PBR Decision, and the BCUC approved Earnings Sharing Mechanism deferral account that captures 50/50 
sharing of variances from formula-driven operation and maintenance expenses and capital expenditures, to be 
refunded to customers in future years. This regulatory liability is not subject to a regulatory return. 

Net Salvage Provision 

The net salvage provision account captures the provision for costs which will be incurred to remove assets 
from service in a future period. As actual removal costs are incurred, the net salvage provision account is 
drawn down. As at December 31, 2016 approximately $10.1 was collected from customers through 

depreciation expense to offset future removal costs which may be incurred. Actual removal costs incurred 
for the year ended December 31, 2016 were $3.9 million. Prior to 2016, actual removal costs were recorded 
in accumulated depreciation (note 6).   

Pension and OPEB Variance Liability 

As approved by the BCUC, the pension cost variance account accumulates differences between 2015 and 2016 
pension and OPEB expenses that are approved for recovery in rates and the actuarially determined pension 

and OPEB expense. The regulatory liability balance is expected to be returned to customers in future rates 
over 3 years, and is not subject to a regulatory return. 
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8. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 

Debt Issuance Costs Under Effective Interest Method  

This balance represents the cumulative difference between applying the effective interest method for 
amortizing debt issuance costs and the straight-line amortization method used to set rates. This regulatory 
liability represents the cumulative difference between the two amortization methods which will be refunded to 

customers over the term of the outstanding debt through future rates, and is not subject to a regulatory 
return. 

9. GOODWILL 

($ millions) 2016  2015  

Resulting from the push-down effects of the acquisition of FBC by Fortis 219.5  219.5        
Associated with the acquisition of Princeton Light & Power Company, Limited 

(“PLP”) by FBC 1.2        1.2        
Associated with the acquisition of the City of Kelowna electrical utility 

business by FBC 14.1 14.1 

 
234.8    234.8    

 

There was no impairment of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.  

On May 31, 2004, Fortis, through a wholly owned subsidiary, acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares 
of Aquila Networks Canada (British Columbia) Ltd. (renamed FortisBC). The consideration paid for this 
acquisition has been recorded in FBC’s financial statements using push-down accounting. In addition to 
goodwill, the Corporation has recognized additional paid-in capital related to the push-down of the excess 
purchase price paid by Fortis on acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired.  

On December 31, 2006, FBC acquired PLP. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net 
assets acquired has been recorded as goodwill. 

On March 29, 2013, FBC purchased the City of Kelowna’s electrical utility business for $55.1 million. The 
excess of the fair value of the consideration paid over the fair value of the assets acquired has been recorded 
as goodwill. 

10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

($ millions) 2016  2015  

Employee compensation and benefits payable 11.0 11.1 
Trade accounts payable 16.4 15.0 
Power purchase and wheeling accruals 6.1 4.8 
Customer deposits 9.3 8.9 
Interest payable 7.3 8.1 
Other current liabilities 2.1 1.5 

Pension and other post-employment benefits (note 15) 1.1 1.1 
Amounts due to related parties (note 21) 11.0 10.9 
Deposit on assets held for sale (note 24) - 0.9 

Stepped and Stand-by Rate Decision (note 8) - 8.5 

  64.3 70.8 
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11. LONG-TERM DEBT 

($ millions) 2016   2015  

Secured Debentures 
  

 
Series G 8.8% due August 28, 2023 25.0 25.0  

Unsecured Debentures  

 
 

Series H 8.77% due February 1, 2016 - 25.0  

 
Series I 7.81% due December 1, 2021 25.0 25.0  

 
Series 05-1 5.60% due November 9, 2035 100.0 100.0  

 
Series 07-1 5.90% due July 4, 2047 105.0 105.0  

 
Medium Term Note Debentures Series 1 6.10% due June 2, 2039 105.0 105.0  

 
Medium Term Note Debentures Series 2 5.00% due November 24, 2050 100.0 100.0  

 Medium Term Note Debentures Series 3 4.00% due October 28, 2044 200.0 200.0 

Total Debt 660.0 685.0 

    
Less: current portion of long-term debt - 25.0 

 
660.0    660.0  

Less: debt issuance costs 5.9 6.0 

Long-term debt 654.1    654.0  

 
During 2016, amortization of debt issuance costs of $0.1 million (2015 - $0.2 million) was recognized in 

finance charges (note 16). 

Secured and Unsecured Debentures 

The Series G secured debentures are collateralized by a fixed and floating first charge on the assets of the 
Corporation. The secured Series G and unsecured Series I debentures are guaranteed by FortisWest Inc., a 
subsidiary of Fortis.  

The Corporation’s secured and unsecured debentures are redeemable in whole or in part at the option of the 
Corporation at a price equal to the greater of the Canada Yield Price, as defined in the applicable Trust 

Indenture, and the principal amount of the debt to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date 
specified for redemption. 

In February 2016, the Corporation repaid the Series H Debenture of $25 million. 

The Corporation has externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject to that include interest 
coverage ratios and limitations on the amount of debt that can be incurred relative to equity. The Corporation 
is in compliance with these externally imposed capital requirements as at December 31, 2016. 

See note 22 “Commitments” for principal payments required over the next five years and thereafter. 
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12. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS  

($ millions)  2016  2015  

Capital lease obligations   316.4   313.1 

Less: current portion of capital lease obligations 
 

0.6 
 

0.6 

    315.8   312.5 

 
BPPA Capital Lease  

On May 3, 1996 an order was granted by the BCUC approving the 60-year BPPA for the sale of the output of 

the Brilliant hydroelectric plant located near Castlegar, BC. The Brilliant plant is owned by the Brilliant Power 
Corporation (“BPC”), a corporation owned equally by the Columbia Power Corporation (“CPC”) and the 
Columbia Basin Trust (“CBT”). FBC operates and maintains the Brilliant plant for the BPC in return for a 
management fee. In exchange for the specified take-or-pay amounts of power, the BPPA requires semi-annual 
payments based on a return on capital, which is composed of the original plant capital charge and periodic 

upgrade capital charges, which are both subject to fixed annual escalators, as well as sustaining capital 
charges, and operating expenses. The BPPA includes a market related price adjustment after 30 years of the 

60-year term. Due to the fixed annual escalators, presently the interest expense on the capital lease 
obligation exceeds the required payments and therefore the capital lease obligation increases through 2024 
and subsequently decreases for the remainder of the term. Approximately 94 per cent of the output from the 
149 MW Brilliant hydroelectric plant is being purchased by FBC through the BPPA. 

The BPPA lease obligation bears interest at a composite rate of approximately 5 per cent. Of the $28.5 million 
(2015 - $28.2 million) of interest expense relating to the BPPA obligation and $5.1 million (2015 - $5.0 

million) of depreciation expense relating to the BPPA capital lease asset, a total of $26.9 million (2015 -$26.3 
million) was recognized in power purchase costs for 2016, as approved by the BCUC, with the balance of $6.7 
million (2015 - $6.9 million) deferred as part of the regulatory asset balance in note 8 “Regulatory Assets and 
Liabilities”.  

BTS Capital Lease  

On July 15, 2003, the Corporation began operating the BTS under an agreement the term of which expires in 

2056 (the “BTS Obligation”). The agreement provides that FBC will pay a charge related to the recovery of the 

capital cost of the BTS and related operating costs. The BTS Obligation bears interest at a composite rate of 
approximately 9 per cent. 

Of the $2.1 million (2015 - $2.1 million) of interest expense relating to the BTS Obligation and $0.6 million 
(2015 - $0.6 million) of depreciation expense relating to the BTS capital lease asset, a total of $2.6 million 
(2015 - $2.6 million) was recognized in operating costs for 2016, as approved by the BCUC, with the balance 
of $0.1 million (2015 - $0.1 million) deferred as part of the regulatory asset balance in note 8 “Regulatory 
Assets and Liabilities”.  

The present value of the minimum lease payments for both BTS and BPPA required over the next five years 
and thereafter are as follows: 

($ millions) BTS Lease BPPA Lease Total 

2017 3.1 39.0 42.1 
2018 3.1 39.7 42.8 

2019 3.1 40.4 43.5 

2020 3.1 41.1 44.2 
2021 3.2 41.9 45.1 

Thereafter 51.7 1,924.6 1,976.3 

  67.3 2,126.7 2,194.0 
Less: amounts representing imputed interest and 

executory costs 43.7 1,833.9 1,877.6 

Total capital lease obligations 23.6 292.8 316.4 

Less: current portion 0.6 - 0.6 

Present value of minimum lease payments 23.0 292.8 315.8 
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13. OTHER LIABILITIES  

($ millions)  2016  2015 

Asset retirement obligation   2.2       2.2 

 

Asset Retirement Obligation 

During 2010, FBC obtained sufficient information to recognize an ARO based on an estimate of the fair value 
and timing of estimated future expenditures associated with the removal of insulating oil in certain electrical 
equipment that is contaminated with polychlorinated biphenyls (“PCBs”). The determination of the ARO was 
based on PCB regulations under the Canadian Environmental Protection Act, 1999 which govern the 
management and storage of PCBs as well as impose timelines for disposal based on certain criteria including 
type of equipment, in-use status and PCB-contamination thresholds. The Corporation must identify and 

remove certain levels of PCBs in certain of its electrical equipment assets by 2025 to be compliant with the 
PCB regulations.  

Consistent with its accounting policy for AROs, FBC records an ARO liability in the period in which it is incurred 
if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be determined. The Corporation’s ARO was based on a best estimate 
of the present value of the future expenditures expected to be required to comply with existing regulations. 

Changes in the Corporation’s AROs are summarized below: 

($ millions) 2016  2015  

Asset retirement obligation at beginning of year 
 

2.2 
 

2.2 
Interest accretion 

 
- 

 
- 

Expenditures 
 

- 
 

- 
Revisions to estimates   -   - 

Asset retirement obligation at end of year   2.2   2.2 

 
The ARO has been recorded in other liabilities, while the asset retirement cost has been capitalized to 
property, plant and equipment (note 6). Actual costs incurred upon settlement of an ARO are charged against 

the related liability to the extent of the accrued balance. Any difference between the actual costs incurred 

upon settlement of the ARO and the remaining balance is expected to be recognized as a regulatory asset or 
liability at that time.   

The Corporation’s recognition of certain revenues and expenses as a result of rate regulation differs from that 
otherwise recognized using US GAAP for entities not subject to rate regulation. The future amounts of the 
accretion expense associated with the ARO and future depreciation expense associated with the asset 
retirement cost will accumulate and be deferred as a regulatory asset to be recovered by customers in future 
rates. Upon recovery in rates, these deferred costs will be expensed. 

Total estimated undiscounted future cash flows required to comply with the PCB regulations is approximately 
$2.5 million. These expenditures are expected to be incurred over the period from 2017 to 2025 as follows: 
 

($ millions)       

2017 
     

0.3 
2018      0.3 

2019      0.3 
2020      0.3 
2021      0.3 
Thereafter 

     
1.0 

            2.5 

The credit-adjusted risk-free discount rates used to calculate the present value of the above obligation is 3.0 
per cent. 
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14. SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorized Share Capital 

The Corporation is authorized to issue 500,000,000 common shares, with a par value of $100 each and 
500,000,000 preferred shares, with a par value of $25 each, issuable in series. 

Common Shares 

Issued and outstanding common shares are as follows: 
 

 2016  2015 

 
Number of 

Shares 
Amount 

($ millions) 
 Number of 

Shares 
Amount 

($ millions) 

Outstanding, beginning of year 2,191,510 219.2  2,191,510 219.2 
Issued - -  - - 

Outstanding, end of year 2,191,510 219.2  2,191,510 219.2 

15. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS  

The Corporation is a sponsor of pension plans for eligible employees. The plans include registered defined 

benefit pension plans, supplemental unfunded arrangements, and defined contribution plans. The Corporation 
also provides post-employment benefits other than pensions for certain of its retired employees. The following 
is a summary of each type of plan: 

Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

The Corporation sponsors three defined benefit pension plans, one of which is closed to new entrants. 
Retirement benefits are based on employees’ years of credited service and remuneration. Corporation 
contributions to the plans are based upon independent actuarial valuations. The most recent actuarial 

valuations of the defined benefit pension plans for funding purposes were as at December 31, 2016 and the 
date of the next required valuations will be as at December 31, 2019. 

Supplemental Plans 

Certain employees are eligible to receive supplemental benefits. The supplemental plans provide pension 
benefits in excess of statutory limits and are unfunded. 

Defined Contribution Plans 

The Corporation’s cost related to the defined contribution arrangement is based upon a percentage of 

employee earnings. The Corporation’s 2016 net benefit cost related to this arrangement was $1.1 million 
(2015 - $1.0 million). 

Other Post-Employment Benefits 

The Corporation provides certain retired employees with OPEBs that include, depending on circumstances, 
supplemental health, dental and life insurance coverage. OPEBs are unfunded and the annual net benefit cost 
is recorded on an accrual basis based on independent actuarial determinations, considering among other 

factors, health-care cost escalation. The most recent actuarial valuation was completed as at December 31, 
2016 and the next valuation is expected to be as at December 31, 2019. 
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15. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued) 

The financial positions of the Corporation’s defined benefit pension and supplemental plans and OPEB plans 
are as follows:  

 

Defined Benefit 
Pension and 

Supplemental Plans 
 

OPEB Plans 

($ millions) 2016        2015     2016       2015  

Change in fair value of plan assets  

     Balance, beginning of year 174.6 163.5 
 

-      -  
Actual return on plan assets 14.2 9.2  

 
-   -  

Employer contributions 4.7 7.1 
 

0.9 0.8 
Employee contributions 3.3 3.3  

 
-  - 

Benefits paid (8.1)  (8.5) 
 

(0.9) (0.8) 

Fair value, end of year 188.7 174.6   - - 

 
 

 
   

 
Change in projected benefit obligation   

 
   

 
Balance, beginning of year 202.6 196.8 

 
30.4 28.9 

Employee contributions 3.3 3.3  
 

- -  
Current service cost 5.3 5.1 

 
1.2 1.1 

Interest costs 8.1 7.9 
 

1.2 1.2 
Benefits paid (8.1) (8.5)  

 
(0.9) (0.8)  

Actuarial (gain) loss 4.3 (2.0) 
 

1.3 - 

Balance, end of year 1 215.5 202.6   33.2 30.4 

Unfunded status (26.8) (28.0) 
 

(33.2) (30.4) 

1 The accumulated benefit obligation for defined benefit pension plans, excluding assumptions about future salary levels, 

was $195.3 million (2015 - $186.5 million). 

 
The following table summarizes the employee future benefit assets and liabilities and their classification in the 

consolidated balance sheets. 
 

 

Defined Benefit 
Pension and 

Supplemental Plans OPEB Plans 

($ millions) 2016      2015   2016     2015  

Other assets (note 5) (5.9) (5.4) - - 
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (note 10) 0.2 0.2 0.9 0.9 
Pension and other post-employment benefits 32.5 33.2 32.3 29.5 

Net liability 26.8 28.0 33.2 30.4 

 

The net benefit cost for the Corporation’s defined benefit pension and supplemental plans and OPEB plans 
are as follows: 

 

Defined Benefit 
Pension and 

Supplemental Plans OPEB Plans 

($ millions)  2016      2015   2016    2015  

Service costs 5.3 5.1 1.2 1.1 
Interest costs 8.1 7.9 1.2 1.2 
Expected return on plan assets (10.5) (10.3) - - 
Amortization:     

Actuarial losses 1.7 2.5 - - 
Past service costs (0.9) (0.9) - - 

Regulatory adjustment 0.3 (0.2) 0.7 1.8 

Net benefit cost 4.0 4.1 3.1 4.1 
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15. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued) 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan Assets 

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015 the assets of the Corporation’s defined benefit pension plans were 
invested on a weighted average as follows: 
 

  Target Allocation 2016  2015  

Equities 50% 50% 53% 
Fixed income 30% - 40% 36% 33% 
Real estate 0% - 20% 14% 14% 

    100% 100% 

 
The investment policy for defined benefit plan assets is to optimize the risk-return using a portfolio of various 
asset classes. The Corporation’s primary investment objectives are to secure registered pension plans, and 

maximize investment returns in a cost effective manner while not compromising the security of the respective 
plans. The pension plans use quarterly rebalancing in order to achieve the target allocations while complying 

with the constraints of the Pension Benefits Standards Act of British Columbia and the Income Tax Act. The 
pension plans utilize external investment managers to execute the investment policy. Assets in the plans are 
held in trust by independent third parties. The pension plans do not directly hold any shares of the 
Corporation’s parent or affiliated companies. 
 
The fair value measurements of the Corporation’s defined benefit pension plan assets by fair value hierarchy 
level, which are described in further detail in note 19 “Fair Value Measurement”, are as follows: 

 

2016 Level 1  Level 2   Level 3 Total 

($ millions)       

Equities 97.3  - 
 

- 97.3 

Fixed income -  64.7 
 

- 64.7 

Real estate -  - 
 

26.7 26.7 

  97.3  64.7  26.7 188.7 

 

2015 Level 1  Level 2   Level 3 Total 

($ millions)       

Equities 93.1  - 
 

- 93.1 

Fixed income -  56.7 
 

- 56.7 

Real estate -  - 
 

24.8 24.8 

  93.1  56.7 
 

24.8 174.6 

 
The following table is a reconciliation of changes in the fair value of defined benefit pension plan assets that 

have been measured using Level 3 inputs for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. 

Real Estate  

($ millions) 2016 2015 

Balance, beginning of year 24.8    22.1   

Actual return on plan assets:   

 Relating to assets still held at the reporting date 1.9 1.5 

Purchases, sales and settlements  - 1.2 

Balance, end of year 26.7 24.8 

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. 
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15. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued) 

Significant Actuarial Assumptions  

The significant weighted average actuarial assumptions used to determine the projected benefit obligation 
and the net benefit cost are as follows:  
 

 
Defined Benefit 

Pension and 
Supplemental Plans 

 

OPEB Plans 

 2016 2015  2016 2015 

Projected benefit obligation      

Discount rate as at December 31 3.75% 4.00%  3.75% 4.00% 

Rate of compensation increase  3.00% 3.00%  - - 

Net benefit cost       

Discount rate as at January 1  4.00% 4.00%  4.00% 4.00% 

Expected rate of return on plan assets  6.00% 6.50%  - - 

The assumed health care cost trend rates for OPEB plans are as follows: 
 

          2016  2015  

Health care trend rate:  

      Initial rate at December 31 

    

5.50% 6.00% 

Annual rate of decline in trend rate  0.50% 0.50% 

Ultimate health care cost trend rate 

 

5.00% 5.00% 

Year ultimate rate reached 

    

2018 2018 

 
A one per cent change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects on the 

Corporation’s OPEB plans: 
 

2016 
1% Increase 

in Rate 
1% Decrease  

in Rate 

($ millions)   
Increase (decrease) in benefit obligation 2.3 (1.7) 
Increase (decrease) in service and interest costs 0.2 (0.2) 

 

The following table provides the components and changes of the regulatory assets during the year that would 
otherwise have been recognized in other comprehensive income and AOCI and have not yet been recognized 

as components of periodic net benefit cost. 
 

 
Defined Benefit 

Pension and 
Supplemental Plans 

 
OPEB Plans 

($ millions)   2016      2015     2016    2015  

Regulatory asset, beginning of year 33.0 35.3 

 

3.2 3.2 

Net actuarial (gain) loss 0.6 (0.7) 

 

1.3 - 

Amortization of actuarial losses (1.7) (2.5) 

 

- - 

Amortization of past service credit 0.9 0.9 

 

- - 

Regulatory asset, end of year (note 8) 32.8 33.0   4.5 3.2 

 

          

Net actuarial losses of $1.6 million and past service credit of $0.9 million will be amortized from regulatory 
assets into pension net benefit costs during 2017. Net actuarial losses of $0.1 will be amortized from 
regulatory assets into OPEB net benefit costs during 2017.  
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15. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued) 

The Corporation sponsors three defined benefit pension plans, one of which is closed to new entrants. Under 
the terms of these plans, the Corporation is required to provide pension funding contributions, including 
current service, solvency and special funding amounts. The Corporation’s estimated 2017 contributions are 
$4.3 million. 

 
The following table provides the amount of benefit payments expected to be made over the next 10 years. 
 

($ millions)  

Defined Benefit 
Pension and 

Supplemental Plans OPEB Plans 

2017 8.2 0.9 

2018 8.5 1.0 

2019 8.8 1.0 

2020 9.1 1.1 

2021 9.4 1.2 

2022-2026 50.5 7.0 

 94.5 12.2 

16. FINANCE CHARGES 

($ millions) 2016 2015 

Interest on long-term debt 1 (note 11) 35.8 37.8 

Interest on short-term debt 2 1.7 1.1 

Debt component of AFUDC (0.2) (0.2) 

  
 

37.3   38.7  

1  Includes amortization of debt issuance costs. 
2  Includes capitalized interest on certain non-rate base regulatory assets and liabilities. 
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17. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

($ millions) 2016 2015 

Interest paid 38.5 38.7 

Income taxes paid 3.3 11.9 

 

Significant Non-Cash Transactions 

($ millions)    2016 2015 

Capital accruals   (1.5) (6.5) 

Deferred income tax liability  12.1 11.0 

BPPA lease costs regulatory asset  (6.7) (6.9) 

Stepped and Stand-by Rate Decision (note 8)  - 8.5 

Pension and OPEB unrecognized actuarial losses and past service costs 
regulatory asset  (1.1) 2.3 

 

Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital   

($ millions) 2016 2015 

Accounts receivable (2.6) (1.9) 

Prepaid expenses (0.1) (0.4) 

Current regulatory assets and liabilities (16.9) (3.8) 

Accounts payable and other current liabilities (5.3) 10.3 

Income taxes receivable and payable 11.2 (8.3) 

  (13.7) (4.1) 

 

The non-cash investing activities balances as at December 31 were as follows: 
 

($ millions) 2016 2015 

Additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets included in 
current liabilities 13.1 14.6 

18. INCOME TAXES 

Deferred Income Taxes 

Deferred income taxes are provided for temporary differences. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities 
comprised the following: 
 

($ millions) 2016  2015 

Deferred income tax liability (asset)    

Property, plant and equipment 143.1 
 

133.4 

Intangible assets 7.2 
 

7.0 

Regulatory assets 13.5 
 

11.8 

Regulatory liabilities (4.7)  (6.4) 

Debt issuance costs 1.4  1.4 

Employee future benefits (7.7)  (6.5) 

Other (1.2)   0.1 

Net deferred income tax liability 151.6   140.8 

The net deferred income tax liability as at December 31, 2016 includes a $nil (2015 - $1.5 million) long-term 
deferred income tax liability related to the Corporation’s non-regulated WPP hydroelectric power plant assets 
(note 24).     
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18. INCOME TAXES (continued) 

Provision for Income Taxes 

($ millions)   2016   2015  

Current income taxes expense 8.0 6.9 

 
 

 
Deferred income taxes expense 10.7 11.6 

Regulatory adjustment (12.0) (11.0) 

 (1.3) 0.6 

Income taxes expense 6.7 7.5 

 
Variation in Effective Income Tax Rate 

Income taxes vary from the amount that would be computed by applying the Canadian federal and BC 
combined statutory income tax rate of 26.0 per cent (2015 – 26.0 per cent) to earnings before income taxes 
as shown in the following table: 

 
2016 2015 

Combined statutory income tax rate 26.0% 26.0% 

($ millions)    

Statutory income tax rate applied to earnings before income taxes 14.4 13.8 

Items capitalized for accounting but expensed for income tax purposes (2.3) (2.4) 

Difference between capital cost allowance and amounts expensed for 
accounting purposes (4.2) (3.5) 

Difference between regulatory accounting items and amounts claimed for 

tax purposes (0.3) (0.2) 

Difference between employee future benefits paid and amounts expensed 
for accounting purposes 0.4 0.1 

Other (1.3) (0.3) 

Actual income taxes expense 6.7 7.5 

Effective income tax rate 12.1% 14.1% 

As at December 31, 2016, the Corporation had no non-capital or capital loss carryforwards. Taxation years 
2011 and prior are no longer subject to examination in Canada. An examination of the open tax years 
subsequent to 2011 by the Canada Revenue Agency could result in a change in the liability for unrecognized 
tax benefits. The Corporation does not have any unrecognized tax benefits as at December 31, 2016 and as 
such has not accrued any associated interest or penalties. 
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19. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 

Fair value is the price at which a market participant could sell an asset or transfer a liability to an unrelated 
party. A fair value measurement is required to reflect the assumptions that market participants would use in 
pricing an asset or liability based on the best available information. These assumptions include the risks 
inherent in a particular valuation technique, such as a pricing model, and the risks inherent in the inputs to 

the model. A fair value hierarchy exists that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The Corporation 
is required to record all derivative instruments at fair value except those which qualify for the normal 
purchases and normal sales exception, including certain of the Corporation’s power purchase contracts. 

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined as follows: 

Level 1: Fair value determined using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets. 

Level 2: Fair value determined using pricing inputs that are observable. 

Level 3: Fair value determined using unobservable inputs only when relevant observable inputs are not 
available. 

The fair values of the Corporation’s financial instruments reflect point-in-time estimates based on current and 

relevant market information about the instruments as at the balance sheet dates. The estimates cannot be 
determined with precision as they involve uncertainties and matters of judgment and, therefore, may not be 
relevant in predicting the Corporation’s future consolidated earnings or cash flows. 

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, energy management loans, accounts 
payable, other current liabilities and credit facilities on the consolidated balance sheets of FBC approximate 
their fair values.   

Assets Held for Sale 

The following table summarizes, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the Corporation’s assets accounted 
for at fair value on a non-recurring basis.   
 

($ millions) 
Fair Value 
Hierarchy 2016  2015  

Assets held for sale (note 24) Level 2 - 8.5 

 
The fair value of WPP hydroelectric power plant assets held for sale is estimated using the selling price 
included in the Asset Purchase Agreement (“APA”), less estimated costs to sell (note 24). 

Financial Instruments Not Carried at Fair Value 

The following table summarizes the fair value measurements of the Corporation’s long-term debt as of 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, all of which is Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy and recorded on the 
consolidated balance sheets at its carrying value: 
 

 2016  2015 

 Carrying Estimated  Carrying Estimated 
($ millions) Value Fair Value  Value Fair Value 

Long-term debt, including current portion 1 660.0 790.5   685.0 801.7 
1  Includes secured and unsecured debentures for which the carrying value is measured at cost. Carrying value excludes 

unamortized debt issuance costs of $5.9 million (2015 - $6.0 million). 

The fair value of long-term debt is estimated using quoted market prices when available. When quoted 
market prices are not available, the fair value is determined by discounting the future cash flows of the 

specific debt instrument at an estimated yield to maturity equivalent to benchmark government bonds or 
treasury bills, with similar terms to maturity, plus a market credit risk premium equal to that of issuers of 
similar credit quality. Since the Corporation does not intend to settle the long-term debt prior to maturity, 
the fair value estimate does not represent an actual liability and, therefore, does not include exchange or 
settlement costs. 
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Corporation is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk as a result of holding financial 
instruments in the normal course of business. The Corporation currently does not enter into derivative 
financial instruments to reduce exposure to fluctuations in any of the risks impacting the Corporation’s 
operations. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that a third party to a financial instrument might fail to meet its obligations under the 

terms of the financial instrument. For cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and energy 
management loans, the Corporation’s credit risk is limited to the carrying value on the balance sheet. 

The Corporation extends credit to customers in its role as a regulated electric utility service provider. Credit 
risk on accounts receivable is managed based on the terms and conditions of the Electric Tariff BCUC No.1 
for Service in the West Kootenay and Okanagan Areas. The Corporation manages credit risk for its accounts 

receivable by requiring customer deposits or credit checks for new customers and by issuing notices, 
performing disconnections and using third party collection agencies for overdue accounts. The Corporation’s 

credit risk is also mitigated through revenue requirement applications to the BCUC which include a forecast 
amount for uncollectible accounts receivable. 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments 
associated with financial instruments. The Corporation’s financial position could be adversely affected if it 
fails to arrange sufficient and cost-effective financing to fund, among other things, capital expenditures and 
the repayment of maturing debt. The ability to arrange sufficient and cost-effective financing is subject to 

numerous factors, including the results of operations and financial position of the Corporation, conditions in 
the capital and bank credit markets, ratings assigned by rating agencies and general economic conditions.  

To mitigate this risk, the Corporation has secured committed credit facilities to support short-term financing 
of capital expenditures and seasonal working capital requirements.  

As at December 31, 2016, the Corporation had bank credit facilities of $160 million, comprised of a $150 
million operating credit facility and a $10 million demand overdraft facility. In April 2016, the operating 
credit facility was amended such that the entire $150 million now matures in May 2019. 

Borrowings under the Corporation’s operating credit facilities bear interest at prime or the certificate of 
deposit offered rate for bankers’ acceptances plus a margin. The margin applied is based on FBC’s debt 
ratings provided by its credit rating agencies. The demand overdraft facility bears interest at prime, which 
at December 31, 2016, was 2.70 per cent. 

The following summary outlines the Corporation’s bank credit facilities:  

($ millions) December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 

Operating credit facility 150.0 150.0 

Demand overdraft facility 10.0 10.0 

Draws on operating credit facility (90.8) (50.9) 

Draws on overdraft facility (2.8) (5.0) 

Letters of credit outstanding (0.6) - 

Credit facilities available 65.8 104.1 

 
The Corporation targets investment grade credit ratings to maintain capital market access at reasonable 
interest rates. Debentures issued by the Corporation are rated by DBRS Limited (“DBRS”) and Moody’s 

Investors Service (“Moody’s”).  
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 

As at December 31, 2016, the Corporation’s credit ratings were as follows: 

Rating Agency Rating Debt Rated 

DBRS A (low), Stable Trend Secured and Unsecured Debentures 

Moody’s  Baa1, Stable Outlook Unsecured Debentures 

 
Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to 

changes in foreign exchange rates or market interest rates.  

Foreign Exchange Risk 

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in 

foreign exchange rates. The Corporation’s earnings are not materially exposed to changes in the US dollar-
to-Canadian dollar exchange rate. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market 
interest rates. The Corporation is exposed to interest rate risk associated with its operating credit facilities 
and overdraft facility and the refinancing of long-term debt. Regulated interest expense variances from 

forecast for rate-setting purposes are flowed through future rates using regulatory deferral accounts 
approved by the BCUC. 

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  

In the normal course of business, the Corporation transacts with its parent, FortisBC Pacific, ultimate 
parent, Fortis, and other related companies under common control, including FEI, FortisBC Holdings Inc. 
(“FHI”) and the Waneta Expansion Limited Partnership (“WELP”), to provide or receive services and 

materials. The following transactions were measured at the exchange amount unless otherwise indicated. 

Related Party Recoveries 

The amounts charged to the Corporation's parent and other related parties under common control for the 
years ended December 31 were as follows: 
 

($ millions) 2016 2015 

Operating costs and other revenue charged to FortisBC Pacific (a) 7.1 7.7 

Electricity revenue recovered from FEI  0.7 0.7 

Electricity revenue recovered from WELP 0.1 - 

Operating costs charged to FEI (b) 5.7 5.1 

Operating costs charged to FHI (b) 0.3 0.5 

Operating costs charged to WELP (c) 2.0 - 

 15.9 14.0 

 
(a) The Corporation charged its parent, FortisBC Pacific, for management services, labour and materials. 

(b) The Corporation charged FEI and FHI for management services and other labour. 

(c) The Corporation charged WELP for the recovery of a portion of water fees. 
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21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

Related Party Costs 

The amounts charged by the Corporation's ultimate parent and other related parties under common control 
for the years ended December 31 were as follows: 
 

($ millions) 2016 2015 

Power purchase costs charged by WELP (a) 45.4 30.2 

Operating costs charged by Fortis (b) 2.5 1.9 

Operating costs charged by FEI (c) 3.9 3.8 

Operating costs charged by FHI (d) 0.5 0.6 

 52.3 36.5 

(a) The Corporation was charged by WELP for purchasing capacity under the WECA. 

(b) The Corporation was charged by its ultimate parent, Fortis, for corporate management services and 
other compensation.   

(c) The Corporation was charged by FEI for natural gas sales, office rent, management services and other 
labour, and other compensation charged by Fortis through FEI. 

(d) The Corporation was charged by FHI for management services and board of director costs. 

Balance Sheet Amounts 

The amounts due from related parties, which are included in accounts receivable on the consolidated 
balance sheets, and the amounts due to related parties, which are included in accounts payable and other 
current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets, are as follows: 

As at December 31 2016 2015 

($ millions) 

Amount 

Due from 

Amount 

Due to 

Amount 

Due from 

Amount 

Due to 

Fortis (a) 1.1 - - 0.1 
FortisBC Pacific  0.5 - 0.5 - 

FEI  0.9 0.3 0.4 0.4 
FHI  - 0.2 - 0.1 
WELP - 10.5 - 10.3 

 2.5 11.0 0.9 10.9 

(a) Included in accounts receivable is an amount due from Fortis related to the allocation from Fortis to FBC 

of the Part VI.1 tax associated with preference share dividends. 

In March 2016, FEI paid FBC $6.2 million to repay FBC for funds that were transferred from FBC’s tax 
instalment account at the Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA”) to FEI’s tax instalment account at the CRA. The 
transfer resulted in a decrease to FBC’s income tax receivable balance and a decrease to FEI’s income taxes 
payable balance as permitted by the CRA for associated entities. 
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22. COMMITMENTS  

The following table sets forth the Corporation’s estimated contractual obligations due in the years indicated: 

As at December 31, 2016 Total 

Due 

Within 
1 Year 

Due in 

Year 2 

Due in 

Year 3 

Due in 

Year 4 

Due in 

Year 5 

Due 
After 

5 Years 

($ millions)        
Power purchase obligations (a) 2,965.2 89.1 78.5 72.4 70.5 69.2 2,585.5 

Capital lease obligations (note 12) 2,194.0 42.1 42.8 43.5 44.2 45.1 1,976.3 

Interest obligations on long-term debt 861.9 35.4 35.4 35.4 35.4 35.4 684.9 

Long-term debt 1 660.0 - - - - 25.0 635.0 

Other (b) 5.3 0.6 0.3 2.8 0.2 0.3 1.1 

Totals 6,686.4 167.2 157.0 154.1 150.3 175.0 5,882.8 
1 Excludes unamortized debt issuance costs of $5.9 million. 

(a) In addition to the BPPA which has been recognized as a capital lease obligation (note 12), the 
Corporation’s power purchase obligations consist of the following: 

Waneta Expansion Capacity Agreement (“WECA”) 

During October 2010, FortisBC entered into an agreement to purchase capacity from the Waneta 

Expansion, a 335 MW hydroelectric generating facility adjacent to the existing Waneta Plant on the Pend 
d’Oreille River in BC. The Waneta Expansion is owned by a limited partnership, the limited partners of 
which are FortisBC’s ultimate parent, Fortis, which owns a 51 per cent interest, and a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of each of Columbia Power Corporation (“CPC”) and Columbia Basin Trust (“CBT”). It allows 
FortisBC to purchase capacity over 40 years, beginning April 1, 2015. The WECA was accepted for filing 
as an energy supply contract by the BCUC in May 2012. 

New BC Hydro Power Purchase Agreement (“New PPA”)  

During May 2013, FortisBC entered into the New PPA with BCH to purchase up to 200 MW of capacity 

and 1,752 GWh per year of associated energy for a 20 year term beginning October 1, 2013. The New 
PPA was approved by the BCUC in May 2014 and was effective July 1, 2014. The New PPA replaces the 
20 year supply arrangement between BCH and FortisBC that was entered into in 1993. The capacity 
and energy to be purchased under this agreement do not relate to a specific plant. The New PPA meets 
the exemption for normal purchases and as such is not required to be recorded at fair value as a 

derivative and is accounted for on an accrual basis. 

Capacity and Energy Purchase and Sale Agreement (“CEPSA”) 

In February 2015, FBC entered into the CEPSA with Powerex Corp. (“Powerex”) which provides for FBC 
to purchase all of its market energy requirements from Powerex and for FBC to sell any surplus capacity 
to Powerex that may be available after FBC meets its load requirements. The CEPSA was accepted by 
the British Columbia Utilities Commission (“BCUC”) in April 2015 and became effective beginning May 
2015. As at December 31, 2016, the total power purchase obligations outstanding under the CEPSA 

were approximately $12 million through to the end of 2018. The energy purchases under the CEPSA do 
not relate to specific plants and the output being purchased does not constitute a significant portion of 
the output of a specific plant. 

Other Agreements 

FortisBC has entered into other agreements to purchase fixed price, capacity and energy purchases 
through to the end of 2017. The purchases under these agreements do not relate to specific plants and 

the output being purchased does not constitute a significant portion of the output of a specific plant.  

(b) Included in other contractual obligations are building leases, vehicle leases, asset retirement obligations 
and a commitment to purchase fibre optic cable for approximately $2.5 million in 2019.  
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23. CONTINGENCIES  

Legal Proceedings  

The Province of BC filed a claim in the BC Supreme Court on June 8, 2012 claiming on its behalf, and on 
behalf of approximately 17 homeowners, damages suffered as a result of a landslide caused by a dam 
failure in Oliver, BC in 2010. The Province alleges in its claim that the dam failure was caused by the 

defendants, including FortisBC, through the use of a road on top of the dam. The Province estimates its 
damages, and the damages of the homeowners on whose behalf it is claiming, to be approximately $15 
million. FortisBC has notified its insurers; however, FortisBC has been advised by counsel for the Province 
that a response to the claim is not required at this time. The outcome cannot be reasonably determined or 
estimated at this time and, accordingly, no amount has been accrued in the financial statements. 

24. SALE OF ASSETS  

In December 2015, FBC and its subsidiaries entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement to sell the 

Corporation’s non-regulated WPP hydroelectric power plant assets located in Lillooet, BC, for a sale price of 
approximately $9 million. As a result, the assets have been reclassified from property, plant and equipment 
to assets held for sale on the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2015. For the year ended 
December 31, 2015, an impairment loss associated with the assets of $1.0 million was recognized in other 
(expenses) income, reflecting a reduction in the carrying value of the assets to the estimated fair value 
based on the selling price, less estimated costs to sell. In December 2015, FBC received a deposit of $0.9 
million related to the transaction which has been recognized in accounts payable and other current 

liabilities. 

For the year ended December 31, 2015, earnings before taxes of $0.7 million were recognized, excluding 
the impairment loss on the assets held for sale and expenses associated with the sale.  

Assets held for sale as at December 31, 2015 were as follows: 
 

($ millions) 2016 2015 

WPP hydroelectric power plant assets - 9.5 

Impairment - (1.0) 

Net assets held for sale - 8.5 

In February 2016, FBC and its subsidiaries sold the WPP non-regulated assets for gross proceeds of $9.2 

million. As a result, FBC recognized a gain on sale of $0.5 million, after tax and transactions costs, in other 
income in the first quarter of 2016.  

25. GUARANTEES  

The Corporation has letters of credit outstanding at September 30, 2016 totaling $0.6 million (December 
31, 2015 - $nil) to support one of the Corporation’s pension plans. 
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT 
  

The accompanying annual consolidated financial statements of FortisBC Inc. (the “Corporation”) have been 
prepared by management, who are responsible for the integrity of the information presented including the 
amounts that must, of necessity, be based on estimates and informed judgments. These annual consolidated 

financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States.  
 
In meeting its responsibility for the reliability and integrity of the annual consolidated financial statements, 
management has developed and maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides for the 
necessary internal controls to ensure transactions are properly authorized and recorded, assets are 
safeguarded and liabilities are recognized. The systems of the Corporation focus on the need for training of 

qualified and professional employees and the effective communication of management guidelines and policies. 
The effectiveness of the internal controls over financial reporting of FortisBC Inc. is evaluated on an ongoing 
basis.   
 
The Board of Directors oversees management’s responsibilities for financial reporting through an Audit and 
Risk Committee (the “Audit Committee”) which is composed of three independent directors and two directors 

who are officers of related companies. The Audit Committee oversees the external audit of the Corporation’s 
annual consolidated financial statements and the accounting and financial reporting and disclosure processes 
and policies of the Corporation. The Audit Committee meets with management, the shareholder’s auditors 
and the internal auditor to discuss the results of the external audit, the adequacy of the internal accounting 
controls and the quality and integrity of financial reporting. The Corporation’s annual consolidated financial 
statements are reviewed by the Audit Committee with each of management and the shareholder’s auditors 
before the statementsare recommended to the Board of Directors for approval. The shareholder’s auditors 

have full and free access to the Audit Committee.   
 
The Audit Committee has the duty to review the adoption of, and changes in, accounting principles and 
practices which have a material effect on the Corporation’s annual consolidated financial statements and to 
review and report to the Board of Directors on policies relating to the accounting and financial reporting and 
disclosure processes.  
 

The Audit Committee has the duty to review financial reports requiring Board of Directors’ approval prior to 
filing with the securities commissions or other regulatory authorities, to assess and review management 

judgments material to reported financial information and to review shareholder’s auditors’ independence and 
auditors’ fees.   
 
The 2017 annual consolidated financial statements were reviewed by the Audit Committee and, on their 
recommendation, were approved by the Board of Directors of FortisBC Inc.    

 
Deloitte LLP, independent auditors appointed by the shareholder of FortisBC Inc. upon recommendation of 
the Audit Committee, have performed an audit of the 2017 annual consolidated financial statements and their 
report follows. 

  

(Signed by) (Signed by) 

 Roger Dall’Antonia Ian Lorimer 
President and Chief Executive Officer  Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer 
 
Kelowna, Canada 

February 14, 2018 
 
  



 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

To the Shareholder of  
FortisBC Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of FortisBC Inc., which comprise the 
consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2017, and the consolidated statements of earnings, 
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of FortisBC Inc. as at December 31, 2017, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Other matter 
The consolidated financial statements of FortisBC Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2016 were audited 
by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements on 
February 9, 2017. 

 
 
 
Chartered Professional Accountants 
February 14, 2018 
Vancouver, Canada 

WEdison
Brian Groves Deloitte LLP updated
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FortisBC Inc. 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

As at December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

   
   
ASSETS 2017 2016 

Current assets   

Accounts receivable (notes 4 and 21) $       51                            $       55 

Prepaid expenses 2 2 

Other assets (note 5) 1 1 

Regulatory assets (note 8) 5 18 

Total current assets 59 76 

Property, plant and equipment, net (note 6) 1,497 1,455 

Intangible assets, net (note 7) 57 55 

Regulatory assets (note 8) 335 317 

Other assets (note 5) 6 6 

Goodwill (note 9) 235 235 

TOTAL ASSETS $  2,189 $  2,144 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY   

Current liabilities   

Credit facilities (note 20) $       54                     $       94 

Accounts payable and other current liabilities (notes 10 and 21) 61 63 

Income taxes payable 1 6 

Current portion of capital lease obligations (note 12) 1 1 

Regulatory liabilities (note 8) 7 15 

Total current liabilities 124 179 

Long-term debt (note 11) 729 654 

Capital lease obligations (note 12) 319 316 

Regulatory liabilities (note 8) 15 8 

Other liabilities (note 13) 2 2 

Pension and other post-employment benefits (note 15) 62 65 

Deferred income taxes (note 18) 167 152 

Total liabilities 1,418 1,376 

Commitments and Contingencies (note 22)   

Equity   

Common shares (a) (note 14) 219 219 

Additional paid-in capital (note 9) 322 322 

Retained earnings 230 227 

Total equity 771 768 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $  2,189 $  2,144 
(a) Par value of $100 each; 500 million authorized common shares; 2.2 million issued and outstanding at December 31, 

2017 and 2016. 
 
Approved on behalf of the Board: 

 
 
 
 
(Signed by) Brenda Eaton (Signed by) Roger Dall’Antonia 

 Director   Director 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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FortisBC Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Earnings 

For the years ended December 31  
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

  
 

 2017 2016 

Revenues (note 21)   

Electricity revenue $  365 $  335 

Other revenue  16 26 

Total revenues 381 361 

Expenses    

Power purchase costs (note 21) 141 132 

Operating costs (note 21) 64 64 

Property and other taxes 16 16 

Depreciation and amortization (notes 6, 7 and 8) 62 57 

Total expenses 283 269 

Operating income 98 92 

Other income (note 23) 1 1 

Finance charges (note 16) 37 37 

Earnings before income taxes 62 56 

Income tax expense (note 18) 12 7 

Net earnings $   50 $   49      

 
 
 

FortisBC Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 
For the years ended December 31 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

 

Common 
Shares 

Additional 
Paid-in 
Capital   

Retained 
Earnings   Total 

As at December 31, 2015 $   219  $   322  $   231  $   772 

Net earnings -    -      49  49 

Dividends on common shares               -                  -     (53)  (53) 

As at December 31, 2016 $   219 $   322   $   227   $   768 

Net earnings -    -     50  50 

Dividends on common shares               -                  -     (47)  (47) 

As at December 31, 2017 $   219 $   322   $   230   $   771 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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FortisBC Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

 
 
 2017 2016 

Operating activities   

Net earnings $   50   $    49        

Adjustments for non-cash items   

Depreciation and amortization (notes 6, 7 and 8) 62 57 

Equity component of allowance for funds used during construction 
(“AFUDC”) (1) - 

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (note 23) - (1) 

Deferred income taxes, net of regulatory adjustment (note 18) - (1) 

Change in long-term regulatory assets and liabilities 3 4 

Change in other assets and other liabilities - 1 

Changes in non-cash working capital (note 17) (10) (14) 

Cash from operating activities 104 95 

Investing activities   

Property, plant and equipment additions (note 17) (98) (69) 

Intangible asset additions (note 17) (7) (5) 

Contributions in aid of construction 13 8 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment (note 23) - 9 

Cash used in investing activities (92) (57) 

Financing activities   

Net proceeds from (repayment of) credit facilities (40) 38 

Issuance of long-term debt (note 11) 75 - 

Repayment of long-term debt (note 11) - (25) 

Dividends on common shares  (47) (53) 

Cash used in financing activities (12) (40) 

Net change in cash - (2) 

Cash at beginning of year - 2 

Cash at end of year $      -              $       -         

 
Supplementary Information to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (note 17) 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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1. DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS  

FortisBC Inc. (“FBC” or the “Corporation”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of FortisBC Pacific Holdings Inc. 
(“FortisBC Pacific”) which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Fortis Inc. (“Fortis”), a Canadian public 
company. 

FBC is an integrated, regulated electric utility operating in the southern interior of British Columbia (“BC”), 
serving approximately 172,300 customers directly and indirectly. The Corporation’s regulated business includes 
four hydroelectric generating plants with an aggregate capacity of 225 megawatts (“MW”), approximately 7,260 
kilometers of transmission and distribution power lines, and a peak demand of 746 MW.   

 
In February 2016, FBC and its subsidiaries completed the sale of the 0395518 Power Partnership (formerly 
Walden Power Partnership) (“WPP”) non-regulated 16 MW run-of-river hydroelectric power plant assets and 
subsequently dissolved the partnership.  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation  

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP”) and are presented in Canadian dollars 
unless otherwise specified. The consolidated financial statements include all adjustments that are of a recurring 
nature and necessary to present fairly the consolidated financial position of the Corporation.    

The consolidated financial statements include the historical accounts of the Corporation and its wholly-owned 
partnership and subsidiaries, WPP, 0395518 B.C. Ltd. (formerly ESI Power-Walden Corporation Ltd.) and West 
Kootenay Power Ltd. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated upon consolidation. 

An evaluation of subsequent events through February 14, 2018, the date these consolidated financial statements 
were issued, was completed to determine whether any circumstances warranted recognition or disclosure of 
events or transactions in the consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2017. Subsequent events 

have been appropriately disclosed in these consolidated financial statements. 

Regulation 

The Corporation is regulated by the British Columbia Utilities Commission (“BCUC”). Pursuant to the Utilities 
Commission Act (British Columbia), the BCUC regulates such matters as rates, construction, and  financing.  

The Corporation’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with US GAAP, including 
certain accounting treatments that differ from that for enterprises not subject to rate regulation. B vThe impacts 
of rate regulation on the Corporation’s operations for the years ending December 31, 2017 and 2016 are 
described in these “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”, and in note 3 “Regulatory Matters”, note 6 
“Property, Plant and Equipment”, note 7 “Intangible Assets”, note 8 “Regulatory Assets and Liabilities”,  note 12 
“Capital Lease Obligations”, note 13 “Other Liabilities”, note 15 “Employee Future Benefits”, note 16 “Finance 

Charges”, and note 18 “Income Taxes”. 

When the BCUC issues decisions affecting the financial statements, the effects of the decision are usually 
recorded in the period in which the decision is received. In the event that a regulatory decision is received after 
the balance sheet date but before the consolidated financial statements are issued, the facts and circumstances 

are reviewed to determine whether or not it is a recognized subsequent event. 

Cash 

Cash includes cash and short-term deposits with maturities of three months or less from the date of deposit.  

  



 

FortisBC Inc. 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

 

FortisBC Inc. Consolidated Financial Statements   7 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects management’s best estimate of losses on the accounts receivable 
balances. The Corporation maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts that is estimated based on a variety 
of factors including accounts receivable aging, historical experience and other currently available information, 
including events such as customer bankruptcy and current economic conditions. 

Interest is charged on overdue accounts receivable balances. Accounts receivable are written-off in the period 
in which the receivable is deemed uncollectible. 

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 

The BCUC has the general power to include or exclude costs, revenues, losses or gains in the rates of a specified 
period, resulting in a change in the timing of accounting recognition from that which would have been applied 

in an unregulated company. Such change in timing gives rise to the recognition of regulatory assets and 
liabilities. Regulatory assets represent future revenues associated with certain costs incurred that will be, or are 
probable to be, recovered from customers in future periods through the rate-setting process. Regulatory 

liabilities represent future reductions or limitations of increases in revenue associated with amounts that will 
be, or are expected to be, refunded to customers through the rate-setting process. 

All amounts deferred as regulatory assets and liabilities are subject to regulatory approval. As such, the BCUC 
could alter the amounts subject to deferral, at which time the change would be reflected in the consolidated 
financial statements. For regulatory assets and liabilities which are amortized, the amortization is approved by 
the BCUC. Certain remaining recovery and settlement periods are those expected by management and the 
actual recovery or settlement periods could differ based on regulatory approval.  

Materials and Supplies 

Materials and supplies includes inventory held for day-to-day operations and for the maintenance of property, 
plant and equipment. Inventory held for construction or used only in connection with an item of property, plant 
and equipment is classified as property, plant and equipment. Inventory is measured at the lower of average 

cost and net realizable value. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and unamortized 

contributions in aid of construction (“CIAC”). Cost includes all direct expenditures, betterments and 
replacements and as prescribed by the BCUC, an allocation of overhead costs and both a debt and an equity 
component of allowance for funds used during construction (“AFUDC”) at approved rates. Certain additions to 
property, plant and equipment are made with the assistance of CIACs from customers when the estimated 
revenue is less than the cost of providing service or when special equipment is needed to supply the customers’ 
specific requirements.  

Depreciation is based on rates approved by the BCUC and is calculated on a straight-line basis on the 
investment in property, plant and equipment commencing at the beginning of the year following when the 
asset is available for use. 

As approved by the BCUC, the remaining book value after the removal of property, plant and equipment is 

charged to accumulated depreciation. It is expected that these amounts charged to accumulated depreciation 
will be reflected in future depreciation expense when refunded or collected in customer rates. 

As approved by the BCUC, removal costs are collected as a component of depreciation on an accrual basis, 

with actual removal costs incurred drawing down the accrual balance. Removal costs are the direct costs 
incurred by the Corporation in taking assets out of service.  

  



 

FortisBC Inc. 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

 

FortisBC Inc. Consolidated Financial Statements   8 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Leases 

Leases that transfer to the Corporation substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the 
leased item are capitalized at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Included as capital leases are 
any arrangements that qualify as leases by conveying the right to use a specific asset. 

Capital leases are amortized over the lease term, except where ownership of the asset is transferred at the end 
of the lease term, in which case capital leases are amortized over the estimated service life of the underlying 
asset. Where the BCUC has approved recovery of the arrangements as operating leases for rate-setting purposes 

that would otherwise qualify as capital leases for financial reporting purposes, specifically the Brilliant Power 
Purchase Agreement (“BPPA”) and the Brilliant Terminal Station (“BTS”) included in note 12 “Capital Lease 
Obligations”, the timing of the expense recognition related to the lease is modified to conform with the rate-
setting process. Therefore, the total interest and depreciation expense recognized during a period equals the 

power purchase costs or operating lease rental expense included in allowable costs for rate-making purposes 
during that period with the difference recognized as a regulatory asset to be recovered from customers over the 

term of the related arrangements. 

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in earnings on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. 

Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are comprised of right of ways and software not directly attributable to the operation of 
property, plant and equipment and are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Included in the cost of 
intangible assets are all direct expenditures, betterments and replacements and as prescribed by the BCUC, an 

allocation of overhead costs and both a debt and equity component of AFUDC at approved rates.  

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite 
lives are amortized over their useful lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the 
intangible asset may be impaired. Amortization is based on rates approved by the BCUC and is calculated on a 

straight-line basis commencing at the beginning of the year following when the asset is available for use.  

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not subject to amortization and are tested for impairment 
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate the asset may be impaired. The 

useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether the 
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from 
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. 

No impairment provision has been determined for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.  

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 

carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets is measured by a comparison of 
the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the 
asset and eventual disposition. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows and 
eventual disposition, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the 

asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.  

Asset-impairment testing is carried out at the enterprise level to determine if assets are impaired. The 
recovery of regulated assets’ carrying value, including a fair return on capital or assets, is provided through 

customer electricity rates approved by the BCUC. The net cash inflows for the Corporation are not asset-specific 
but are pooled for the entire regulated utility. There was no impairment of regulated long-lived assets for the 
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

Goodwill  

Goodwill represents the excess, at the dates of acquisition, of the purchase price over the fair value of the net 
amounts assigned to individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed relating to business acquisitions. Goodwill 
is carried at initial cost less any write-down for impairment.  
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

When the Corporation tests goodwill for impairment it has the option, on an annual basis, of performing a 
qualitative assessment before calculating fair value. If the qualitative factors indicate that fair value is 50 per 
cent or more likely to be greater than the carrying value, calculation of fair value would not be required. 

The Corporation performs an annual internal quantitative assessment and fair value is estimated when: (i) 
management’s assessment of quantitative and qualitative factors indicates that fair value is not 50 per cent or 
more likely to be greater than carrying value; or (ii) the excess of estimated fair value compared to carrying 
value, as determined as of the date of the immediately preceding goodwill impairment test, was not significant. 

Irrespective of the above-noted criteria, the Corporation will estimate the fair value as at the annual impairment 
date, at a minimum once every five years.  

The Corporation performs the annual impairment test as at October 1. In addition, the Corporation also performs 

an impairment test if any event occurs or if circumstances change that would indicate that the fair value of the 
Corporation was below its carrying value. No such event or changes in circumstances occurred during 2017 or 
2016 and the Corporation concluded that it is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit was 

greater than the carrying value. It was concluded that goodwill was not impaired. 

Asset Retirement Obligations 

The Corporation recognizes the fair value of a future Asset Retirement Obligation (“ARO”) as a liability in the 
period in which it incurs a legal obligation associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets that result 
from the acquisition, construction, development, and/or normal use of the assets. The Corporation concurrently 
recognizes a corresponding increase in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset that is depreciated 
over the remaining life of the asset. The fair value of the ARO is estimated using the expected cash flow approach 

that reflects a range of possible outcomes discounted at a credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate. Subsequent to 
the initial measurement, the ARO is adjusted at the end of each period to reflect the passage of time and 
changes in the estimated future cash flows underlying the obligation.   

Changes in the obligation due to the passage of time are recognized as a regulatory asset using the effective 

interest method. Changes in the obligation due to changes in estimated cash flows are to be recognized as an 
adjustment of the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset that is depreciated over the remaining life of 
the asset. 

The Corporation has AROs for which the obligations cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. These AROs 
are primarily associated with the Corporation’s hydroelectric generating facilities and assets associated with 
interconnection facilities. While each of the foregoing will have legal asset retirement obligations (i.e. land and 
environmental remediation and/or removal of assets), the final date of removal of the related assets and the 
costs to do so cannot be reasonably determined at this time. There is a reasonable expectation that asset 
retirement costs would be recoverable through future rates. 

Revenue Recognition 

Electricity revenue is billed at rates approved by the BCUC and is bundled to include the cost of generating, 
transmitting and distributing electricity. In addition, the rate includes customer service as well as other corporate 
and service functions.  

Electricity is metered upon delivery to customers and is recognized as revenue when consumed using rates 

approved by the BCUC. Electricity that is consumed but not yet billed to customers is estimated and accrued as 
revenue at each reporting date. The estimation process for unbilled electricity consumption will result in 

adjustments to estimates of electricity revenues in the periods they become known. 

The Corporation has entered into contracts to sell surplus capacity that may be available after FBC meets its 
load requirements. These sales are recognized on an accrual basis based on rates set out in the sales contracts 
and measurements at the point of interconnection. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Employee Future Benefits 

The Corporation sponsors a number of post-employment benefit plans. These plans include defined benefit, 
unfunded supplemental, and various other post-employment benefit (“OPEB”) plans. 

The cost of pensions and OPEBs earned by employees are actuarially determined as an employee accrues 
service. The Corporation uses the projected benefit pro-rata method based on years of service, management’s 
best estimates of expected returns on plan assets, salary escalation, retirement age, mortality and expected 
future health-care costs. The discount rate used to value liabilities is based on Corporate AA bond yields with 

cash flows that match the timing and amount of the expected benefit payments under the plans. The Corporation 
uses a measurement date of December 31 for all plans.  

The expected return on plan assets is based on management’s estimate of the long-term expected rate of return 

on plan assets and the fair market value of plan assets.  

Adjustments, in excess of 10 per cent of the greater of the accrued benefit obligation and the fair value of plan 
assets that result from changes in assumptions and experience gains and losses, are amortized straight-line 

over the expected average remaining service life, or the expected average remaining life expectancy,  of the 

employee group covered by the plans. Experience will often deviate from the actuarial assumptions resulting 

in actuarial gains and losses. 

The Corporation records the funded or unfunded status of its defined benefit pension plans and OPEB plans on 
the balance sheet. Unamortized balances relating to past service costs and net actuarial gains and losses have 
been recognized in regulatory assets and are expected to be recovered from customers in future rates. 
Subsequent changes to past service costs and net actuarial gains and losses are recognized as an expense, 
where required by the BCUC, or otherwise as a change in the regulatory asset or liability. 

The Corporation also provides a defined contribution pension arrangement to certain employees not covered by 

the defined benefit plans. Defined contribution plan costs are expensed by the Corporation as contributions are 

payable. 

Fair Value 

Fair value is the price at which a market participant could sell an asset or transfer a liability to an unrelated 
party. A fair value measurement is required to reflect the assumptions that market participants would use in 
pricing an asset or liability based on the best available information. These assumptions include the risks 
inherent in a particular valuation technique, such as a pricing model, and the risks inherent in the inputs to 

the model. The fair values of the Corporation’s financial instruments reflect point-in-time estimates based on 
current and relevant market information about the instruments as at the balance sheet dates. The estimates 
cannot be determined with precision as they involve uncertainties and matters of judgment and, therefore, 
may not be relevant in predicting the Corporation’s future consolidated earnings or cash flows. A fair value 
hierarchy exists that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The Corporation is required to record 
all derivative instruments at fair value except those which qualify for the normal purchases and normal sales 

exception. 

Derivative Financial Instruments  

Derivative instruments are recognized as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and are measured at 
fair value, unless they meet the normal purchases and normal sales scope exception. The Corporation continually 
assesses its contracts, including its power purchase agreements, to determine whether they meet the criteria 
of a derivative, and if so, whether they qualify for the normal purchases and normal sales scope exception.  

Debt Issuance Costs  

Costs incurred to arrange debt financing are recognized as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the 
debt liability and are accounted for using the effective interest method over the life of the related financial 
liability. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Sales Taxes 

In the course of its operations, the Corporation collects sales taxes from its customers. When customers are 
billed, a current liability is recognized for the sales taxes included on the customer’s bill. This liability is settled 
when the taxes are remitted to the appropriate government authority. The Corporation’s revenue excludes the 
sales taxes.  

Income Taxes 

The Corporation follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, 

deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the tax and 
accounting basis of assets and liabilities, as well as for the benefit of losses available to be carried forward to 
future years for tax purposes that are more likely than not (greater than a 50 per cent chance) to be realized. 

The deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted income tax rates and laws that will 
be in effect when the temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. As a result of rate 
regulation, deferred income taxes incurred related to regulated operations have been offset by a corresponding 

regulatory asset or liability resulting in no impact on net earnings. Current income tax expense or recovery is 
recognized for the estimated income taxes payable or receivable in the current year. 

As approved by the BCUC, the Corporation recovers income tax expense in customer rates based only on income 
taxes that are currently payable for regulatory purposes, except for certain regulatory asset and liability accounts 
specifically prescribed by the BCUC. Therefore, current customer rates do not include the recovery of deferred 
income taxes related to temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for regulatory purposes, as these taxes are expected to be collected in rates when they become 

payable. An offsetting regulatory asset or liability is recognized for the amount of income taxes that is 
expected to be collected in rates once the amount becomes payable. 

Any difference between the expense recognized and that recovered from customers in current rates for income 
tax expense that is expected to be recovered, or refunded, in future customer rates is subject to deferral 
treatment as described in note 8 “Regulatory Assets and Liabilities”. 

The Corporation recognizes a tax benefit if it is more likely than not that a tax position taken or expected to be 
taken in a tax return will be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities based on the merits of the position. 

The tax benefit recognized in the financial statements is measured based on the largest amount of benefit that 
is greater than 50 per cent likely to be realized upon settlement. The difference between a tax position taken or 
expected to be taken in a tax return and the benefit recognized and measured pursuant to this guidance 
represents an unrecognized tax benefit. 

Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are recognized in income tax expense. 

Segment Reporting 

The Corporation has a single reportable segment.  

Use of Accounting Estimates 

The preparation of the Corporation’s financial statements in accordance with US GAAP requires management to 
make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure 

of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue 
and expenses during the reporting periods. Estimates and judgments are based on historical experience, 
regulatory decisions, current conditions and various other assumptions believed to be reasonable under the 

circumstances. The use of estimates is described in the “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”, in note 
8 “Regulatory Assets and Liabilities”, and note 22 “Commitments and Contingencies”. Certain estimates are 
also necessary since the regulatory environment in which the Corporation operates often requires amounts 
to be recorded at estimated values until these amounts are finalized pursuant to regulatory decisions or other 
regulatory proceedings. Due to changes in facts and circumstances and the inherent uncertainty involved in 
making estimates, actual results may differ significantly from current estimates. Estimates and judgments 
are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, are reported in earnings in the period in 

which they become known. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

New Accounting Policies  

Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment   

Effective January 1, 2017, the Corporation adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2017-04, 
Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment. The amendments in this update simplify the subsequent 
measurement of goodwill by eliminating step two in the current two-step goodwill impairment test. An entity 
will apply a one-step quantitative test and record the amount of goodwill impairment as the excess of a reporting 
unit’s carrying amount over its fair value, not to exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to the reporting 

unit. The new guidance does not amend the optional qualitative assessment of goodwill impairment. The above-
noted ASU was applied prospectively and did not impact the Corporation’s annual consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

Future Accounting Pronouncements  

FBC considers the applicability and impact of all ASU’s issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(“FASB”). The following updates have been issued by FASB, but have not yet been adopted by FBC. Any ASUs 

not included below were assessed and determined to be either not applicable to the Corporation or are not 
expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

ASU No. 2014-09 was issued in May 2014 and the amendments in this update, along with additional ASUs issued 
in 2016 and 2017 to clarify implementation guidance, create Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 
606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and supersede the revenue recognition requirements in ASC 
Topic 605, Revenue Recognition, including most industry-specific revenue recognition guidance throughout the 

codification. This standard clarifies the principles for recognizing revenue and enables users of financial 
statements to better understand and consistently analyse an entity’s revenues across industries and 
transactions.  

The new guidance permits two methods of adoption: (i) the full retrospective method, under which comparative 

periods would be restated, and the cumulative impact of applying the standard would be recognized as at 
January 1, 2017, the earliest period presented; and (ii) the modified retrospective method, under which 
comparative periods would not be restated and the cumulative impact of applying the standard would be 

recognized at the date of initial adoption, supplemented by additional disclosures.  The Corporation adopted the 
guidance on January 1, 2018 using the modified retrospective method and there have been no adjustments 
identified to the opening balance sheet or retained earnings. 

FBC has assessed tariff revenue, which represents more than 96 per cent of the Corporation’s consolidated 
revenue at December 31, 2017, and has concluded that the adoption of this standard will not change the 
Corporation’s accounting policy for recognizing tariff revenue and, therefore, will not have an impact on 

earnings. FBC has completed assessments and conclusions on less material revenue streams and does not 
expect any adjustments.  

The Corporation will add additional disclosures to address the requirement to provide more information 
regarding the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows, which will result in revenues 
that fall outside the scope of the new standard, including alternative revenue programs, being presented 

separately. The Corporation will present revenue in three categories: (1) revenue from contracts with 
customers, which will include tariff revenue; (2) alternative revenue programs; and (3) other revenue. The 

Corporation's revenue is not currently disaggregated, but upon implementation of the new guidance FBC will 
disaggregate by customer class as it is consistent with other externally reported documents of the 
Corporation. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 

ASU No. 2016-01, Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, was issued in 
January 2016 and the amendments in this update address certain aspects of recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. Most notably, the amendments require the following: (i) 
equity investments in unconsolidated entities (other than those accounted for using the equity method of 
accounting) to be measured at fair value through earnings; however, entities will be able to elect to record 
equity investments without readily determinable fair values at cost, less impairment, and plus or minus 

subsequent adjustments for observable price changes; and (ii) financial assets and financial liabilities to be 
presented separately in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, grouped by measurement category 
and form of financial asset. This update is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after 
December 15, 2017. This update is not expected to have a material impact on its consolidated financial 
statements and related disclosures. 

Leases 

ASU No. 2016-02 was issued in February 2016 and the amendments in this update create ASC Topic 842, 
Leases, and supersede lease requirements in ASC Topic 840, Leases. The main provision of ASC Topic 842 is 
the recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet by lessees for those leases that were 
previously classified as operating leases. For operating leases, a lessee is required to do the following: (i) 
recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, initially measured at the present value of the lease 
payments, on the balance sheet; (ii) recognize a single lease cost, calculated so that the cost of the lease is 
allocated over the lease term on a generally straight-line basis; and (iii) classify all cash payments within 

operating activities in the statement of cash flows. These amendments also require qualitative disclosures 
along with specific quantitative disclosures. This update is effective for annual and interim periods beginning 
after December 15, 2018 and is to be applied using a modified retrospective approach with practical expedient 
options. Early adoption is permitted. FBC is assessing the impact that the adoption of this update will have 
on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. 

Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments  

ASU No. 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, was issued in June 2016 and the 

amendments in this update require entities to use an expected credit loss methodology and to consider a 
broader range of reasonable and supportable information to inform credit loss estimates. This update is 
effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2019 and is to be applied on a modified 
retrospective basis. Early adoption is permitted for annual and interim periods beginning after 
December 15, 2018. FBC is assessing the impact that the adoption of this update will have on its consolidated 
financial statements and related disclosures. 

Improving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit 
Cost   

ASU No. 2017-07, Improving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement 
Benefit Cost, was issued in March 2017 and the amendments in this update require that an employer 
disaggregate the current service costs component of net benefit cost and present it in the same statement of 
earnings line item as other employee compensation costs arising from services rendered. The other 
components of net benefit cost are required to be presented separately from the service cost component and 

outside of operating income. Additionally, the amendments allow only the service cost component to be 
eligible for capitalization when applicable.  

This update is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is 
permitted, however, early adoption must be within the first interim period of a reporting year. The 
amendments in this update should be applied retrospectively for the presentation of the net periodic benefit 
costs and prospectively, on and after the effective date, for the capitalization in assets of only the service cost 
component of net periodic benefit costs. The Corporation adopted this ASU on January 1, 2018 and there are 

no material adjustments expected on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.  
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3. REGULATORY MATTERS  

Multi-year Performance Based Ratemaking Plan for 2014 to 2019 (“2014 PBR Application”) 

In September 2014, the BCUC issued its decision on FBC’s 2014 PBR Application. The approved PBR Plan 
incorporates an incentive mechanism for improving operating and capital expenditure efficiencies. Operation 
and maintenance expenses and base capital expenditures during the PBR period, 2014 to 2019, are subject 
to an incentive formula reflecting incremental costs for inflation and half of customer growth, less a fixed 
productivity adjustment factor of 1.03 per cent each year. The PBR Plan also includes a 50/50 sharing of 
variances (“Earnings Sharing Mechanism”) from the formula-driven operation and maintenance expenses and 

capital expenditures over the PBR period, and a number of service quality measures designed to ensure FBC 
maintains service levels. It also sets out the requirements for an annual review process which provides a 
forum for discussion between FBC and interested parties regarding its current performance and future 
activities. 

In December 2015, the BCUC issued its decision on FBC’s 2016 rates. The decision results in a 2016 average 
rate base of approximately $1,286 million and a rate increase of 2.96 per cent over 2015 rates.  

In January 2017, the BCUC issued its decision on FBC’s 2017 rates. The decision results in a 2017 average 
rate base of approximately $1,285 million and a rate increase of 2.76 per cent over 2016 rates.  

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

($ millions)  2017   2016  

Billed accounts receivable 18 22 

Unbilled accounts receivable 25 23 
Trade accounts receivable 8 9 
Amounts due from related parties (note 21) 2 3 
Allowance for doubtful accounts (2) (2) 

Total accounts receivable 51 55 

5. OTHER ASSETS 

($ millions)  2017   2016  

Materials and supplies 1 1 
Pension asset (note 15) 6 6 

Total other assets  7 7 
Less: current portion 1 1 

Total long-term other assets 6 6 

The current portion of other assets is materials and supplies.  
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

2017  Cost  
Accumulated 
Depreciation 

 Book 
Value  

Weighted Average 
Depreciation Rate 

($ millions)     
Generation 251 60 191 1.6% 

Transmission 698 204 494 1.9% 
Distribution 574 101 473 2.2% 
General 188 86 102 5.1% 
Assets under capital lease 293 77 216 2.0% 
Assets under construction 21 - 21 - 

Total property, plant and equipment 2,025 528 1,497  

     

2016  Cost  
Accumulated 
Depreciation  Book Value  

Weighted Average 
Depreciation Rate 

($ millions)     

Generation 249 57 192 1.7% 
Transmission 688 192 496 2.1% 
Distribution 549 92 457 1.8% 
General 166 84 82 5.2% 
Assets under capital lease 290 71 219 2.0% 
Assets under construction 9 - 9 - 

Total property, plant and equipment 1,951 496 1,455  

As allowed by the BCUC, during the year ended December 31, 2017, the Corporation capitalized an allowance 
for debt and equity funds used during construction at approved rates of $1 million (2016 - $nil) and $1 million 
(2016 - $nil) respectively, and approved capitalized overhead costs of $9 million (2016 - $9 million). 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, including a net salvage provision, for the year ended December 

31, 2017 totalled $47 million (2016 - $46 million).  

Included in property, plant and equipment are ARO costs totalling $2 million (2016 - $2 million). Depreciation 
of $nil million (2016 - $nil million) on the asset retirement costs was recorded in other recoverable costs in 
regulatory assets (note 8). The corresponding liability has been recorded as an ARO in other liabilities (note 13).  

Assets under capital lease include the BPPA and BTS arrangements. Depreciation of $5 million (2016 - $5 million) 
on the BPPA asset under capital lease was recorded in the BPPA lease costs regulatory asset (note 8) and 
depreciation of $1 million (2016 - $1 million) on the BTS asset under capital lease was recorded in the BTS lease 

costs regulatory asset (note 8).  
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

2017       Cost    
Accumulated 
Amortization   Book Value  

($ millions)     
Software 85  59 26 

Land rights 36  5 31 

Total intangible assets 121  64 57 

      
      

2016       Cost    
Accumulated 
Amortization   Book Value  

($ millions)     

Software 80  55 25 

Land rights 34  4 30 

Total intangible assets 114  59 55 

 
Amortization of intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2017 totalled $5 million (2016 - $5 million). 

Amortization of software is recorded on a straight-line basis using an average amortization rate of 6.6 per cent 
(2016 – 6.6 per cent). Amortization of land rights is recorded on a straight-line basis using an amortization rate 
of 1.3 per cent (2016 – 1.3 per cent).  

Included in the cost of land rights at December 31, 2017 was $15 million (2016 - $15 million) not subject to 
amortization. 

For intangibles subject to amortization at December 31, 2017, the amortization expense is estimated to 
average approximately $6 million annually for each of the next five years. 
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8. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Based on existing regulatory orders or the expectation of future regulatory orders, the Corporation has recorded 
the following amounts, net of income tax and amortization where applicable, which are expected to be recovered 
from or refunded to customers: 

($ millions) 2017    2016   

Remaining 
Recovery Period 

(years) 

Regulatory assets      

Energy efficiency and conservation program 22  20  10 

Pension and OPEB unrecognized actuarial losses 
and past service costs (note 15) 

 

34  

 
37  Ongoing 

Pension and OPEB transition and variance asset  2  3  6 

BPPA lease costs 98  91  39 

BTS lease costs 6  6  30 

Regulated asset for deferred income taxes 169   154   Ongoing 

Income taxes recoverable on OPEBs 5  5  Ongoing 

Stepped and Stand-by Rate Decision -  9  - 

Flow-through variances -  5  - 

Meter retirement costs 2  3  2 

Other recoverable costs 2   2   Various 

Total regulatory assets 340  335   
Less: current portion 5   18     

Long-term portion of regulatory assets 335   317     

           

($ millions) 2017    2016    

Remaining 
Recovery Period 

(years)  

Regulatory liabilities      

Flow-through variances 9  13  1-2 

Net salvage provision 12  6  Ongoing 

Pension and OPEB cost variance -  3  1-3 

Debt issuance costs under effective interest method 1   1   33 

Total regulatory liabilities  22  23   

Less: current portion 7   15     

Long-term portion of regulatory liabilities 15   8     

 
Net amortization expense of regulatory assets and liabilities, excluding a net salvage provision, for the year 
ended December 31, 2017 totalled $10 million (2016 - $6 million). 

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Program 

The Corporation provides energy management services to promote energy efficiency programs for its customers. 

As required by BCUC order, the Corporation has capitalized all expenditures (except certain defined costs) and 
the regulatory asset represents the unamortized balance of the energy management program. The regulatory 
asset balance is expected to be recovered from customers in future rates over an average of 10 years as 
approved by the BCUC.  
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8. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 

Pension and OPEB Unrecognized Actuarial Losses and Past Service Costs 

The net funded status, being the difference between the fair value of plan assets and the projected benefit 
obligation for pensions and OPEBs, is required to be recognized on the Corporation’s balance sheet under ASC 
Topic 715. The amount required to make this net funded status adjustment, which would otherwise be 
recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (“AOCI”), has instead been deferred as a regulatory 
asset. The regulatory asset balance represents the deferred portion of the expense relating to pensions and 
OPEBs that is expected to be recovered from customers in future rates as the deferred amounts are included as 

a component of future net benefit cost. The regulatory asset balance is not subject to a regulatory return. 

Pension and OPEB Transition and Variance Asset 

Up until the end of 2011, a cumulative difference existed between the pension and OPEB amounts to be 
recognized under ASC Topic 715 and the pension and OPEB amounts recovered in rates as approved by the 

BCUC. This cumulative transitional amount, which was measured as of January 1, 2000, would otherwise be 
recognized in retained earnings but instead has been approved by the BCUC for deferral as a regulatory asset 
to be collected from customers over a term of twelve years beginning on January 1, 2012. This regulatory asset 
balance is not subject to a regulatory return. 

BPPA Lease Costs 

The depreciation on the BPPA capital lease asset (note 6) and the interest expense associated with the BPPA 
lease obligation (note 12) are not being fully recovered by the Corporation in current customer rates since those 

rates include only the payments set out under the BPPA. The BPPA payments, including the related operating 
costs, are recovered as power purchase costs rather than as capital lease depreciation and interest expense. 
The regulatory asset balance represents the deferred portion of the cost of the lease that is expected to be 
recovered from customers in future rates over the term of the arrangement, which ends in 2056, and is not 
subject to a regulatory return. 

BTS Lease Costs 

The depreciation on the BTS capital lease asset (note 6), the interest expense associated with the BTS obligation 
(note 12) and the related operating costs are not being fully recovered by the Corporation in current customer 
rates since those rates include only the recovery of the BTS as an operating lease with associated operating 

costs. The regulatory asset balance represents the deferred portion of the cost of the lease that is expected to 
be recovered from customers in future rates over the term of the arrangement, and is not subject to a regulatory 
return.   

Regulated Asset for Deferred Income Taxes  

FBC recognizes deferred income taxes and liabilities and related regulatory liabilities and assets for the amount 
of deferred income taxes expected to be refunded to, or recovered from, customers in future rates. Included in 
deferred income tax assets and liabilities are the future income tax effects of the subsequent settlement of the 
related regulatory liabilities and assets through customer rates. The regulatory asset balance is expected to be 
recovered from customers in future rates when the deferred taxes become payable, and is not subject to a 

regulatory return. 

Income Taxes Recoverable on OPEBs 

The BCUC allows OPEB plan costs to be collected in customer rates on an accrual basis, rather than on a cash 
basis, which creates timing differences for income tax purposes. As approved by the BCUC, the tax effect of this 
timing difference is deferred as a regulatory asset and will be reduced as cash payments for OPEB plans exceed 
required accruals and amounts collected in customer rates. This regulatory asset balance is expected to be 
recovered from customers in future rates, and is not subject to a regulatory return. 
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8. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 

Stepped and Stand-by Rate Decision 

In September 2015, the BCUC issued a decision that approved both a stand-by rate and the specific service 
parameters for the one customer to which the rate applies. In October 2015, the BCUC issued a letter 
encouraging the Corporation to come to an agreement with the customer on the appropriate rate of billing to 
apply during the period in which the regulatory process that led to the stand-by rate was progressing. FBC and 
the customer filed a joint submission setting out their agreement on the refund amount to be applied to the 
interim period, and its regulatory treatment. The BCUC issued a decision in December 2015 which approved the 

joint submission agreement refund amount of approximately $8 million, plus applicable interest, to be refunded 
to the customer, with the offset of the payment recognized as a regulatory asset to be recovered in 2017 rates 
from other customers. The payment was made to the customer during 2016. 

Meter Retirement Costs 

As ordered by the BCUC, these are costs associated with the retirement of meters replaced with advanced meter 
infrastructure. This regulatory balance is expected to be recovered from customers in future rates, and is not 

subject to a regulatory return.  

Other Recoverable Costs 

This balance includes deferral of other costs which have either been approved by the BCUC for deferral and 
amortization or are expected to be approved. Other recoverable costs include costs associated with the long-
term transmission and distribution system plan development, deferred projects, rate application proceedings, 
depreciation and accretion on the ARO, and the income tax impacts of the Corporation’s prepaid pension costs 
and debt issuance costs. These regulatory asset and liability balances are expected to be recovered from, or 

refunded to, customers in future rates. 

Flow-through Variances 

As part of the PBR Decision and effective January 1, 2014 through to the end of the PBR term, the Corporation 
has a flow-through deferral account that captures variances from regulated forecast items, excluding formulaic 

operation and maintenance costs, that do not have separately approved deferral mechanisms, and flows those 
variances through customer rates in the following year.  

The flow-through variance regulatory liability (asset in 2016) includes the current year’s flow-through variance, 

the over collection of 2014 revenue established per the 2014 PBR Decision which was fully refunded by the end 
of 2017, and the BCUC approved Earnings Sharing Mechanism deferral account that captures 50/50 sharing of 
variances from formula-driven operation and maintenance expenses and capital expenditures, to be refunded 
to customers. This regulatory liability is not subject to a regulatory return. 

Net Salvage Provision 

The net salvage provision account captures the provision for costs which will be incurred to remove assets 

from service in a future period. As actual removal costs are incurred, the net salvage provision account is 
drawn down. As at December 31, 2017 $10 million (2016 - $10 million) was collected from customers through 
depreciation expense to offset future removal costs which may be incurred. Actual removal costs incurred for 
the year ended December 31, 2017 were $4 million (2016 - $4 million).   

Pension and OPEB Cost Variance 

As approved by the BCUC, the pension and OPEB cost variance account accumulates differences between 
pension and OPEB expenses that are approved for recovery in rates and the actuarially determined pension and 

OPEB expense. The regulatory liability balance is expected to be returned to customers in future rates over 3 
years, and is not subject to a regulatory return. 

Debt Issuance Costs Under Effective Interest Method  

This balance represents the cumulative difference between applying the effective interest method for amortizing 
debt issuance costs and the straight-line amortization method used in setting customer rates. This regulatory 
liability represents the cumulative difference between the two amortization methods which will be refunded to 
customers over the term of the outstanding debt through future rates, and is not subject to a regulatory return. 
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9. GOODWILL 

($ millions) 2017  2016  

Resulting from the push-down effects of the acquisition of FBC by Fortis 220  220        
Associated with the acquisition of Princeton Light & Power Company, Limited 

(“PLP”) by FBC 1        1        
Associated with the acquisition of the City of Kelowna electrical utility 

business by FBC 14 14 

Total goodwill  235    235    

 
There was no impairment of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.  

On May 31, 2004, Fortis, through a wholly owned subsidiary, acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares 

of Aquila Networks Canada (British Columbia) Ltd. (renamed FortisBC). The consideration paid for this 

acquisition has been recorded in FBC’s financial statements using push-down accounting. In addition to goodwill, 
the Corporation has recognized additional paid-in capital related to the push-down of the excess purchase price 
paid by Fortis on acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired.  

On December 31, 2006, FBC acquired PLP. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets 
acquired has been recorded as goodwill. 

On March 29, 2013, FBC purchased the City of Kelowna’s electrical utility business for $55 million. The excess 
of the fair value of the consideration paid over the fair value of the assets acquired has been recorded as 

goodwill. 

10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

($ millions) 2017  2016  

Employee compensation and benefits payable 11 11 

Trade accounts payable 17 16 
Power purchase and wheeling accruals 5 6 

Customer deposits 7 9 
Interest payable 7 7 
Other current liabilities 1 2 
Pension and other post-employment benefits (note 15) 1 1 
Amounts due to related parties (note 21) 12 11 

Total accounts payable and other current liabilities  61 63 
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11. LONG-TERM DEBT 

($ millions) 2017   2016  

Secured Debentures   
 Series G 8.8% due August 28, 2023 25 25  
Unsecured Debentures   
 Series I 7.81% due December 1, 2021 25 25  
 Series 05-1 5.60% due November 9, 2035 100 100  

 Series 07-1 5.90% due July 4, 2047 105 105  
 Medium Term Note Debentures Series 1 6.10% due June 2, 2039 105 105  
 Medium Term Note Debentures Series 2 5.00% due November 24, 2050 100 100  
 Medium Term Note Debentures Series 3 4.00% due October 28, 2044 200 200 
  Medium Term Note Debentures Series 4 3.62% due December 6, 2049 75 - 

Total long-term debt 735 660 

Less: debt issuance costs 6 6 

Total long-term debt, net of debt issuance costs 729    654  

 
Secured and Unsecured Debentures 

The Series G secured debentures are collateralized by a fixed and floating first charge on the assets of the 
Corporation. The secured Series G and unsecured Series I debentures are guaranteed by FortisWest Inc., a 
subsidiary of Fortis.  

The Corporation’s secured and unsecured debentures are redeemable in whole or in part at the option of the 
Corporation at a price equal to the greater of the Canada Yield Price, as defined in the applicable Trust Indenture, 
and the principal amount of the debt to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date specified for 
redemption. 

On December 4, 2017, FBC entered into an agreement with a Canadian Chartered bank to sell $75 million of 
unsecured Medium Term Note Debentures (“MTN Debentures”) Series 4. The MTN Debentures bear interest at 

a rate of 3.62 per cent to be paid semi-annually and mature on December 6, 2049. The closing of the issuance 
occurred on December 6, 2017, with net proceeds being used to repay existing credit facilities.  

The Corporation has externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject to that include interest 
coverage ratios and limitations on the amount of debt that can be incurred relative to equity. The Corporation 

is in compliance with these externally imposed capital requirements as at December 31, 2017. 

See note 22 “Commitments and Contingencies” for principal payments required over the next five years and 
thereafter. 
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12. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS  

($ millions)  2017  2016  

Capital lease obligations   320   317 
Less: current portion of capital lease obligations  1  1 

Long-term portion of capital lease obligations   319   316 

 
BPPA Capital Lease  

On May 3, 1996 an order was granted by the BCUC approving the 60-year BPPA for the sale of the output of 
the Brilliant hydroelectric plant located near Castlegar, BC. The Brilliant plant is owned by the Brilliant Power 
Corporation (“BPC”), a corporation owned equally by the Columbia Power Corporation (“CPC”) and the Columbia 

Basin Trust (“CBT”). FBC operates and maintains the Brilliant plant for the BPC in return for a management fee. 
In exchange for the specified take-or-pay amounts of power, the BPPA requires semi-annual payments based 

on a return on capital, which is composed of the original plant capital charge and periodic upgrade capital 
charges, which are both subject to fixed annual escalators, as well as sustaining capital charges, and operating 
expenses. The BPPA includes a market related price adjustment after 30 years of the 60-year term. Due to the 
fixed annual escalators, presently the interest expense on the capital lease obligation exceeds the required 
payments and therefore the capital lease obligation increases through 2024 and subsequently decreases for the 

remainder of the term. Approximately 94 per cent of the output from the 149 MW Brilliant hydroelectric plant is 
being purchased by FBC through the BPPA. 

The BPPA lease obligation bears interest at a composite rate of approximately 5 per cent. Of the $29 million 
(2016 - $29 million) of interest expense relating to the BPPA obligation and $5 million (2016 - $5 million) of 
depreciation expense relating to the BPPA capital lease asset, a total of $27 million (2016 - $27 million) was 
recognized in power purchase costs for 2017, as approved by the BCUC, with the balance of $7 million (2016 - 
$7 million) deferred as part of the regulatory asset balance in note 8 “Regulatory Assets and Liabilities”.  

BTS Capital Lease  

On July 15, 2003, the Corporation began operating the BTS under an agreement the term of which expires in 

2056 (the “BTS Obligation”). The agreement provides that FBC will pay a charge related to the recovery of the 
capital cost of the BTS and related operating costs. The BTS Obligation bears interest at a composite rate of 
approximately 9 per cent. 

Of the $2 million (2016 - $2 million) of interest expense relating to the BTS Obligation and $1 million (2016 - 

$1 million) of depreciation expense relating to the BTS capital lease asset, a total of $3 million (2016 - $3 
million) was recognized in operating costs for 2017, as approved by the BCUC, with the balance of $nil (2016 - 
$nil) deferred as part of the regulatory asset balance in note 8 “Regulatory Assets and Liabilities”.  

The present value of the minimum lease payments for both BTS and BPPA required over the next five years and 
thereafter are as follows:  

($ millions) BTS Lease BPPA Lease Total 

2018 3 40 43 
2019 3 41 44 
2020 3 41 44 

2021 3 42 45 

2022 3 43 46 

Thereafter 59 1,890 1,949 

  74 2,097 2,171 
Less: amounts representing imputed interest and 

executory costs 51 1,800 1,851 

Total capital lease obligations 23 297 320 

Less: current portion 1 - 1 

Total capital lease obligations 22 297 319 
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13. OTHER LIABILITIES  

($ millions)  2017  2016 

Asset retirement obligation   2       2 

 
Asset Retirement Obligation 

FBC has recognized an ARO based on an estimate of the fair value and timing of estimated future expenditures 
associated with the removal of insulating oil in certain electrical equipment that is contaminated with 

polychlorinated biphenyls (“PCBs”). The determination of the ARO is based on PCB regulations under the 
Canadian Environmental Protection Act, 1999 which govern the management and storage of PCBs as well as 
impose timelines for disposal based on certain criteria including type of equipment, in-use status and PCB-
contamination thresholds. The Corporation must identify and remove certain levels of PCBs in certain of its 
electrical equipment assets by 2025 to be compliant with the PCB regulations.  

FBC records an ARO liability in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be 
determined. The Corporation’s ARO is based on a best estimate of the present value of the future expenditures 

expected to be required to comply with existing regulations. 

There were no expenditures or revisions to estimates of the ARO during 2017 or 2016. Interest accretion 
recognized was $nil (2016 - $nil). 

The asset retirement cost has been capitalized to property, plant and equipment (note 6). Actual costs incurred 
upon settlement of an ARO are charged against the related liability to the extent of the accrued balance. Any 
difference between the actual costs incurred upon settlement of the ARO and the remaining balance is expected 

to be recognized as a regulatory asset or liability at that time.   

Total estimated undiscounted future cash flows required to comply with the PCB regulations is approximately 
$3 million. These expenditures are expected to be incurred over the period from 2018 to 2025 as follows: 

($ millions)       

2018      1 

2019      - 
2020      1 
2021      - 
2022      - 
Thereafter      1 

Total estimated undiscounted future cash flows    3 

The credit-adjusted risk-free discount rates used to calculate the present value of the above obligation is 3.0 
per cent. 

14. SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorized Share Capital 

The Corporation is authorized to issue 500,000,000 common shares, with a par value of $100 each and 

500,000,000 preferred shares, with a par value of $25 each, issuable in series. 

Common Shares 

Issued and outstanding common shares are as follows: 
 

 2017  2016 

 

Number of 

Shares 

Amount 

($ millions) 

 Number of 

Shares 

Amount 

($ millions) 

Outstanding, beginning of year 2,191,510 219  2,191,510 219 
Issued - -  - - 

Outstanding, end of year 2,191,510 219  2,191,510 219 
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15. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS  

The Corporation is a sponsor of pension plans for eligible employees. The plans include registered defined benefit 
pension plans, supplemental unfunded arrangements, and defined contribution plans. The Corporation also 
provides post-employment benefits other than pensions for certain of its retired employees. The following is a 
summary of each type of plan: 

Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

The Corporation sponsors three defined benefit pension plans, one of which is closed to new entrants. Retirement 
benefits are based on employees’ years of credited service and remuneration. Corporation contributions to the 

plans are based upon independent actuarial valuations. The most recent actuarial valuations of the defined 
benefit pension plans for funding purposes were as at December 31, 2016 and the date of the next required 
valuations will be as at December 31, 2019. 

Supplemental Plans 

Certain employees are eligible to receive supplemental benefits. The supplemental plans provide pension 
benefits in excess of statutory limits and are unfunded. 

Defined Contribution Plans 

The Corporation’s cost related to the defined contribution arrangement is based upon a percentage of employee 
earnings. The Corporation’s 2017 net benefit cost related to this arrangement was $2 million (2016- $1 million). 

Other Post-Employment Benefits 

The Corporation provides certain retired employees with OPEBs that include, depending on circumstances, 
supplemental health, dental and life insurance coverage. OPEBs are unfunded and the annual net benefit cost 
is recorded on an accrual basis based on independent actuarial determinations, considering among other factors, 

health-care cost escalation. The most recent actuarial valuation was completed as at December 31, 2016 and 
the next valuation is expected to be as at December 31, 2019. 

The financial positions of the Corporation’s defined benefit pension and supplemental plans and OPEB plans 

are as follows:  

 

Defined Benefit 
Pension and 

Supplemental Plans  OPEB Plans 

($ millions) 2017        2016     2017       2016  

Change in fair value of plan assets       
Balance, beginning of year 189 175  - - 
Actual return on plan assets 15 14  - - 
Employer contributions 5 5  1 1 
Employee contributions 3 3  - - 
Benefits paid (9) (8)  (1) (1) 

Fair value, end of year 203 189   - - 

       
Change in projected benefit obligation        

Balance, beginning of year 216 203  33 31 

Employee contributions 3 3  - - 
Current service cost 6 5  1 1 
Interest costs 8 8  1 1 
Benefits paid (9) (8)  (1) (1) 

Actuarial (gain) loss 9 5  (7) 1 

Balance, end of year 1 233 216   27 33 

Unfunded status (30) (27)  (27) (33) 

1 The accumulated benefit obligation for defined benefit pension plans, excluding assumptions about future salary levels, 

was $211 million (2016 - $195 million). 
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15. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued) 

The following table summarizes the employee future benefit assets and liabilities and their classification in the 
consolidated balance sheets. The total pension and OPEB liability recognized on the consolidated balance sheet 
was $62 million (2016 - $65 million). 

 

Defined Benefit 
Pension and 

Supplemental Plans OPEB Plans 

($ millions) 2017      2016   2017     2016  

Other assets (note 5) (6) (6) - - 
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (note 10) - - 1 1 
Pension and other post-employment benefits 36 33 26 32 

Net liability 30 27 27 33 

 
The net benefit cost for the Corporation’s defined benefit pension and supplemental plans and OPEB plans are 
as follows: 

 

Defined Benefit 
Pension and 

Supplemental Plans OPEB Plans 

($ millions)  2017      2016   2017    2016  

Service costs 6 5 1 1 
Interest costs 8 8 1 1 
Expected return on plan assets (11) (10) - - 

Amortization:     
Actuarial losses 2 2 - - 
Past service costs (1) (1) - - 

Regulatory adjustment - - 1 1 

Net benefit cost 4 4 3 3 

 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan Assets 

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016 the assets of the Corporation’s defined benefit pension plans were invested 
on a weighted average as follows: 

 

  Target Allocation 2017  2016  

Equities 50% 51% 50% 
Fixed income 30% - 50% 34% 36% 

Real estate 0% - 20% 15% 14% 

    100% 100% 

 
The investment policy for defined benefit plan assets is to optimize the risk-return using a portfolio of various 
asset classes. The Corporation’s primary investment objectives are to secure registered pension plans, and 

maximize investment returns in a cost effective manner while not compromising the security of the respective 

plans. The pension plans use quarterly rebalancing in order to achieve the target allocations while complying 
with the constraints of the Pension Benefits Standards Act of British Columbia and the Income Tax Act. The 
pension plans utilize external investment managers to execute the investment policy. Assets in the plans are 
held in trust by independent third parties. The pension plans do not directly hold any shares of the Corporation’s 
parent or affiliated companies. 
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15.EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued) 

The fair value measurements of the Corporation’s defined benefit pension plan assets by fair value hierarchy 
level, which are described in further detail in note 19 “Fair Value Measurements”, are as follows: 

2017 Level 1  Level 2   Level 3 Total 

($ millions)       

Equities 103  -  - 103 

Fixed income -  70  - 70 

Real estate -  -  30 30 

  103  70  30 203 

 

2016 Level 1  Level 2   Level 3 Total 

($ millions)       

Equities 97  -  - 97 

Fixed income -  65  - 65 

Real estate -  -  27 27 

  97  65  27 189 

The following table is a reconciliation of changes in the fair value of defined benefit pension plan assets that 

have been measured using Level 3 inputs for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

($ millions) 2017 2016 

Balance, beginning of year 27    25   

Actual return on plan assets:   

 Relating to assets still held at the reporting date 3 2 

Purchases, sales and settlements  - - 

Balance, end of year 30 27 

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. 
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15. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued) 

Significant Actuarial Assumptions  

The significant weighted average actuarial assumptions used to determine the projected benefit obligation 
and the net benefit cost are as follows:  
 

 
Defined Benefit 

Pension and 
Supplemental Plans 

 

OPEB Plans 

 2017 2016  2017 2016 

Projected benefit obligation      

Discount rate as at December 31 3.50% 3.75%  3.50% 3.75% 

Rate of compensation increase  3.00% 3.00%  - - 

Net benefit cost       

Discount rate as at January 1  3.75% 4.00%  3.75% 4.00% 

Expected rate of return on plan assets  6.00% 6.00%  - - 

The assumed health care cost trend rates for OPEB plans are as follows: 
 

          2017  2016  

Health care trend rate:        

Initial rate at December 31     5.00% 5.50% 

Annual rate of decline in trend rate  - 0.50% 

Ultimate health care cost trend rate  5.00% 5.00% 

Year ultimate rate reached     2018 2018 

 
A one per cent change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects on the 
Corporation’s OPEB plans: 

 

2017 
1% Increase 

in Rate 
1% Decrease  

in Rate 

($ millions)   
Increase (decrease) in benefit obligation 3 (2) 

Increase (decrease) in service and interest costs - - 

 

The following table provides the components and changes of the regulatory assets during the year that would 
otherwise have been recognized in other comprehensive income and AOCI and have not yet been recognized 
as components of periodic net benefit cost. The total unrecognized actuarial losses and past service costs for 
pension and OPEB that was recognized as a regulatory asset was $34 million (2016 - $37 million).  

 

 
Defined Benefit 

Pension and 
Supplemental Plans 

 
OPEB Plans 

($ millions)   2017      2016     2017    2016  

Regulatory asset, beginning of year 33 33  4 3 

Net actuarial (gain) loss 5 1  (7) 1 

Amortization of actuarial losses (2) (2)  - - 

Amortization of past service credit 1 1  - - 

Regulatory asset, end of year (note 8) 37 33   (3) 4 

           
Net actuarial losses of $2 million and past service credit of $1 million will be amortized from regulatory assets 

into pension net benefit costs during 2018. Net actuarial losses of $nil will be amortized from regulatory assets 
into OPEB net benefit costs during 2018.  
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15. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued) 

Under the terms of the defined benefit pension plans, the Corporation is required to provide pension funding 
contributions, including current service, solvency and special funding amounts. The Corporation’s estimated 
2018 contributions are $4 million. 

The following table provides the amount of benefit payments expected to be made over the next 10 years. 
 

($ millions)  

Defined Benefit 
Pension and 

Supplemental Plans OPEB Plans 

2018 8 1 

2019 9 1 

2020 9 1 

2021 10 1 

2022 10 1 

2023-2027 56 4 

 102 9 

16. FINANCE CHARGES 

($ millions) 2017 2016 

Interest on long-term debt 1 (note 11) 36 36 

Interest on short-term debt 2 (note 20) 2 1 

Debt component of AFUDC (1) - 

Total finance charges 37   37  

1  Includes amortization of debt issuance costs. 
2  Includes capitalized interest on certain non-rate base regulatory assets and liabilities. 

17. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

The supplementary information to the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 
31 are as follows: 

($ millions) 2017 2016 

Interest paid 38 39 

Income taxes paid 15 3 

 

Significant Non-Cash Transactions 

($ millions)    2017 2016 

Change in capital expenditures   - (2) 

Regulated asset for deferred income taxes  (15) (12) 

BPPA lease costs regulatory asset  (7) (7) 

Pension and OPEB unrecognized actuarial losses and past service costs 
regulatory asset  3  (1) 
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17. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued) 

Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital   

($ millions) 2017 2016 

Accounts receivable 3 (3) 

Accounts payable and other current liabilities (3) (5) 

Income taxes payable (5) 11 

Net current regulatory assets and liabilities (5) (17) 

Change in non-cash working capital per statements of cash flows (10) (14) 

 

The non-cash investing activities balances as at December 31 were as follows: 
 

($ millions) 2017 2016 

Accrued capital expenditures 13 13 

18. INCOME TAXES 

Deferred Income Taxes 

Deferred income taxes are provided for temporary differences. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities 
comprised the following: 
 

($ millions) 2017  2016 

Deferred income tax liability (asset)    

Property, plant and equipment 160  143 

Intangible assets 9  7 

Regulatory assets 10  13 

Regulatory liabilities (3)  (5) 

Debt issuance costs 1  1 

Employee future benefits (8)  (8) 

Other (2)   1 

Net deferred income tax liability 167   152 

Provision for Income Taxes 

($ millions)   2017   2016  

Current income taxes expense 12 8 

   

Deferred income taxes expense 15 11 

Regulatory adjustment (15) (12) 

Deferred income taxes expense, net of regulatory adjustment - (1) 

Income taxes expense 12 7 
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18. INCOME TAXES (continued) 

Variation in Effective Income Tax Rate 

Income taxes vary from the amount that would be computed by applying the Canadian federal and BC combined 
statutory income tax rate of 26.0 per cent (2016 – 26.0 per cent) to earnings before income taxes as shown in 
the following table: 

 2017 2016 

Combined statutory income tax rate 26.0% 26.0% 

($ millions)    

Statutory income tax rate applied to earnings before income taxes 16 14 

Items capitalized for accounting but expensed for income tax purposes (3) (2) 

Difference between capital cost allowance and amounts expensed for 
accounting purposes (4) (4) 

Difference between regulatory accounting items and amounts claimed for 
tax purposes 3 - 

Other - (1) 

Actual income taxes expense 12 7 

Effective income tax rate 19.1% 12.1% 

Taxation years 2012 and prior are no longer subject to examination in Canada. An examination of the open tax 
years subsequent to 2012 by the Canada Revenue Agency could result in a change in the liability for 
unrecognized tax benefits.  

As at December 31, 2017, the Corporation had no non-capital or capital losses carried forward. 

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Province of BC enacted a corporate income tax rate increase of 
1.0 per cent effective January 1, 2018. As a result, the combined Federal and BC provincial corporate tax rate 

will increase from 26.0 per cent to 27.0 per cent in 2018. The following table summarizes the impact of corporate 
income tax rate change as at December 31, 2017:  

($ millions) 2017 

Increase in deferred income tax liability  8 

Increase in regulated asset for deferred income taxes  8 

Increase in deferred income tax expense  - 
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19. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The Corporation categorizes financial instruments into the three level hierarchy based on inputs used to 
determine the fair value: 

Level 1: Fair value determined using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets. 
Level 2: Fair value determined using pricing inputs that are observable. 
Level 3: Fair value determined using unobservable inputs only when relevant observable inputs are not 

available. 

Financial Instruments Not Carried at Fair Value 

The fair value of a financial instrument is the market price to sell an asset or transfer a liability at the 
measurement date. The Corporation uses the following methods and assumptions for estimating the fair value 
of financial instruments: 

 The carrying values of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, other current liabilities and credit 
facilities on the consolidated balance sheets of the Corporation approximate their fair values due to the 
short-term nature of these financial instruments. These items have been excluded from the table below. 

 For long-term debt, the Corporation uses quoted market prices when available. When quoted market 
prices are not available, the fair value is determined by discounting the future cash flows of the specific 
debt instrument at an estimated yield to maturity equivalent to benchmark government bonds or treasury 
bills, with similar terms to maturity, plus a market credit risk premium equal to that of issuers of similar 
credit quality. Since the Corporation does not intend to settle long-term debt prior to maturity, the fair 
value estimate does not represent an actual liability and, therefore, does not include exchange or 
settlement costs.  

The use of different estimation methods and/or market assumptions may yield different estimated fair value 
amounts. The following table includes the carrying value and estimated fair value of the Corporation’s long-
term debt: 

  2017  2016 

 Fair Value  Carrying Estimated  Carrying Estimated 
($ millions) Hierarchy Value Fair Value  Value Fair Value 

Liabilities 
Long-term debt 1 

 
Level 2 735 902   660 791 

1  Includes secured and unsecured debentures for which the carrying value is measured at cost. Carrying value excludes 
unamortized debt issuance costs of $6 million (2016 - $6 million). 

20. CREDIT FACILITIES 

As at December 31, 2017, the Corporation had bank credit facilities of $160 million, comprised of a $150 
million operating credit facility and a $10 million demand overdraft facility. During 2017, the $150 million 
operating credit facility was amended such that it now matures in May 2022.  

Borrowings under the Corporation’s operating credit facilities bear interest at prime or the certificate of deposit 
offered rate for bankers’ acceptances plus a margin. The margin applied is based on FBC’s debt ratings 

provided by its credit rating agencies. The demand overdraft facility bears interest at prime, which at 

December 31, 2017, was 3.20 per cent (December 31, 2016 - 2.70 per cent). 

The following summary outlines the Corporation’s bank credit facilities:  

($ millions) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 

Operating credit facility 150 150 

Demand overdraft facility 10 10 

Draws on operating credit facility (50) (91) 

Draws on overdraft facility (4) (3) 

Letters of credit outstanding (1) (1) 

Credit facilities available 105 65 
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21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  

In the normal course of business, the Corporation transacts with its parent, FortisBC Pacific, ultimate parent, 
Fortis, and other related companies under common control, including FortisBC Energy Inc. (“FEI”), FortisBC 
Holdings Inc. (“FHI”) and the Waneta Expansion Limited Partnership (“WELP”), primarily under the WECA, to 
provide or receive services and materials. The following transactions were measured at the exchange amount 
unless otherwise indicated. 

Related Party Recoveries 

The amounts charged to the Corporation's parent and other related parties under common control for the 

years ended December 31 were as follows: 
 

($ millions) 2017 2016 

Operating costs and other revenue charged to FortisBC Pacific (a) 7 7 

Electricity revenue recovered from FEI (b) 1 1 

Operating costs charged to FEI (b) 7 6 

Operating costs charged to WELP (c) - 2 

Total related party recoveries 15 16 

 
(a) The Corporation charged its parent, FortisBC Pacific, for management services, labour and materials. 

(b) The Corporation charged FEI for electricity sales, management services and other labour. 

(c) The Corporation charged WELP for the recovery of a portion of water fees billed to FBC by the Province of 
BC during 2016 that related to WELP. 

Related Party Costs 

The amounts charged by Fortis and other related parties under common control for the years ended December 
31 were as follows: 

 

($ millions) 2017 2016 

Power purchase costs charged by WELP (a) 46 45 

Operating costs charged by Fortis (b) 2 3 

Operating costs charged by FEI (c) 5 4 

Operating costs charged by FHI (d) 1 - 

Total related party costs  54 52 

(a) The Corporation was charged by WELP for purchasing capacity pursuant to the WECA. 

(b) The Corporation was charged by Fortis for corporate management services and other compensation.   

(c) The Corporation was charged by FEI for natural gas sales, office rent, management services and other 
labour, and other compensation charged by Fortis through FEI. 

(d) The Corporation was charged by FHI for management services and governance costs. 
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21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

Balance Sheet Amounts 

The amounts due from related parties, which are included in accounts receivable on the consolidated balance 
sheets, and the amounts due to related parties, which are included in accounts payable and other current 
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets, are as follows: 

As at December 31 2017 2016 

($ millions) 
Amount 

Due from 
Amount 

Due to 
Amount 

Due from 
Amount 
Due to 

Fortis (a) 1 - 1 - 
FortisBC Pacific  - - 1 - 
FEI  1 (1) 1 - 

WELP - (11) - (11) 

Total due from (due to) related parties 2 (12) 3 (11) 

(a) Included in accounts receivable is an amount due from Fortis related to the allocation from Fortis to FBC 
of the Part VI.1 tax associated with preference share dividends. 

In March 2016, FEI paid FBC $6 million to repay FBC for funds that were transferred from FBC’s tax instalment 

account at the Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA”) to FEI’s tax instalment account at the CRA. The transfer 
resulted in a decrease to FBC’s income tax receivable balance and a decrease to FEI’s income taxes payable 
balance as permitted by the CRA for associated entities. 

22. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Commitments  

The following table sets forth the Corporation’s estimated contractual obligations due in the years indicated: 

As at December 31, 2017 Total 

Due 
Within 
1 Year 

Due in 
Year 2 

Due in 
Year 3 

Due in 
Year 4 

Due in 
Year 5 

Due 

After 
5 Years 

($ millions)        
Power purchase obligations (a) 2,982 89 83 79 78 76 2,577 

Capital lease obligations (note 12) 2,171 43 44 44 45 46 1,949 

Interest obligations on long-term debt 913 38 38 38 38 36 725 

Long-term debt 1 735 - - - 25 - 710 

Other (b) 11 5 3 1 - 1 1 

Totals 6,812 175 168 162 186 159 5,962 
1 Excludes unamortized debt issuance costs of $6 million. 

(a) In addition to the BPPA, which has been recognized as a capital lease obligation (note 12), the 

Corporation’s power purchase obligations consist of the following: 

Waneta Expansion Capacity Agreement (“WECA”) 

In 2010, FortisBC entered into an agreement to purchase capacity from the Waneta Expansion, a 335 MW 
hydroelectric generating facility adjacent to the existing Waneta Plant on the Pend d’Oreille River in BC. 
The Waneta Expansion is owned by a limited partnership, the limited partners of which are FortisBC’s 
ultimate parent, Fortis, which owns a 51 per cent interest, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of each of CPC 
and CBT. It allows FortisBC to purchase capacity over 40 years, beginning April 1, 2015. The WECA was 

accepted by the BCUC in May 2012. 
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22. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued) 

BC Hydro Power Purchase Agreement (“BCH PPA”)  

In 2013, FortisBC entered into the BCH PPA to purchase up to 200 MW of capacity and 1,752 GWh per 
year of associated energy for a 20 year term beginning October 1, 2013. The BCH PPA was approved by 
the BCUC in May 2014 and was effective July 1, 2014 The capacity and energy to be purchased under 
this agreement do not relate to a specific plant. The BCH PPA meets the exemption for normal purchases 
and as such is not required to be recorded at fair value as a derivative. 

Capacity and Energy Purchase and Sale Agreement (“CEPSA”) 

In 2015, FBC entered into the CEPSA which allows FBC to purchase all of its market energy requirements 
from Powerex and for FBC to sell any surplus capacity to Powerex that may be available after FBC meets 
its load requirements. The CEPSA was accepted by the BCUC in April 2015 and became effective beginning 

May 2015. As at December 31, 2017, the total power purchase obligations outstanding under the CEPSA 
were approximately $10 million through to the end of 2019. The energy purchases under the CEPSA do 
not relate to specific plants and the output being purchased does not constitute a significant portion of 

the output of a specific plant. 

Brilliant Expansion Capacity and Energy Purchase Agreement 

During September 2017, FortisBC entered into an agreement to purchase capacity and energy from CPC, 
acting on behalf of the Brilliant Expansion Power Corporation, from January 2018 through to December 
2027. The agreement was accepted by the BCUC in October 2017.  

(b) Included in other contractual obligations are building leases, vehicle leases, defined benefit pension plan 
funding obligations, asset retirement obligations, and a commitment to purchase fibre optic cable in 2019.  

Legal Proceedings  

The Province of BC filed a claim in the BC Supreme Court on June 8, 2012 claiming on its behalf, and on 
behalf of approximately 17 homeowners, damages suffered as a result of a landslide caused by a dam failure 

in Oliver, BC in 2010. The Province alleges in its claim that the dam failure was caused by the defendants, 
including FBC, through the use of a road on top of the dam. The Province estimates its damages, and the 
damages of the homeowners on whose behalf it is claiming, to be approximately $15 million. FBC has notified 
its insurers of this claim. In December 2017, FBC was advised by counsel for the Province that the Province 

is requesting that all defendants agree to a consent dismissal order which will dismiss the claim without costs 
to any party.  FBC has agreed to the consent dismissal order and is waiting on confirmation that the other 
defendants will agree to the consent dismissal order. The outcome cannot be reasonably determined or 
estimated at this time and, accordingly, no amount has been accrued in the financial statements. 

23. SALE OF ASSETS  

In February 2016, FBC and its subsidiaries sold the WPP non-regulated assets for gross proceeds of 

approximately $9 million. As a result, FBC recognized a gain on sale of approximately $1 million, after tax 
and transactions costs, in other income in the first quarter of 2016.  

24. GUARANTEES  

The Corporation has letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2017 totaling $1 million (December 31, 
2016 - $1 million) which were primarily to support the funding of one of the Corporation’s pension plans and 
a wheeling agreement. 

 

 



Exhibit 3
FortisBC Financial Information

Fortis BC Inc 2017 Cost of Service and Rate Design

1987 1999 December 31st,
2017

Assets $85,000,000 $350,000,000 $2,189,000,000

Long Term Debt $? $161,250,000 $729,000,000

Equity to Debt ratio $? 46% 33.3%



Exhibit 4
West Kootenay Power/Aquilla Long Term Debt At August 31, 1999

FortisBC Inc 2017 Cost of Service and Analysis & Rate Design



Exhibit 5
West Kootenay Power Annual rate Increases 1973 - 1993

FortisBC Inc 2017 Cost of Service and Analysis & Rate Design



Exhibit 6
Electric Heat Customers as Percentage of Total Residential Accounts

FortisBC Inc 2017 Cost of Service and Analysis & Rate Design



Exhibit 7
Proposed Time-Of-Use Rates (Per kWh)

FortisBC Inc 2017 Cost of Service and Analysis & Rate Design

Time of Year 7.00 AM to Noon Noon to 4.00 PM 4.00 PM to 9.00 PM 9.00 PM to 7.00 AM 3

December to 
February

$.224351 $.118692 $.224351 $.0928

March to 
June

$.118692 $.0928

July/August $.118692 $.224351 $.0928

September to 
November

$.118692 $.0928

1. For each kWh consumed the cost per month would be $67.31 for ten hours per day for 30 
days, versus $30.35 for tier 1 rates currently, or $47.01 for tier 2 in 2017. This would be a 
121.8% increase over tier 1 and 43.2% higher than tier 2 2017 rates.

It would be 80.7% higher than the proposed 2023 flat residential rate of $.11749, which works 
out to $35.25 for ten hours per day for 30 days.  

2. For each kWh consumed the cost per month would be $49.85 for fourteen hours per day in 
March to June and September to November and $17.8 in December to February and July and
August per month. That is 17.3% higher than the respective tier 1 rate in 2017, but 24.3% 
lower than the current tier 2 rate. By 2023 that difference will have shrunk to approximately 
1% more than the proposed 2023 flat rate.



Exhibit 8
West Kootenay Electricity Rates Compared

Fortis BC Inc 2017 Cost of Service Analysis & Rate Design

Rates Lardeau
BC Hydro 2017

Nelson Hydro1 FortisBC 20172 FortisBC 2023

Tier 1 8.58 cents/kWh
up to 22.1918
kWh per day3

10.13 cents/kWh 10.117
cents/kWh

11.749
cents/kWh

Basic Charge 18.99 cents day4 25.69 cents day 52.75 cents day 61.46 cents day

Basic Charge
Bi-Monthly

$15.634 $32.094 $37.39

Tier 2 12.875 cents None 15.6175 cents None

1,350 kWh $115.83 $136.76 $136.58 $158.61

60 day billing
period 

$11.394 $15.634 $32.094 37.39

Rate Rider 5% $6.36 None None None

1,350 kWh+Basic
Charge+Rate

Rider

$133.58 $152.39 $168.67 $196

GST 5% $6.68 $7.62 $8.43 $9.8

Total Cost 1,350
kWh

$140.26 $160.01 $177.1 $205.8

2,000 kWh $199.49 $202.6 $199.05 $234.98

60 day billing
period

$11.39 $15.63 $32.09 37.39

Rate Rider 5% $10.54 None None None

2,000 kWh+Basic
Charge+Rate

Rider 

$221.42 $218.23 $231.14 $272.37

GST 5% $11.07 $10.91 $11.56 $13.62

Total Cost 2,000
kWh

$232.49 $229.14 $242.7 $285.99

1. Nelson Hydro buys 55% of its power supply, some of it from FortisBC at an energy charge 
of 4.501 cents per kWh.

2. FortisBC bought 49% of its power supply from BC Hydro and Columbia Power Corporation 
at the BC Hydro RS 3808 rate of between 4.699 and 4.863 cents per kWh in 2016.

3. The BC Hydro Tier 1 rate ended at 1,350 kWh - 22.1918 kWh per day in 2017.



4. BC Hydro charges a daily basic charge, whereas Nelson Hydro and FortisBC have a bi-
monthly basic charge. I have extrapolated a daily basic, based on 6 bi-monthly and 12 
monthly charges divided by 365 days in a year.

5. The FortisBC Tier 2 rate started at 1,600 per bi-monthly billing period and was 15.617 cents
per kWh in 2017, whereas BC Hydro charged 12.87 cents per kWh above 1,350 kWh - 
22.1918 kWh per day in 2017.



Exhibit 9
Kaslo Apartment Residential Electric Heat Customer 

FortisBC Inc 2017 Cost of Service Analysis & Rate Design

FortisBC 2017 BC Hydro
2017

Compared FortisBC
2023

Compared
BC Hydro

2017

Tier 1
6,809

$683.91 $346.541 +$337.37
+97.4%

$799.993

+17%
+$453.45
+130.9%

Basic Charge $191.56 $69.12 +$122.44
+177.1%

$224.04
+17.5%

+$154.92
+224.1%

BCH
Rate Rider

$20.78

GST 5% $43.77 $21.86 +$21.91
+100.2%

$51.2
+17%

+$29.34
+134.2%

Sub Total $919.24 $458.27 +$460.97
+100.5%

$1,075.23
+17%

+$616.96
+134.6%

Per Day $2.53 $1.44 +$1.09 $2.95 +$1.52

Tier 2
3,223

$495.92 $512.752 -($16.83)
-(3.3%)

$378.673

-($117.25)
-($134.08)
-(26.1%)

Tier 1+
Tier 2

$1,179.83 $859.29 +$320.54
+37.3%

$1,178.66
-(.1%)

+$319.37
+37.2%

Basic Charge $191.56 $69.12 +$122.44
+177.1%

$224.04 +$154.92
+224.1

BCH Rate
Rider

$46.42

GST 5% $68.57 $48.74 +$19.83
+40.7%

$70.14
+2.3%

+$21.4
+43.9%

Total $1,439.96 $1,023.57 +$416.39
+40.9%

$1,472.84
+2.3%

+$449.27
+43.9%

Per Day $3.96 $2.81 +$1.14 $4.05
+$.09

+$1.23

1: BC Hydro Tier 1 has 761 fewer kWh as the Tier 2 threshold is 1,350 and not 1,600 as it is 
for FortisBC residential customers.

2: BC Hydro Tier 2 has 761 more kWh as the Tier 2 threshold is 1,350 and not 1,600 as it is 
for FortisBC residential customers.

3. The FortisBC rate becomes a flat rate of $.11749 in 2023



Exhibit 10
Kaslo Residential Passive Solar Electric Heat Customer 

FortisBC Inc 2017 Cost of Service Analysis & Rate Design

FortisBC 2017 BC Hydro
2017

Compared FortisBC
2023

Compared
BC Hydro

2017

Tier 1
7,384

$750.12 $578.251 +$171.87
+29.7%

$867.553

+15.7%
+$289.3
+50%

Basic Charge $191.51 $69.69 +$121.82
+174.8%

$224.34
+17.1%

+$154.65
+121.9%

Other
FortisBC /

BCH
Rate Rider

$32.4 -($32.4) -($32.4)

GST 5% $47.08 $34.02 +$13.06
+38.4%

$54.59
+16%

+$7.51
+22.1%

Sub Total $988.71 $714.36 +$274.35
+38.4%

$1,146.48
+16%

+$542.72
+64.3%

Per Day $2.69 $1.95 +$.75 $3.12 +$1.48

Tier 2
1,218

$185.85 $239.77 -($53.92)
-(22.5%)

$143.1
-(23%)

-($96.67)
-(40.3%)

Tier 1+
Tier 2
8,602

$935.97 $818.02 +$117.95
+14.4%

$1,010.653

8%
+$192.63
+23.5%

Basic Charge $191.51 $69.69 +$121.82
+74.8%

$224.34
+17.4%

+$154.65
+221.9%

FortisBC
Other/BCH

Rate
Rider

$44.39 -($44.39) -($44.39)

GST 5% $56.37 $46.61 +$9.76
+20.9%

$61.75
+9.5%

+$15.14
+32.5%

Total $1,185.34 $978.71 +$206.63
+21.1%

$1,296.74
+9.4%

+$318.03
+32.5%

Per Day $3.23 $2.67 +$.56 $3.53
+$.3

+$.87

1: BC Hydro Tier 1 has nearly 645 fewer kWh as the Tier 2 threshold is 1,350 and not 1,600 
as it is for FortisBC residential customers.

2: BC Hydro Tier 2 has nearly 645 kWh more kWh as the Tier 2 threshold is 1,350 and not 
1,600 as it is for FortisBC residential customers



3: The FortisBC rate becomes a flat rate of $.11749 in 2023



Exhibit 11
Kaslo Residential House Wood Heat Customer 

FortisBC Inc 2017 Cost Of Service Analysis & Rate Design

FortisBC 2017 BC Hydro
2017

Compared FortisBC
2023

Compared
BC Hydro

2017

Tier 1
7,831

$787.01 $657.941 +$129.06
+19.6%

$920.063

+16.9%
+$262.12
+39.8%

Basic Charge $191.03 $67.98 +$123.05
+181%

$224.04
+17.5%

+$156.06
+229.5%

BCH
Rate Rider

$36.30

GST 5% $48.9 $38.11 +$10.79
+28.3%

$57.24
+17%

+$19.13
+50.2%

Sub Total $1,026.94 $800.33 +$226.61
+28.3%

$1,201.34
+17%

+$401.01
+50.1%

Per Day $2.87 $1.44 +$1.09 $2.95 +$1.52

Tier 2 $20.95

Tier 1+
Tier 2

$787.01 $678.89 +$108.12
+15.9%

$920.063

+16.9%
+$241.17
+35.5%

Basic Charge $191.03 $67.98 +$123.05
+181%

$224.04
+17.5%

+$156.06
+229.5%

BCH Rate
Rider

$37.34

GST 5% $48.9 $39.21 +$9.69
+24.7%

$57.24
+17%

+$18.03
+46%

Total $1,026.94 $823.42 +$203.52
+24.7%

$1,201.34
+17%

+$377.92
+46%

Per Day $2.87 $2.30 +.57 $2.95 +$1.06

1: BC Hydro Tier 1 has nearly 163 fewer kWh as the Tier 2 threshold is 1,350 and not 1,600 
as it is for FortisBC residential customers.

2: BC Hydro Tier 2 has nearly 163 kWh, whereas FortisBC had no Tier 2 consumption.

3: The FortisBC rate becomes a flat rate of $.11749 in 2023
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